HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD MEETING
AGENDA
Hamilton High School Library
Wednesday, March 27, 2019

5:30 p.m. Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only.
5:30 p.m, Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below.
7:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no earlier than 7:00 p.m.

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

OPENING BUSINESS:
Call to order and roll call

Gabriel Leal, President Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk Rod Boone
Genaro Reyes Ray Odom

IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS:

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board may
limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters.

1. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue — with Small School District’s Association (SSDA) Consultant,
Debra Pearson. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment, resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a
classified and certificated employees.

2. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, Superintendent
Charles Tracy regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations.

3. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified School
District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CvV01394.

Report out action taken in closed session.
PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:
ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M)

COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS:
1. Board Member Comments/Reports.
2. ASB President and Student Council President Reports.
a. Hamilton High School, Ofelia Flores
b. Hamilton Elementary School, Ximena Hernandez
3. District Reports (written, February & March included due to flood closures in February)
a. Food Service Report by LeAnn Radtke (written) (page 4-5)
b. Operations Report by Marc Eddy (written) (page 6)
c. Technology Report by Derek Hawley (written) (page 7)
4. Principal and Dean of Student Reports
a. Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal (written) (page 8)
b. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students (written)
c. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal (written) (page 9)
5. Chief Business Official Report by Diane Holliman (written) (page 10)
6. Superintendent Report by Charles Tracy
a. Small School Districts Association Annual Conference reminder — Sunday, March 31* to Monday, April 1.
b. Staff In-Service Day: Friday, March 29, 2019 — “End of Year Staff Appreciation Lunch”
€. LCAP Review at Hamilton High School Open House (April 4, 2019) and upcoming Hamilton Elementary School
Parent Luncheon.
d. Upcoming School Board Meetings:
i Wednesday, April 17, 2019
ii. Wednesday, May 22, 2019






8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

i Wednesday, June 12, 2019 (LCAP/Budget Public Hearing)
iv. Wednesday, June 26, 2019 (LCAP/Budget Approval)
e. Holidays:
i Friday, April 19, 2019 — Good Friday
iil. Monday, April 22, 2019 - Friday, April 26, 2019 — Spring Break

PRESENTATIONS:
1. Gear Up Grant, future partnerships/plans by Stacey Garrett. (page 11-12)

CORRESPONDENCE:
1. None

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

1. HUSD Annual Contracts per School Board Request. {page 13)

2. Request for Proposal - Musical Instruments, Maximum Bid Not to Exceed $30,000 (funding from North State Arts
Education Consortium). (page 14)

3. Educational Specifications and CDE site requirements, by Mike Cannon.

DISCUSSION ITEMS:
1. 1 Soon Consulting Proposal, Foodservice consulting. {page 15-16)
2. Resolution 18-19-110 RE Exemption from Local Land Use Planning Requirements; and, Designation of District as Lead
Agency for CEQA Study Purposes. (page 17-19)
3. Demographic Student for Hamilton Unified School District, SchoolWorks, Inc. by Mike Cannon. (page 20-46)
CEQA Study Contract, Placeworks, Inc. & Hauge Brueck by Mike Cannon. (page 47-92)
5. Contract Proposal for Title 5 Risk Assessments for Hamilton High School Expansion, Placeworks, Inc. by Mike Cannon.
(page 93-103)
6. Second interim Report by Diane Holliman. (page 104-136})
7. Board Member Participation in End-of-Year Activities.
a. HES Promotion — Thursday, June 6, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. (Board Members atrive at 6:30 p.m.), Location: HHS Stadium.
b. HHS Graduation — Friday, June 7, 2019 at 8:00 p.m. (Board Members arrive at 7:30 p.m.), Location: HHS Stadium.
8. Request by Drivers Education Teachers for Hourly Rate Increase. (page 137)
9. Potential Citizens Oversight Committee for Hamilton Unified School District General Obligation Bond — need a total of
at least 7 members:
a. Category: Business Owner
i. Interested member: Gee Singh
b. Category: Parent in the District
i. Interested member: Froylan Mendoza
c. Category: Senior Citizens’ Organization
i. Interested member: Merrilee Johnson
d. Category: PTA/PTO Member
i. Interested member: OPEN
e. Category: Member or Taxpayers’ Organization (i.e. groups of landowners, e.g. homeowners’ associations).
i. Interested member: OPEN
f.  Category: Other member at large
ii. Interested member: OPEN
g. Category: Other member at large
iii. Interested member: OPEN

P

Need to establish committee by no later than April 1, 2019.

The members may not be employees of the District or vendors, contractors or consulitant’s to the District as that would
be a conflict. This includes substitute teachers or individuals that may provide any type of services to the District, even
sporadic in nature. You may hand select the members by soliciting them.

10. First reading of Board Policy and Exhibit 0420.41 Charter School Oversight. {page 138-142)

11. First reading of Board Policy and Adminstrative Regulation 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures. (page 138-142)

12. First reading of Administrative Regulation, Exhibit (1), Exhibit (2}, Exhibit (3) and Exhibit {4) 1312.4 Williams Uniform
Complaint Procedures. (page 138-142)

13. First reading of Administrative Regulation 1340 Access to District Records. (page 138-142)

14. First reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3100 Budget. (page 138-142)






12.0

13.0

14.0

15.0

15.
16.

17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.

First reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3260 Fees and Charges. (page 138-142)

First reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3515.4 Recovery for Property Losss or Damage. (page 138-
142)

First reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 4030 Nondiscrimination in Employment. {page 138-142)
First reading of Administrative Regulation 4161.1, 4261.1 and 4361.1 Personal lliness/Injury Leave. (page 138-142)
First reading of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5117 interdistrict Attendance. (page 138-142)

First reading of Administrative Regulation 5125.2 Witholding Grades, Diploma and Transcripts. (page 138-142)

First reading of Board Policy 5127 Graduation Ceremonies and Activities. (page 138-142)

First reading of Exhibit 5145.6 Parental Notifications. (page 138-142)

First reading of Administrative Regulation 5148 Child Care and Development. (page 138-142)

First reading of Board Bylaw, Exhibit (1) and Exhibit (2) 9323.2 Actions by the Board. (page 138-142)

PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard
(agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15
minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon.

ACTION ITEMS:

1.

NO U AW

Resolution 18-19-110 RE Exemption from Local Land Use Planning Requirements; and, Designation of District as Lead
Agency for CEQA Study Purposes. (page 17-19)

Demographic Student for Hamilton Unified School District, SchoolWorks, Inc. (page 20-46)

CEQA Study Contract, Placeworks, Inc. (page 47-92)

Contract Proposal for Title 5 Risk Assessments for Hamilton High School Expansion, Placeworks, Inc. (page 93-103)
Adopt Second Interim Report 2018-19. (page 104-136)

Request by Drivers Education Teachers for Hourly Rate Increase. (page 137)

Affidavit of School District - Form J-13A, Request for Allowance of Attendance Due to Emergency Conditions. (page
143-167)

Raquel Bocast hired as Teacher on Special Assighment (TOSA) for Hamilton Unified School District.

CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one motion.
There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public request
specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda approved by the
Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended.

1. Warrants and Expenditures. (page 168-188
2. California Department of Education Consolidated Application for 2018-19. (page 189-216)
3. Hamilton Elementary School Site Council Meeting Agenda for March 14, 2019. {page 217)
4. Hamilton Elementary School Site Council Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2019. (page 218)
5. Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting on February 27, 2019. (page 219-223)
6. Hamilton Elementary School CISF (California Junior Scholarshop Federation) End-of-Year Field Trip — May 3, 2019. (page
224)
7. Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually).
a. Out
i. Hamilton Elementary School
1. None
ii. Hamilton High School
1. None
b. In
i. Hamilton Elementary School
1. None
ii. Hamilton High School
1. None
8. Personnel Actions as Presented:
a. New hires:
i. Asha Mundo Child Nutrition Assistant 2019-20 HES
ii. Elliott Delmatier JV Baseball Coach HHS
iii. Heather Knutson Music Teacher 2019-20 District
b. Resignations/Retirement:
i. Omar Saldivar Child Nutrition Assistant - BGC HES
ii. Heather Wyman Yard Duty Supervisor/Crossing Guard HES
ADJOURNMENT:






January 2019 Food Services Report
Hamilton Unified School District

Director of Nutrition and Student Welfare

LeAnn Medina

Combined District Totals 18 days of school
Lunches 8444
Breakfasts 5209
Boys and Girls Club snacks 663
Boys and Girls Suppers 2034
Total $44737.92






February 2019 Food Services Report
Hamilton Unified School District

Director of Nutrition and Student Welfare

LeAnn Medina

Combined District Totals 18 days of school
Lunches 7836
Breakfasts 5297
Boys and Girls Club snacks 599
Boys and Girls Suppers 1811
Total $42421.66



Board Report January

Transpoitation
3770 Miles Driven

14 Trips for 1486 miles

Maintenance

HHS
Replace exterior Parking lot lights
7 home soccer games
10 Home basketball games

HES

LED Retro fit exterior Lights



Technology Report
Frank James, Director of Technology

Derek Hawley, Information Systems Technician

Completed and in Progress Tasks —February 2019

1.

Lenovo Chromebook Warranty work: We have shipped out another round of
Chromebooks for warranty work. The Chromebooks are from classroom on the
Elementary and High School sites. We still have five months of warranty left so we are
trying to maximize out free repair options.

Dell Warranty Work: We have received and installed parts for our OptiPlex 7040
desktop PCs. These PCs are still under warranty for another six months so we are trying
to flesh out any issue while we still have the free coverage.

Tickets: Our ticket count has remained steadily in the 30s. We have had a few spikes
here and there but our response times have remained consistent.

Google Cloud Printer: We have installed our first google cloud printer at the Elementary
School. So far it is doing exactly what we wanted it to and it’s proving to be a nice
conference room solution.

DC3 rebuild: We have begun the rebuilding of DC3 (old server). The new DC3 will be
used as a backup domain controller as well as a VM manager. We are also hoping to
implement some automatic power outage shutdown procedures through this rebuilt
machine.

Ag PC: A new PC has been deployed in the Ag department. This PC is going to be used
with the plasma cutter. It will also have AutoCAD, NestMaster and Adobe lllustrator on
it for design purposes.

FS/Files Migration: HHS-Classified has been migrated off of the fs server on onto the
new files server. The files server will be used as our primary network storage for files
moving forward. So far HES-Classified and HHS-Classified have been migrated.
Certificated will be migrated in the future.



HES Board Submitted by Kathy Thomas 3/19/19
Report
Attendance Total: 423 students
96.82 6-8 96.56 % K-5
One new third grader started this week
Dianna Camarena and | are meeting with families with attendance site contracts as well as
meeting with 8 families of students with chronic absences to help support improved
attendance.
MTSS Our last training for this school year will be 4/4/19. We have been concentrating on our FIA
(Multi-Tiered (Fidelity Integrity Assessment) evaluation, specifically inclusive instructional practices and
System of data-based decision making . FIA is self-assessment used by School Leadership team to
Support) examine current school practices and their effectiveness in order to make informed decisions
for improvement.
Actions that we have taken these last few months center on purposeful formative assessment
and analysis of student learning.
The Dual Immersion Committee has been actively meeting and evaluation this first year’s roll

A s

out. We have been using an instrument for self-assessment, looking carefully at the entire
program, curriculum, and assessments.
Maggie Sawyer and Maria Alvarez are at CABE in Long Beach this week.

Next year, we are looking at full Kinder, first and second grade classes.

GEAR Up
Grant

Gear Up with UC Davis and Butte College joined forces for our entire middle school providing a
day at Butte College. Students were able to tour the campus and get a up and personal look at
college life and programs. Butte College toid us that Hamilton City students asked the best
questions in comparison to other schools. It was a great day. Students were well behaved and
talk about going to college was heard from many.

Parent
Outreach

Our last parent luncheon featured a performance by our Dual Immersion first grade students
and was well attended.

Parent outreach continues through morning coffee with the principal, parent newsletters, APTT,
and Howl Home postcards home (parents report that they greatly appreciate the home/school
contacts from teachers).

Safety

Give our updated goals and objectives in our newly approved Safety Plan, HES is
concentrating on developing muscle memory for all students and staff. We recently had a
lockdown drill which provided us with feedback, both strengths and challenges, to improve our
process and fine-tune our systems.

Upcoming
events

Be sure to stop in to our upcoming Book Fair (starting Friday, March 29th).
ELPAC testing for ELs is coming to an end in the next week.
We are gearing up for State testing--beginning next week for our Middle School students.




Hamilton High School

HUSD Board
March 2019

Report

1. Attendance/Enrollment- Current Enrollment is 288 students (9-76; 10"-

76; 11'-48; 12”‘-87). Over a 96% attendance rate for the school year.
2. Frosh Incoming 9" Grader Info Night on February 12- successful evening,
we have currently 60 Frosh pre-enrolled or that we are waiting to receive

information from.
3. Upcoming Professional Development- Mrs. Mercado attended the CLTA

Conference; Mrs. Funderburk and her student teacher, Cecilia Romero
attended the CATE Conference in late February; Mr. Martin continues his

ATE m
contin

eetings to meet requirements for his CTE credential; Mr. Oseguera
ues his ACSA Special Education Academy trainings through March

2019; HUSD District-wide inservice will be on Friday March 29"-itis a

student non-attendance day.
4. School Activities & Events- We have completed the 3" Quarter as of March

15™ and will be mailing Report Cards on March 22"

a.
b.

Spring Sports are underway- Baseball; Softball; and Track & Field
Counselors will be going on the Campus tours to Southern California
on March 24-26".

Open House will be on Thursday April 4™ at 6:30pm. All are invited
to attend. We will also have an LCAP information table at Open
House.

The HUSD Spring Concert will be held on April 11" at 6:30pm in the
HHS Gym.

CAASPP will begin in late April. Our 11" Grades will be testing in
Math, English, and Science (CAST Test).

Spring Break begins on April 19™. We will return to classes on April

29th



Jolene Towne

M

From: Diane Holliman

Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2019 12:10 PM
To: Charles Tracy; Jolene Towne

Subject: Board Report

In regards to the March 27" Board meeting, | will be presenting the 2™ Interim. | do not have anything to report in
addition.

There are no current facility projects at this time.

Let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you,

Diane

Diane Holliman, Chief Business Official
Hamilton Unified School District

dholliman@husdschools.org
530-826-3261 x6011

10 1



ABSTRACT: GEAR UP GRANT PROPOSAL
Applicant Name: University of California, Davis
UC Davis GEAR UP Rural Valley Partnership Project

The UC Davis GEAR UP Rural Valley Partnership Project (GU) will focus all efforts on a
rural and depressed agricultural area of the Northern Sacramento Valley of California. The
project proposes to serve 1741 students in two cohort groups of 6th and 7th graders enrolled at
the seven (7) high poverty middle schools including Hamilton Elementary, C.K. Price Middle,
Williams Upper Elementary, Willows Intermediate, George T Egling Middle, Lloyd Johnson
Junior High, and Vista Preparatory. These cohorts will feed into Hamilton High, Orland High,
Williams Junior Senior High, Willows High, Colusa High, Pierce High, and Red Bluff High
schools resulting in seven-year “pathways” of GU Participants from middle school to
postsecondary education. The region has some of the lowest postsecondary education attainment
rates in the State of California and a very high severity of need.

Goal 1- Increase The Academic Performance & Preparation For Post-Secondary Education Of
GEAR UP Students, with the following objectives: 50% of GU cohort will pass Integrated

Math 1 by the end of 9[h grade, 35% of GU cohort will pass Integrated Math 2 by the end of
10th grade, 30% of GU cohort will pass Integrated Math 3 by the end of the 1 lth grade.

Goal 2 - Increase The Rate of High School Graduation and Enrollment In Postsecondary
Education with the following objectives: 90% of GU cohort will graduate from high school.
75% of GU cohort will enroll in postsecondary education, 45% of GU cohort will place into
college-level Math and English without need for remediation, 70% of GU cohort in college

will persist from fall to fall.

Goal 3 - Increase GEAR UP Students’ and Their Families” Knowledge Of Post- Secondary
Education Options, Preparation, And Financing with the following objectives: 50% of GU
cohort and parents will demonstrate knowledge of available financial aid and the costs
postsecondary education, 50% of GU cohort will demonstrate knowledge of the importance of
pursuing and the process in enrolling in postsecondary education, 30% of Parents of GU
cohort will actively engage in activities associated with assisting students in their academic
preparation for college.
The project also focuses on reduction of remediation and increasing postsecondary persistence.
The Project has a large focus on partner and community collaboration through the formation of a
GEAR UP Advisory Board for culture change and create vertical teaming and alignment to
Institutes of Higher Education. The Partners of the Project include: Shasta Community College,
Chico State University, Expect More Tehama, College Options Inc.,Glenn County Office of
Education, Tehama County Department of Education, Colusa County Office of Education, Zion
Christian Ministries, National University, California Education Round Table Intersegmental
Coordinating Committee, CoBro Inc, Red Bluff Union Elementary School District, Red Bluff
High School District, Hamilton Unified School District, Willows Unified School District, Colusa
Unified School District, Pierce Unified School District, Williams Unified School District, and

Orland Unified School District.

11



12

GEAR UP Rural Valley Partnership
UC Davis
Goals & Priorities
Goal 1- Increase The Academic Performance & Preparation For Post-Secondary Education Of
GEAR UP Students with the following objectives: 50% of GU cohort will pass Integrated Math 1 by

the end of 9mgrade, 35% of GU cohort will pass Integrated Math 2 by the end of 10th grade, 30%
of GU cohort will pass Integrated Math 3 by the end of the 11mgrade.

Goal 2 - Increase The Rate of High School Graduation and Enrollment In Postsecondary
Education with the following objectives: 90% of GU cohort will graduate from high school. 75% of
GU cohort will enroll in postsecondary education, 45% of GU cohort will place into college-level
Math and English without need for remediation, 70% of GU cohort in college will persist from fall
to fall.

Goal 3 - Increase GEAR UP Students’ and Their Families’ Knowledge Of Post- Secondary Education
Options, Preparation, And Financing with the following objectives: 50% of GU cohort and parents
will demonstrate knowledge of available financial aid and the costs postsecondary education, 50%
of GU cohort will demonstrate knowledge of the importance of pursuing and the process in
enrolling in postsecondary education, 30% of Parents of GU cohort will actively engage in activities
associated with assisting students in their academic preparation for college.

Absolute Priority Projects

Priority 1: Providing work-based learning experiences that align with in-demand industry sectors or
occupations. The Project will implement activities through business and community relationships to
provide internships that align with in-demand industry sectors and occupations. (Agriculture,
Transportation, Distribution, etc.)

Priority 2: Promoting Science, Technology, Engineering, or Math (STEM) Education. The project will
work to support student mastery of pre-requisites to ensure success in STEM fields including
computer science. The Project will promote data sharing and collaboration through our Institute of
Higher Education Partners to support our Target Schools to address issues of low rigor in the
mastery of pre-requisites.

Priority 3: Protecting Freedom of speech and encouraging respectful interactions in a safe
educational environment, or fostering the knowledge and promoting the development of skills that
prepare students to be informed, thoughtful, and productive citizens. The project will implement a
Public Speaking curriculum that satisfies this priority focus area.



140ddNS/SIDIAYIS Advaan
QSNH ¥04 311NS GNOTD IAILVIED J8OAV<I00D
- T T T — S3ISNIDI 380AY
NOIL4Od 307D TYNNNY SSO
e — T SIOVHINOD AINROD |
= — TYMINTY TYANNY| 6T/0/90 | S1/10/£0 | 000ZZ S S1001 AYIA0D3IY QUOMSSYd| TZE-6T INIDNI IDYNYIN-OHOZ|
TYMANIY TVNNNV| 6T/06/90 | 8T/10/Z0 | vETvO'T 3 W313-AH3S INYVTY 391 TYNNNY| 62T-6T 34 SNOTM
f—— T B SNYIA [LNV o 585;
TYM3N3¥ TVANNY| 6T/0€/90 | 8T/T0/L0 | 00°00T 3 \DYO'ASNNOLTNIAVH, IATIHLIY OL LN TYNNNY i [ AGQVA 0D SINVE S|
~ IYM3INIY TYNNNY| 6T/05/90 | 81/10/0 | 00005 s 1D3dSNI AL3IVS/INIVIA 1ITTYH04 TYNNNY IN3S|  Zvb-6T _ ONNGNVH TYRILVIN V10AOL|
TYM3NIY WWNNNY| 6T/08/90 | 81/10/Z0 | 8698 $ 34Y2 404 dIHSYIANIN TVANNY| 92161 ~_ ALIGOWWO? ¥3dn|
1DVYLINOD 4vIA OML| 07/0E/90 | 8T/T0/L0 | 00°000°9 $ (SHA 2) 190ddNS/HOUYIS LNVANIININAINS| 21761 HOYV3S ¥3dNS-S1D1¥151d T00HDS TS|
TYM3INIH IWNNNV| 61/0€/90 | ST/T0/L0 | 00°005 3 dIHSYITNIN TYNNNY| ¥8T-6T B SIOIM1SId TOOHDS TIVIA'S
TYMINIY TVNNNY| 6T/0E/00 | 8T/10/20 | 00°LTET 3 INILSAS SSITTYIM| P61 SIONY < IHS|
TYM3INIY IYNNNY| 6T/0€/90 | 8T/10/L0 | 00'00EE 3 dIHSYIFWIN IYNNNY| 927 i 240 S30IAY3S 100HOS |
NOILVYIdX3 NO M3N3¥| ZZ/0£/90 | 6T/10/L0 | 0SLZ61T $ (LNIWITYOV YA £) WYHDOHd HLVIN QILVETII0DV SH, 9/b-6T | SH HLYW Q3.1v437320V ONINYY3T IINVSSYINIY
NOILY¥IdX3 NO M3INIY| 6T/0£/90 | ST/10/L0 | 0S61£°0T 3 ONIQVIY GILY¥T1ID0V '8 09€ UVIS| SOT-61 313 HLYI G3LVHI1300V ONINYVIT IONVSSYINGY
IONVAQY NI S¥ILITT/dINDI NUNLIY| €2/T0/€0 | O9T/TO/M0 | SS6Tvit $ 140ddNS/IDIAYIS/HINOL/ISYIT ¥3d0D IGIM 1Sid| T NYDUOW AVY
T20Z M3IN3Y /3Sv31| T¢/0€/90 | 9T/T0/L0 | T1'28S $ 3Sv3T Y3LIN I9VISOd WT13|  Evb SIMOB AIN.LId]
.i: TYMINIY IYNNNY| 6T/0E/00 | 81/10/Z0 | 000ZT T 5 DNIDIYd INNOJSIA Y04 dIHSYISNIN TYANNY|  Ter SI9ALP SNQ 10) BUNS31 LAG-XINYHY
TYM3INIY TYNNNY| 6T/0€/90 | 81/T0/L0 | 00°06 3 SINIWNSISSY DILTTHLY TYNINNY| 862-6T - VavsN|
~ HINOW O1 HINOW/TYNNNV| 61/05/30 | 8T/10/z0 | 000859 ] i J0¥INCD 1534 3QIM 1Sid| oby T - SAUY
301AY3S HO4 1OVYINOD IWNNNV| 6T/0E/90 | ST/T0/Z0 | 00°005Z 3 INYITINSNOD S31¥3V 8 SAVdTvD| 00€-67 AY12 YNNVHOT |
— — SINVIINVYH &é| £T/05/90 | umowqun | £1'886'0T 8| 1¥0ddns® 3)IAY3S -VIVQ/INOHd 3GIM 1Sia|  zvv | .
~ TYMINIYIVNNNY| 6T/05/50 | ST/10/Z0 | 26912 3 LNINIDYNVIN/IDUOLS 358 VIVG dN YOvE| £0T-6T ) i SANIYLINN-AAAYS Lif
-  IYM3NI¥TYNNNY| 6T/0€/90 | ST/10/20 | 052207 s JUYMLIOS 1HOddNS 8 LNIVIN 373343 4330 £0T-61 o T SOINOUYA-AAAYS 1
- - TYM3INIY TIYNNNY| 6T/0E/90 | 81/10/£0 | #1615 S YIDYNYIN INIHOVIN TYNLHIA| STE-6T FYVMINA -AAAYS LI
 YM3N3YTYNNNY| 6T/0E/90 | ST/T0/L0 | LT 616 B $ 1¥O4dNS/SS300V INFING TYNNNY SWava| t1zet | ~ SIaV3I-NOILYINa3 Ol
- ~ 6T/0€/9.SON3| 6T/0£/90 | 8T/10/20 | 00005 3 NOILYDIddV d4Y Z LyD-INVLINSNOD 3Lve3| 0961 _

- 15VHINOD WY3A 33HL| T2/05/90 | ST/T0/Z0 | 00°00E9 $ T TZ V31 LYD-LNVLIINSNOD 3Lve3| 60T-6T T T
 IYM3N34 IYNNNV| 6T/0£/90 | 8T/T0/Z0 | 00CTZT 3 LY0ddNS '8 3DIAY3IS THYMLIOS 34¥D TYNINNY|_ 6vC-6T {SADIYLNN) ANVILEYIH
o TYMINIY TYNNNY| 6T/0€/90 | 8T/T0/Z0 | 0L°9v6 $ T SH-AY3S WHVTY 3414 TVNNNY| bST-6t o - 3414 NIGAVH
__ YMaN3y TYNNNV| 6T/0E/90 | 81/10/20 | 6T'3¢6'E $ J¥YMLI0S IDNVANILLY 39V1S| £0T-67 ANNINOY
1207 MIN3Y /3sva1| T¢/10/0T | 9T/T0/TT | 08°049 $ o 3ISv31 WILIN I9VISOd ISIG/SH|  bzv ~ SNOILATOS DNV 44|
_ IYMIN3YTVANNY| 6T/0£/90 | 8T/10/L0 | 86207 $ (140ddNS '8 INIVIN AVHEN) ANILSIA| Z0T-81 1SIG-SNOLLNTOS TOOHIS LIFTION|
1YM3N3Y TVANNY| 6T/0E/90 | 8T/10/20 | 00°'sz8 s “WV¥D0YUd INIW3OV1d/153L INIANIS 15| SZE-6T - e 1953
|.. ALLM/INIVW YA €[ 22/ST//0 | 6T/ST/v0 | 89°25TY $ dIND3 HO4 AINVHYYM IXI YA E| TEh-61 T OwaTiEg
WYMDOYd 340D NOWWOD ¥A S| TZ/0£/90 | ST/ST/90 | 16'Evv'EE $ — INVNDONd HLVN AVaAN3A3| zzsst | - - —= Wé
- TYM3NIY TYNNNY| 6T/0E/50 | 81/10/20 | 00'0BT _ s dIHSHIAWIW TIVNNNY| TIT-61 _dIHSY3ENIN 01500
I TYMINIY IVNNNY| 6T/0€/90 | ST/T0/L0 | 00°0SL $ ~ 3NIMNO/TYMINTY DI HOLDNYLSNI ABDI| TSZ-61 o “VIGIN [LTNW ATD
[— TYMINIY TVNNY| 6T/08/90 | 81/T0/L0 | 00000T 5 dIHSYIGNIN IAIM LSIa TYNNNY|  80T-6T 085v)
TYMINIY IWANNY! 61/05/30 | 8T/10/£0 | 00'OVEY $ INFING LAWVYS/INIVIN TYNNYN|  £11-6% " NSSY GUYOS 100HIS VINYOATTYD
i TYMINIY TVINNY| 6T/06/90 | ST/10/£0 | 00'GZ8'T S L¥0d3Y WY 8SYD| €TH-6T NSSY Qyv0d J00HIS VINYOATY))|
TYMINIY IWNANNY| 6T/0E/30 | 8T/10/20 | 00'9€€’S $ dIHSYIEWIN IVNNNY| OST-61 NSSY 0¥v08 100HIS VINYOIYD
_ WOUd SISV/SHYVAS A8 Qlvd Luvd| 6T/0E/90 | 8T/T0/L0 | 00100099 $ ___ Wv¥904d T00HDS ¥313V| SrZ-6T 810 STHID N SAO8
WM3NIYVNNNY| 6T/0E/90 | 81/10/L0 | 00TIZZ S WNNNY-NOILYDIJILLON SSYW/¥3TVIa OLNY| Tzz-sT  auvomovig
. TVMINFGIVANNV] 6T/0E/90 | 81/10/40 | 00'00LZ 3 140ddNS B INIVIN TVANNY-4IOVNVIN WO 83M | TeI-81 QYVORNY |
TYMINIY TYNNNY| 6T/05/90 | 8T/10/40 | 00'000°F 3 V1VQ 8 DIANOD TAT ONZ| TS1-61 - R 3WVYMII0S T1DVI-SINIY
R WWAINIY IVNNNY| 6T/0E/90 | 8T/10/£0 | 00'989°ST L S LY0ddNS 2 INIVIN I¥VMLI0S JONYANILLY INIANLS| 6vT-6T JWYMLIOS TIDVI-SINIY
TYM3AN3Y IYNNNY| 6T/05/90 | ST/T0/L0 | Zb'8E6'T $ SAIHS¥IANAIN S, TYdIDNIYd TVNNNY| €261 o VSV
- - TYM3N3Y WINNY| 6T/08/90 | 8T/10/L0 | 00°80€ $ W33 ¥IVd3¥/1DISNI WEVIY 34| 8Zc-61 WHVYINDDY
$5300ud TYMaNaE {LvQ ON3 |31V LAviS |  61-87 1503 TWANNY Svizd 70d Isv1 __JWvNd@oaNaA

13



Aamilton Unified School District

620 Canal Street Charles Tracy, Superintendent (530) 826-3261
P.O. Box 488 (530) 826-0440 (Fax)
Hamilton City, CA 95951 www.husdschools.org
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
MUSICAL INSTRUMENTS

Maximum Bid Not to Exceed $30,000

Bid must include the following:

ITEMS QUALITY MINIMUM | PRICE PERITEM | TOTAL INCLUDED IN BID
Baritone Sax Concert 2
Flute Concert 10
Clarinets Concert 10
Trumpet-Coronate Concert 10
Raritone Horn Concert 2
Alto Sax Concert 4
Tuba (Brass) Concert 2
Tenor Sax Concert 2
Bass Clarinets Concert 2
Trombone Concert 4
Tuba Chairs Concert 2
Bass Drum Concert 1
Bass Drum Stand Concert 1
Bell Set Concert 1
Snare Drum Concert 4
Baritone/Euphonium Concert 2

The above list is inclusive in the bid package. All bids must state the make, model and style of each musical instrument; bid
must have a per-item cost and a total for the entire bid. Partial bids will be considered but may be rejected by the District.
Bids with all instruments included will have greater consideration. Hamilton Unified School District reserves the right to
reject any and all bids. Bids must be emailed no later than Tuesday, April 9, 2019 via email at ctracy@husdschools.org or via
fax at (530) 826-0440.

Sincerely,

(7 Tz

Charles Tracy, District Superintendent
HTTIton Unified School District

The Hamilton Unified School District will provide a safe, rigorous, and engaging educational experience
that promotes student academic success, respect, and citizenship in a caring environment.

SAMALTON URTITER SCNUOL DISTRICT



J. Soon, Consulting

March 8, 2019

Mr. Charles Tracy
Superintendent

Hamilton Unified School District
620 Canal St.

P O Box 488

Hamilton City, CA. 95951

Mr. Tracy,

Thank you for this opportunity to present to you this proposal to assist your food service as a consuitant.
This proposal contains a review of the different aspects of the operation. | have segmented the proposal and
provide bullet objectives and information.

A) Review of present operations. | would like the opportunity to observe muitiple meals prior to the
end of this school year.

B) Review of program staffing. This will give me a view of present staff and the needs that will be filled
for the upcoming year. With the changes that will need to be made, | would like the opportunity to
review and discuss prior to final decisions.

C) Review of present menus and utilization of the Federal Commodity program items. Upon review, |
would like to amend menu where necessary and move to maximum use of the commodities where
prudent. This will be part of the training process of the food service manager that | plan to install.

D) Review program adherence to the USDA School Lunch mandates and policies.

E) Recommend program review and potential enhancements. These will include but not limited to;
Purchasing program, menu cycles and rotation, inventory controls for both street purchased and
federal commodity items.

F) Recommend proper utilization of staff resources available. Review training levels of staff and work
with HR department in creating an on-going training program for all staff to help development and
strengthening.

G) Review all areas of record keeping and reports as required by the USDA School Lunch program.

H) Work with staff to create and maintain fun and innovative events to create excitement and
participation of the students and staff of the District.

OUR #1 OBJECTIVE WILL ALWAYS BE TO FEED THE KIDS i!!

OVERVIEW;

If it is agreeable, | propose to start my consulting with the District on or around the 6% of May 2019. This will
allow me to observe meals prior to school closing. What [ observe will help me in preparing my plans for the
upcoming school year. Additionally, | will have the opportunity to interface with the staff and understand
better their level of training and their ideas for program enhancements. After this period, | will be better
equipped to offer recommendations as to the placement of staff to help ensure maximum effectiveness and
efficiencies of the food service program. This is key to assist staff to become proficient and strong in their
jobs and become as successful as possible in their jobs.

15



16

J. Soon Consulting

It was shared at an earlier meeting that | was in attendance that the financial results are not a large concern
at this time. Therefore unless corrected, my initial focus will be on program review and staff evaluation and

Inna_tarm ctranathaninn
1UNG-CI SUCNYUISning.

FEE SCHEDULE;

My experience has taught me that most school districts require a 2 year commitment for consulting. | do not
see any indications at this time that would make Hamilton Unified School District any different. The process
takes time to evaluate, recognize and though discussion agree upon a plan to put into action. Then once
program is installed there will a need to allow to operate and fine tune. As there are two schools in the
District and different levels of grades, separate programs need to identified and put into place.

| propose a fee for July 1, 2019- June 30, 2020 of $15,000.00 for both schools. For the period of May 6,
2019-June 30, 2019, | propose a fee of $1,000.00.

We will come to agreement for the 2020-2021 school year at a later date. In all cases my fee for the second
year has been 20% less than the first year's fee.

Thank you for this opportunity to present this proposal to the Hamilton Unified School District. | am available
for any clarification of information shared.

Jeffe?y (Joey) Soon
J Soon Consulting
4979 4t Ave
Orland, CA 95963
EIN# 46-059402



BOARD AGENDA ITEM — RESOLUTION RE EXEMPTION FROM LOCAL LAND USE PLANNING
REQUIREMENTS; AND, DESIGNATION OF DISTRICT AS LEAD AGENCY FOR CEQA STUDY PURPOSES

The attached Resolution will, as a part of the planning process for the proposed expansion of Hamilton
High School, exempt the District, as a State Agency, from local land use planning requirements. This
would relieve the District from resolving conflicts between State mandated siting, design and
construction requirements for public schools, and local codes which may either be in direct conflict with,
or may exceed State requirements. The District is required to follow State requirements in order to
receive design approval and be eligible for State Facilities funding; County requirements different from
those required by the State would be unapproved and not funded by the State.

The attached Resolution would also designate the District as the Lead Agency for California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) study purposes. This designation will allow the District, rather than
the County or State, to act as the controlling agency for this project: powers would include setting
project scope; reviewing all project documentation and findings; and acting and adopting all necessary

findings and mitigation actions.

District staff recommends approval.

17



18

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 18-19-110

IN THE MATTER OF: The exemption of the Hamilton Unified District from County zoning and
use ordinances for the proposed Hamilton High School Expansion Project in Glenn County, as
well as designating the District as Lead Agency under the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 53094 of the Government Code, School Districts are
allowed to exempt specific projects from local zoning and use ordinances, as well as designating
itself as the Lead Agency under the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA); and

WHEREAS, exemption from local zoning and use ordinances would relieve the District
from resolving conflicts between State mandated siting, design and construction requirements for
public schools, and local codes which may either be in direct conflict with, or may exceed State
requirements; and

WHEREAS; the District is required to follow State requirements in order to receive
design approval and be eligible for State Facilities funding, and County requirements different
from or above those required by the State would be unapproved and not funded; and

WHEREAS, this exemption will benefit the District’s capital facilities program as well as
the County’s planning process; and

WHEREAS, this exemption will preserve the District and County from any potential
conflicts between local ordinances and mandated State requirements for public school siting,
design and construction; and

WHEREAS, the District may, by statute, designate itself as the Lead Agency for
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) study and action purposes, and carry out those
functions required of a Lead Agency; now

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, by a recorded two thirds affirmative vote, that
the Hamilton Unified School District exempt itself from Glenn County zoning and use
ordinances for the proposed Hamilton High School Expansion Project in the County of Glenn, as
well as designating the District as the Lead Agency under the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).



The above RESOLUTION was duly passed by the Board of Trustees of the Hamilton Unified
School District at its regularly scheduled meeting on February 27, 2019, by the following roll

call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINED:

Signed and approved by me after passage.

Gabriel Leal, President

Wendall Lower, Clerk

19



20

BOARD AGENDA ITEM-Adoption of Draft Demographic Study for Hamilton Unified School District

The attached Demographic Study of Hamilton Unified School District for the 2018/2019 school year, has
been prepared by SchoolWorks, Inc. of Roseville, CA. The study indicates that the District previously
experienced declining enrollment overall the past 10 years, from 840 students attending during the
2009/10 school year to a current enrollment of 713 students.

Hamilton Unified School District is projected to decline in enrollment by 2.81% (or 20 students) for the
2019/20 school year. The District is projected to grow over the next six (6) years, with a projected
enrollment of 823 students in the 2024/25 school year. This is a total growth of 110 students, which is
an increase of 15.43%.

Future impacts from new housing development is predicated upon information provided by local
municipalities on the development of 250 housing units over the next six (6) years. If the building rates
increase or decrease, then the timeline shown in this Study will need to be modified accordingly. These
projected new developments in the District's boundary are not expected to generate any students next
year. A total of 171 students are expected from new homes over the next six (6) years.

It is recommended that the Study be updated in the next two to three years, in order to identify any
potential changing demographic circumstances within the District.

District staff recommends adoption of the Demographic Study



620 Canal St.
Hamilton City, CA 95951
PH: (530) 826-4014

Mr. Charles Tracy,
Superintendent

DEMOGRAPHIC STUDY 2018/19

HAMILTON UNIFIED
SCHOOL DISTRICT

Facility Problem Solvers

T

February 2019

SchoolWorks, Inc.

8331 Sierra College Blvd., #221
Roseville CA, 95661

Phone: 916-733-0402
www.SchoolWorksGIS.com

21



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study

2018/19
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
INTRODUCTION . weerrersansnssarnnsenss 1
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY iiuissaisssuuciassisusiounsuseussnassuassnsi saasdassiunsassas sovsinsssntindoussassosssosrsasasivrissobssssssisionin 1
METHODOLOGY ...ocivrinaeinransannsrsssssssssansesssnssnssassssansassassssssnsrsssssssans siRsRistinR RS AR RTINS RA L S ST ee R 2
HISTORIC BIRTH RATES .. ccciitisesirernnamnnsiosssssessisnnsessensntocssmsnennasnsssssssssssossssssssssssssasassnsssnsssassassssssnssass 6
TRANSITIONAL KINDERGARTEN ....ccuuuenismsisssnssansnsassnssnssssssssssssasssssssssssssssonsssnsssssnanses 7
HISTORIC ENROLLMENT AND TRENDS......cccvemrmmmnnsinsmmssrsssnnssssnmsnsnrsnssssmesnrsssessassssnes 8
NEW HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS .....ccioviieermimmmmmsemsmssnsnnscnsassrasas .10
CLASSROOM COUNTS AND CAPACITY .....corsrireerannnssnssannnes 12
SCHOOL PROJECTIONS. . ciisisssiuinsnsmsusanaisioniissinsssinasssssnisisnaistninsiorsssisisssssassisisansosivnasnonsnsvosissoisokvarioss 13
DISTRICT PROJECTIONS PP P PP PRy SRS e U AU 20
SCHOOL FACILITY UTILIZATION ..cuieiiisssssessssnssnsssnnssassessnsnssssssranssnssssssasssssasssssssnssnnssnnsssasensnsassssssssnns 22

February 2019

Page i




Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study

2018/19
CHARTS
Page
10 YEAR ENROLLMENT HISTORY AND 6 YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTIONS .....ccorcrascsmnssassransnnases 3
2019/2020 1 YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTION BY SCHOOL ....ccoctvssuersnsseessarsresssnsnassaassasssanssensssnness 4
KINDERGARTEN PROJECTIONS BASED ON BIRTHS.......ccc.ctiimisermienmmicssiossessiensessaceasessesssnnaesnssenasessseres 6
KINDERGARTEN ENROLLMENT TO BIRTH RATIO ...cccctiiniimniensemsasssansansenssessssssnsssnssenssensssnssnssnssnsssssanns 7
RETENTION RATES SINCE KINDERGARTEN ......ccccosennsrunsunssnaransiesesssssssnntsnsessessonsssssssseasassasssnssansasssnses 8
HISTORIC ENROLLMENT AND COHORTS ...cerereemsernsensesssssssorenmnssnssmmmssasmsmsssansnssssnssasssnnssssosssrnssassnsssse 9
NEW DEVELOPMENT CONTRACTION ......ccuttiereissrssssssssssassunssenssnssasssssssssnssssssnnsassssssssnsenenersssssanssnnans 11
CAPACITY & PROJECTED ENROLLMENT
HAMILTON ELEM .....ciiainmnsnicinmasarnsnensnssanssissasssssssnnssnsessesssansansssnsasnsasasnanses 15
HAMILTON HIGH ... SeRES NN eS SR RO N NN R SeNiS A PeePeeEe RO NSRRI RTIESsURISTEsIENIR SR RRRRISRIS 17
ELLA BARKLEY HIGH .....icccomiiinriieiimeniieinsneseiarecseessncesseroneerssenssessessosseusassssessnsssossransosannsans 18
STUDENT ATTENDANCE IMATRIX....cuuieusirearermssmsnsssssnssssssanssssssiassssasissnsassssanssnssssssssssnsssssssssssssssnnssses 19
10 YEAR ENROLLMENT HISTORY & 6 YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTION.......ccicrcneiransnsnssnsessnnnnnsaneesnes 20
ONE YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTION SUMMARY ......ccooerrmmermnranarasssssneens 21
ENROLLMENT PROJECTION SUMMARY BY GRADE .......cccovneiiureisarmnsssiorcssassenrsssssssssassnsenmsennassssaranses 21
ENROLLMENT PROJECTION SUMMARY BY SCHOOL .....cciicmimmmearursmsemsmssesmssssarssssssnsessssssssssssssassnssasess 22
SCHOOL FACILITY UTILIZATION c.cceriieiniressasssssssnssmnssenssonsssnssnssessisassssassensssnsansssssssansssssssnnsssssssatsnssasns 22
February 2019
Page ii

23



24

Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study

2018/19
MAPS
Page
DISTRICT MAP WITH STUDENT RESIDENTIAL LOCATION........cccoiciicmmmtereeisissessinenansntaninsenensesisansassanans 5
NEW HOUSING DEVELOPIMENTS ....ccccareimmmmnsssrmsssssssassesssentansnsrussasssssssssssssssnsssrassssssssssssss 10
SCHOOL BOUNDARY MAP
HAMILTON ELEM ...coeeiieieiiciiniiinecemsieseeseeseonsoemsestossssssaststonsetsssssnssass resnsssessssssessnsnsassnsanessssane 14
HAMILTON HIGH ....ooeicemeeeieieieiiimrieecennisicesnsssetsasansensnesusstasansssessensensesssressiorsessenasnaunesssessosass 16
February 2019
Page iii




Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Introduction

This Demographic Study provides a comprehensive enroliment analysis for the Hamilton Unified School
District. The district-wide and school-specific enrollment projections are meant to serve as a planning tool to
help with both long- and short-term planning. Demographic Studies examine the factors that influence
school enrollments, namely trends in demographics, birth rates, and housing development. They are also
used as a tool to identify certain facility planning requirements such as capacity, utilization of existing
facilities, planning for modernization or new construction, and attendance boundary redistricting. This Study
provides information based on the 2018/19 District enroliments and programs, local planning policies and
residential development. As these factors change and timelines are adjusted, the Demographic Study should
be revised to reflect the most current information.

Executive Summary

Hamilton Unified School District consists of one (1) elementary school, one (1) comprehensive high school,
and one (1) continuation high school. Hamilton Unified School District has experienced declining enroliment
overall the past 10 years from 840 students attending during the 2009/10 school year to a current enrollment

of 713 students.

Hamilton Unified School District is projected to decline in enrollment by 2.81% (or 20 students) for the
2019/20 school year. The District is projected to grow over the next six (6) years, with a projected enrollment
of 823 students in the 2024/25 school year. This is a total growth of 110 students, which is an increase of

15.43%.

Future impacts from new housing development is predicated upon information provided by local
municipalities on the development of 250 housing units over the next six (6} years. If the building rates
increase or decrease, then the timeline shown in this Study will need to be modified accordingly. These
projected new developments in the District's boundary are not expected to generate any students next year.
A total of 171 students are expected from new homes over the next six (6) years.

Based on current District loading standards and classroom space, the District has a net classroom capacity of
944 students, and a current enroliment of 713. This gives the District a current utilization factor of 75.5%.
The projected utilization factor in six (6) years will be 87.2%. This assumes loading standards remain constant

and no additional facilities are built or removed.

These projections assume the transfers between schools remain consistent. If changes in facilities,
schedules, programs or policies are made, then the patterns may be impacted.

February 2019
Page 1

aciflly Proolem Sohvery

25



26

Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Methodology

The enrollment projections for each school are generated using a State standard weighted cohort trend
analysis. The basic projections are created by studying the individual geographic areas. Once the trends are
analyzed for each area, the base projections are modified using the following procedures:

a)

b)

c

d)

f)

Birth rates are used to project future kindergarten enrollment. It is assumed if the births
indicate there was an increase of 4% one year, then there will be a corresponding 4%
increase in the kindergarten class five (5) years later.

New Housing Development rates and yield factors are compared to the historical impact of
development, and if the future projections exceed the historical values, the projections are
augmented accordingly.

Inter-District student counts are not included in the base geographic trend analysis since
these students reside outside of the District. Therefore, the current number of students-
per-school and students-per-grade are added to the base projections.

Intra-District students are those who transfer from one school to another. The number of
students transferring into and out of each school are calculated and used to determine the
difference between the projections for students living in each attendance area versus those
that are projected to attend the school.

The projections for special education students and alternative programs are created by
assuming those programs typically serve a percentage of the total District popuiation.
Therefore, as the District grows or declines, the enrollment in those programs would
increase or decrease accordingly.

The number of students living in the boundary are used to generate the cohort factors. The
weighted average of the three (3) years was determined with the current year weighted
50%, the prior year 33.3% and the last year 16.7%. This gives the current trends more value
in determining the projections. Those cohorts are then used to determine the students who
will be residing in each attendance area for the following years.

February 2019
Page 2



Hamilton Unified School! District

Demographic Study

2018/19

10 Year Enrollment History and 6 Year Enrollment Projections

10 Year Enrollment History &
6 Year Enroliment Projection

840

789

759

341

318
311

Students

710

106

| 302

12/13

20/21 21/22

738
723 719 713
637  ggp 693 696
283 323 b
302 287 | {259 | |22 |] 268 | | 287
85
94
= ]
i
|
340 3
Il‘i-' W T.
13/14 15/16 16/17 19/20
YEAR
OK-6 0O7-8 [D—D9-12

823
763
730
711
_ 335
| 316
283 | [300]
113
| 97
102 %0 |
|

22/23 23/238 24/25

The Hamilton Unified School District has grown over the past ten (10) years from an enroliment of 840 in

2009/10 to the current enrollment of 713. This chart provides a summary of the last ten (10) years of historic
enrollment and projected enrollment for the next six (6) years. The color orange represents the historic and

projected enrollment for the elementary school grades K-6. The color green represents the historic and

projected enrollment for the middle school grades 7-8. The color blue represents the historic and projected

enrollment for the high school grades 9-12. The entire District enroliment is shown at the top of each bar.

February 2019
Page 3

27



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

2019/2020 1 Year

Hamilton Unified School District

Enrollment Projections

YEAR 19/20, 1 Year Proj.

School IK K 1 2 3 4 E 6 2 8 8 0 11 12  TOTAL
Hamiiton Elem 16 50 39 41 49 41 44 60 38 47 0 0 0 0 425
Hamilton High 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 62 75 73 49 259
Ella Barkley High o] 0 0 0 0 0] 0 0 0 0 2 5 1 9
Totals 16 50 39 41 49 41 44 60 38 47 62 77 78 51 693
Current CatPADS 15 47 41 39 47 42 60 41 48 35 ) 80 51 90 713
Net Change 1 3 -2 2 2 1 16 19 -10 12 15 -3 27 -39 -20
Cohort Change -8 0 10 -6 2 0 -3 -1 27 0 -2 0

Hamilton Unified School District has a current enrollment of 713 students. The projected enroliment for next
year shows a decrease of 20 students. This one (1) year summary analyzes the net change between the
current District enrollment by school and by grade, and the projected enrollment for 2019/20.

The cohort change factor indicates the change in the number of students for each grade compared to the
number of students in the prior grade the previous year.

These projections assume the transfers between schools remain consistent. If changes in facilities,
schedules, programs or policies are made, then the patterns may be impacted.

The students living in the boundary generate the cohort factors which are calculated for the past three (3)
years and the weighted average is determined. Those cohorts are then used to determine the students who
will be residing in each attendance area for the following years. Next the attendance factor is used to
determine the net enroliment for each grade. The attendance factor is determined by analyzing the current
year of students to see how many Inter- and Intra-district transfers there are.

February 2019
Page 4




Hamilton Unified School District
Demographic Study
2018/19

Hamilton
Unified (K-12)

This map shows the District boundary along with the location of each student based on their residential
address. This geographic data is the foundation for our demographic analysis. Any red dots outside the
District boundary will represent students attending one of the District schools or programs but have a
residence outside the District. This map also identifies different areas of student population density.

February 2019
Page 5

2ty Proliem Si

29



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Historic Birth Rates

The following section is an analysis of the number of births in the Hamiiton Unified School District. The
number of births are compiled by zip code regions and provided by the Department of Health. The zip code
areas do not exactly match the District boundaries and therefore the zip codes 95943 and 95951, which are
in the District, were used for this analysis.

Kindergarten Projections based on Births

Historic K* Enroliment compared to Births K Projections

30 - “| 55 [H - - o -1 80 H -} L. - L 1 L ol -
55 51 55

as a |
20 - 1 L & L L E i 45 | || a3 || 45 [ 4 ' 8 i i It 4
36 35 33 34

10 - sl I = e I k5 ' o ) il i i

(-}

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

School Year (Births are 5 years earlier)

[—K* students ——Births|

*Kindergarten Totals mayinclude some Transitional Kindergarten students far some of the past years to more accurately
correlate a 12-month period of births to a 12-month period of enrollment.

The above figure illustrates the correlation between births in the District area and the number of
kindergarten students attending Hamilton Unified schools five (5) years later. The number of births between
2002 and 2013 has averaged about 58 per year. The recent birth rates over the past four (4) years (2014 to
2017), which will generate the kindergarten classes for the next four {4) years (2019 to 2022), have been
between 40 and 58. We have assumed that the current kindergarten capture rate of 82.46% will be
maintained in the future. The kindergarten projections shown here do not account for the impact of any
additional housing units.

February 2019
=



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Historic Kindergarten Capture Rates

Kindergarten Enrollment to Birth Ratio

120.00% 0% — ———————— —
\ 98.21%  gg 939 97.83% |
100.00% -t -g167% - — - ——  ——— — —————y 1
90.77% 75.95% 76.27%
80.00% + e e ey e Fibea ! B
82.46%
e000% +—— - —————————— 8
60.00%
4000% +— — m
20.00% T . o
!.
0.00% 4 t t ; t + + t + t - {
8 ] 2] 2 = A a 3 4 & 5 L
°© © © o o o o 1) o o o ©
o~ o~ ~ ~N ~N o~ ~ o o~ o~ o o~

School Year (Births are 5 years earlier)

This figure shows the kindergarten capture rates for the past 12 years. Since the birth data is derived from
zip code areas, which do not exactly match with the District boundaries, the capture rate also accounts for
differences in the coverage areas. Low capture rates are common when a district serves only a portion of a
large zip code area. A large capture rate is possible when families move into the area after the children were
born, but before they arrived for kindergarten. Overall, the District has had a 12 year average capture rate of

86.39%.

Transitional Kindergarten

The Transitional Kindergarten (TK) program started in 2012 to provide an extra year for young children to get
ready for kindergarten. Currently, the TK program allows four (4) year-olds who wili turn five (5) between
September 2 and December 2. Some districts allow parents with children just outside that window to also
participate in the program. Since the window for the TK program is only 3 months, participation in the TK
program is typically around 25% of the total kindergarten enrollment. In most current state processes, such
as CalPADS reporting, the State Building Program, and ADA, TK students are included with the kindergarten

numbers.

February 2019
&

31



Hamilton Unified School District
Demographic Study

2018/19

Cohort Change Since Kindergarten

100
90
80
70
! 62
59
60 -7 55 55 '!~ ,F
st lmT
50 47 s 48 NGt
—"H_\:/r.\¥ oK
40 o 80
30 _ 60
a7 afl, a8 3
20 a1 a1
39 55
10
0 j ==
K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
CURRENT GRADE

[ 118/19 Enroliment  ~f~Original K Class

This chart compares the original kindergarten class size to the current enrollment for each grade. For
example, the current 6% grade class has 41 students and six (6) years ago the kindergarten class had 36
students. Overall the class sizes have increased since kindergarten.

February 2019
Page 8




Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Historic Enrollment and Trends

Hamilton Unified School District
Historic Enroliment and Cohorts
CalPADS Enrollment Historic Cohorts Weighted

Grade 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 15to16 16to17 17t018 Average
TK 12 9 8 15

K 48 43 45 47 -5 2 2 0.8

1 43 47 37 41 -1 -6 -4 -4.2

2 56 43 47 39 0 0 2 1.0

3 36 54 41 47 -2 -2 0 -1.0

4 51 35 58 42 -1 4 1 1.7

5 38 51 36 60 0 1 2 13

6 50 37 47 41 -1 -4 5 1.0

7 46 46 37 48 -4 0 1 -0.2

8 35 45 45 35 -1 -1 -2 -1.5

9 89 54 78 77 19 33 32 30.2
10 81 91 50 80 2 -4 2 0.0
11 66 79 91 51 -2 0 1 0.2
12 87 63 70 90 -3 -9 -1 -4.0
Totals 738 697 690 713 0.1 11 3.2 19
Annual Change: -41 -7 23

This chart shows the enroliment by grade level over the past four (4) years. The cohort values were
calculated for each grade and each year, along with the weighted average for each grade. A positive cohort
value indicates that grade is expected to have more students than the previous grade last year. A negative
value would mean that the grade has fewer students compared to the previous grade last year.

In general, a positive cohort is representative of growth and a negative cohort indicates a decline in
enrollment. There are some exceptions. First grade usually has a positive cohort, as there are some students
that do not attend kindergarten at public schoaols but arrive in first grade.

Another important item to notice is the current breakdown by grade level of the student population.
Comparing the number of students in the lower grades to the upper grades can indicate potential increases
or decreases in future enrollments. Also, if there is a large class or a small class, it will slowly cause a ripple in
the enrollments as it advances a grade each year.

Finally, the annual change at the bottom of this chart indicates the net impact of the changes in enroliment
over the past few years.

February 2019
Page 9

33



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

New Housing Deveiopments

— i | ;
| | -
- a— { : L T == \'_I'_"“‘—'_ il — S e
i . —— \ | R
Hamilton i SR = ( T i __PT_‘__ —f—= £ |
Unified (9-12), L Y
e | ) / " I _-I. -

Hamilton
Unified (K-12)

I \ ¥ ‘\: “.

_ . - : SN —
L\ | o S

B | g

This close up view of the District shows the location of the projected new development areas.

February 2019
&

34



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

The projections used in this report are based on the following number of units projected from these
developments:

Hamilton Unified School District

New Development Construction

Housing Units per Year
19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25

School Year1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year5 Year 6 Totals
Hamilton Elem 0 0 50 50 50 100 250
Elementary Totals 0 0 50 50 50 100 250
Hamilton High 0 0 50 50 50 100 250
ﬂgh Totals 0 0 50 50 50 100 250

Assuming that 250 of the planned units are completed over a six (6) year period, there would be an average
of 42 new housing units per year. To determine the impact of the new housing development, each new
housing unit is multiplied by the student yield rate. Currently the District student yield rate is 0.686 students
per housing unit. This breaks down as follows:

Hamilton Unified School District
Student Yield Rate Analysis

2010 Students 2010 Student
Grade Living in District = Housing Units Yield Rate
Total K-6 302 817 0.370
Total 7-8 85 817 0.104
Total 9-12 217 1,024 0.212
Total 604 0.686

Based on 2010 Census Data for school district.

The yield rate used for new construction eligibility determination in the State building program is 0.70
students per home for K-12 districts. The yield rate in the Hamilton Unified School District is lower than the

State average.

Based on these estimated construction rates, the development will generate 0 students next year and a total
of 171 students in the next six (6) years.

February 2019
Page 11

35



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Classroom Counts and Capacity

It is important to understand that capacity and classroom counts may be viewed different ways for different
purposes. The State School Facilities Program (SFP) considers all available teaching stations excluding
physical education facilities and core facilities (e.g., libraries, multipurpose rooms, and administrative spaces),
as part of the site capacity when calculating eligibility for new construction or modernization funding. The
State also has its own loading standards per classroom as part of the eligibility determinations.

Another method for calculating capacity and number of classrooms is based on local District standards of
class size and a definition of what is considered a full day teaching station. The District may set aside several
classroom spaces defined by the SFP for specialized programs or puli-out spaces.

The classroom counts and capacities defined in this Demographic Study represent the rooms that have been
identified by Hamilton Unified School District administration as designated fulltime teaching stations. This
count is a net count and may not take into consideration other rooms which could be used as fulltime
teaching stations but are needed for other programs offered by the District.

The classroom counts are shown for each school and are used to determine the capacity. The classroom
counts represent the rooms that can be used for teaching purposes at each school site. The classroom
counts may not represent the current classrooms being used, as there may be unused rooms on the school
site. In some cases, there may be fewer classrooms counted than current teaching stations if some of the
rooms being used were designed for other purposes but are currently being used as classrooms due to
overcrowding.

February 2019
Page 12




Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

School Projections

This Study provides a detailed analysis of student attendance patterns and enrollment for each school. This
includes a boundary map illustrating that particular school’s attendance patterns along with a chart showing
the projected enrollment for the next six (6) years. These charts indicate the actual enroliment at each
school over the past four (4) years along with the projected enrollment for the next six (6) years. In addition,
the number of students living in the boundary are shown for the same time period. If there are more
students attending than live in the area, then there is a net inflow. If more students live in the boundary than

attend the school, then there is a net outflow.

The current capacity is shown on these charts to identify if there will be classroom space available for the
students. If space is not available, then the attendance patterns will likely need to change if the additional
facilities are not provided. The capacity for each school was determined by using the following loading

standards for each classroom identified:

Grade Loading Standard
TK-K 24
1-3 24
4-6 28
7-8 28
9-12 24

These loading standards are based on the current loading factors used this year and may change based on
the level of funding for schools in the future.

Backup data is provided below each projection chart that shows the calculations of the cohort factors used to
determine the enrollment projections for each school.

The number of students living in the boundary are shown, which are then used to generate the cohort
factors. The weighted average of the three (3) years was determined with the current year weighted 50%,
the prior year 33.3% and the last year 16.7%. This gives the current trends more value in determining the
projections. Those cohorts are then used to determine the students who will be residing in each attendance
area for the following years. The kindergarten enroliment is projected using the birth data instead of the

cohort factor shown here.

The Attendance Factors were determined by analyzing the current year of students to see how many Inter-
and Intra-District transfers there are. Once the baseline projections are calculated for the residents in the
attendance area, the Intra-District and Inter-District factors are applied to determine the projected

enroliment for each school.

The last three (3) columns in the chart, Current Enrollment, 19/20 Projection, and Net Change, show the
current enrollment, next year’s projection and net change in enrollment for next year. These are compared
by grade to show the details needed for staffing and classroom needs.

February 2019
Page 13

37



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

HAM:I o e
atrnwrnr cCiein

Student Legend

© Incoming from other Districts (74)
@ Living in area and attending this school (342)
[ E— [ T =

Y I LN
| 5 | i
\ T

| sl
| Al F_,.a—
Hamilton Elem
Transfer Students
74
Inter-District
0
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80
Students
O Incoming H Outgoing
February 2019
Page 14

38



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study

Capacity & Projected Enrollment
Hamilton Elem
600
Net CR Capacity
500 247 e
0
415 410 o 415 425 %00 428 41____'__ /
—_—
300
200
100
0
15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25
——Students attending (History = CalPADS) —— Students living in attendance area —— Net CR Capadty = 544
District Loading Standards
Traditional School
All Portables Loaded
Net Classroom Count =21
Grades Served =K -8
Classroom Needs Timeline
Projected
Total Annual Spec Ed. Net CR Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing
Year Students®  Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats nit
18/19 415 14 0 544 0 4] -5 129
19/20 425 10 a 544 0 0 -5 119 0
20/21 409 -16 0 544 0 0 -5 135 0]
21/22 428 19 0 544 0 a S 116 50
22/23 430 2 0 544 0 0 -6 114 50
23/24 447 17 0 544 o 0 -4 97 50
24/25 488 41 o 544 0 Q -2 56 100
* Based on Students Attending (Squares on Graph)
Net Classroom Count = 21
Hamilton Elem
Students in boundary Historic Cohorts Weighted | Attendance Factors Current 19/20 Net
YEAR: | 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 |15t016 16to17 17to 18] Average Intra Inter  |Enrollment| Projection | Change
Grade
TK 12 9 8 12 15 16 1
K 42 36 38 36 -6 2 -2 0 -8.3% 38.9% 47 50 3
1 37 39 32 37 -3 -4 -1 -1 -2.7% 13.5% 41 s -2
2 46 34 38 37 -3 -1 S 2 -2.7% 8.1% 39 41 2
3 30 50 36 34 4 2 -4 -1 0.0% 38.2% 47 49 2
4 47 29 53 36 -1 3 0 1 0.0% 16.7% 42 41 -1
5 33 42 29 49 -5 Q -4 -3 2.0% 20.4% 60 44 -16
6 43 34 43 33 1 1 4 3 -3.0% 27.3% 41 60 19
7 38 43 29 40 0 -5 -3 -3 0.0% 20.0% 43 38 -10
8 28 43 41 28 5 -2 -1 0 3.6% 21.4% 35 47 12
Totals 356 359 347 342 -0.9 -0.4 -0.7 -0.2 -1.2% 22.7% 415 425 10
February 2019

Page 15




Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Harmiiton High
Student Legend

QO Incorring from olher Districts (92)
@ Living in area and attending this school (196) | |
@ Outgoing to other schaals (12) [T

4 ] B | - I\
! | o
Hamilton High
Transfer Students
92
Inter-District
0
0
Ella Barldey High
12
0 20 40 60 80 100
Students
[ Incoming @ Outgoing
February 2019

= roee st



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

e ———

Capacity & Projected Enroliment
Hamilton High

400
Net CR Capacity
350 323
314 250 306
289 '
300 -\276 281 278 274 . "
e e | 259 S — i
250
T -\‘\_\_________———-\_\\/‘—”/
150
100
50
0
15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25

—C—Students attending (History = CalPADS) —— Students living in attendance area === Net CR Capacity = 360

District Loading Standards
Traditional School

All Portables Loaded

Net Classraom Count =15
Grades Served =9 - 12

Classroom Needs Timeline

Projected
Total Annual Spec. Ed. Net CR Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing
Year Students®  Change Students Capadty  Students Needed Needed Seats Unlits
18/19 283 8 0 360 0 0 -3 71
19/20 259 -30 0 360 0 [ -4 101 0
20/21 278 19 0 360 0 0 -3 82 4]
21/22 274 -4 o] 360 0 0 -4 86 50
22/23 290 16 0 360 0 0 -3 70 50
23/24 306 16 0 360 0 0 -2 54 50
24/25 323 17 0 360 0 0 -2 37 100
* Based an Students Attending {Squares on Graph)
Net Classroom Count = 1_5
Hamilton High
Students in boundary Historic Cohorts Weighted | Attendance Factors Current 19/20 Net
YEAR: | 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 |15to16 16to17 17to 18| Average Intra Inter Enrollment| Projection | Change
Grade
TK 12 9 8 12 0 0 0]
K 42 36 38 36 -6 2 -2 o 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
1 37 39 32 37 -3 -1 -1 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
2 46 34 38 37 -3 -1 5 2 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
3 30 50 36 34 4 2 -4 -1 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 o
4 47 29 53 36 -1 3 0 i 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
5 33 42 29 49 -5 Q -4 -3 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
6 43 34 43 33 1 1 4 3 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 o]
7 39 43 29 40 0 5 -3 -3 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
8 28 44 41 28 5 -2 -1 0 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
9 67 31 52 51 3 8 10 8 0.0% 51.0% 77 62 -15
10 50 68 28 55 1 -3 3 1 -1.8% 43.6% 78 75 -3
11 43 47 69 31 -3 1 3 1 -12.9% 67.7% 48 73 25
12 57 49 51 71 6 4 2 3 -8.5% 29.6% 86 49 -37
Totals 574 555 547 550 -0.1 0.5 0.2 0.8 -5.8% 48.0% 289 259 -30
February 2019
Page 17

Faciifty Pradton S0l




Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Capacity & Projected Enrollment
Ella Barkley High

45
Net CR Capacity

35
30
25
20
15 11 12

10 10

10 o — : h“‘\_\_"a_____'__ I

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25

—~C—Students attending {History = CalPADS) ——Students llving in attendance area = Net CR Capadty = 40

District Loading Standards
Traditional School

All Portables Loaded

Net Classroom Count =2
Grades Served =9 - 12

Classroom Needs Timeline

Projected
Total Annual Spec. Ed. Net CR Unhoused Annual CR Total CR's Available Housing
Year Students®  Change Students Capacity Students Needed Needed Seats Units
18/19 S 1 0 40 0 0 -2 31
19/20 9 4] 0 40 0 0 -2 31 0
20/21 9 0 1] 40 Q o -2 31 0
21/22 9 0 0 40 0 1] -2 31 50
22/23 10 1 [¢] 40 0 1] -1 30 50
23/24 10 4] a 40 0 0 -1 30 50
24/25 12 2 0 40 Q 0 -1 28 100
*Based on Students Attending {Squares on Graph)
Net Classroom Count = 2
Ella Barkley High
Students in boundary Historic Cohorts Weighted | Attendance Factors Current 18/20 Net
VEAR: | 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 |15t016 16to17 17to 18| Average | lIntra Inter | Enrollment| Projection| Change |
Grade
TK 12 9 a 12 0 4] 0
K 42 36 38 36 -6 2 -2 a 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 o
1 37 39 32 37 =3 -4 -1 -1 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
2 46 34 38 37 -3 -1 S 2 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
3 30 50 36 34 4 2 -4 -1 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
4 47 23 53 36 -1 3 0 1 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
5 33 42 29 49 -5 0 -4 -3 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 ]
6 43 34 43 33 1 1 4 3 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
7 39 43 29 40 0 -5 -3 -3 0.0% 0.0% (£} 0 (2]
8 28 44 41 28 S -2 -1 0 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 0
9 67 31 52 51 3 8 10 8 0.0% 0.0% 0 0 (i}
10 50 68 28 55 1 -3 3 1 0.0% 3.6% 2 2 0
11 43 47 69 31 -3 1 3 1 -6.5% 16.1% 3 5 2
12 5. 49 51 71 6 4 2 3 -7.0% 12.7% 4 2 -2
Totals 574 555 547 550 -0.1 0.5 0.9 0.3 ~4.5% 10.8% 9 9 0
February 2019

Page 18




Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Student Attendance Matrix

ATTENDANCE MATRIX (

|  SCHOOL OF ATTENDANCE
| | | [
| BEE B
R L3 : 5 | I " T
E | Bt TEA o S
| ois lF g Sl SE Sbk e
; Bl R RR S
I scHooL: bodm y o8 R B
D AREA | | | l
E  Inter-District 74 | 92 | 4 || 170
N Hamilton Elem | 342 o | o || 342
¢ Hamilton High |0 196 12 | 208
g Correction Factor* I 1| A __-l___ll__i_
Total Attending , 415 | 289 | 9 || 73
Intra-Ins 0 0 12 12
Inter-ins 74 92 4 170
Total In-Flow 74 92 16 182
Intra-Outs 0 12 0 12
Net Transfers 74 80 16 170
f % In-Flow Students 178% 31.8% 255%
% Out-Flow Students 0.0% 5.8% 1.7%

* The correction factor represents the difference between the
student data download counts and the actual CalPADS counts.

This chart summarizes the transfers in and out of each school as were seen by the yellow dots and blue dots on
the school attendance maps. In addition, the data has been analyzed to determine the total in-flow and out-flow
rates for each school.

February 2019
Page 19




Hamilton Unified School District
Demographic Study

2018/19

This graph shows a summary of the projections for the entire District. It shows the current enrollment for
2018/19, the historic enrollment for the past nine (9) years, and the projected enrollment for the next six (6)
years. The end result is a total of 5,488 students in the District in 2024/25.

10 Year Enroliment History &
6 Year Enrollment Projection

T
1
bl | 823
789
759 . ; 763
738 -4 - 730 |
723 719 - 713 : g0
710 _ 697 geo 713 63 696 711 . . .. |
| '
318 |
311 e .
. 323
.E 302 302 287 | | 280
G
T '
=
f |
w1106 I
' | 103
9% 19l
94 95 | |81 1a1]]g
93 e _
1 22 319 | [319
i
iy - i » | I . i
s & JPTERY Ry JIeUEN I Al R L .'_.
g " HTL o T =
09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 | 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25

YEAR

OokK-6 0O7-8 [DO9-12

February 2019
Page 20

44



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

One Year Enrollment Projection Summary

Hamilton Unified School District

Enrollment Projections

YEAR 19/20, 1 Year Proj.

School IK K 1 2 3 4 5 6 z 8 9 0 11 12 TOTAL
Hamilton Elem 16 50 39 41 49 41 44 60 38 47 0 0 0 0 425
Hamilton High 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 s} 0 0 62 75 73 49 259
Elia Barkley High 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o] 0 o] [ ] 2 9
Totals 16 50 39 41 49 41 44 60 38 a7 62 77 78 51 693
Current CalPADS 15 47 41 39 47 42 60 41 48 35 77 80 51 90 713
Net Change 1 3 -2 2 2 -1 -16 19 -10 12 -15 -3 27 -39 -20
Cohort Change -8 0 10 -6 2 0 -3 -1 27 [} -2 0

The projection for next year (2019/20) shows a decrease of 20 students. The largest declines will be seen at
grades 5 and 12. The largest increases are at grades 6 and 11.

These projections assume the transfers between schools remain consistent. If changes in facilities,
schedules, programs or policies are made, then the patterns may be impacted.

Enroliment Projection Summary by Grade

Hamilton Unified School District
Enrollment Projection Summary by Grade

Current
Historic Enrollment Enroliment Projected Enroliment

Grade 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25
TK 12 9 8 15 16 13 13 14 14 14
K 48 43 45 47 50 40 40 43 46 51
1 43 47 37 41 39 42 35 35 38 43
2 56 43 47 39 41 39 45 38 38 43
3 36 54 41 47 49 51 51 57 50 53
4 51 35 58 42 41 43 48 48 54 49
5 38 S5 36 60 44 43 49 54 54 63
6 50 37 47 41 60 44 45 51 56 59
7 46 46 37 48 38 57 44 45 51 59
8 35 45 45 35 47 37 58 45 46 54
9 89 54 78 77 62 74 67 88 75 80
10 81 91 50 80 77 61 77 70 91 82
11 66 79 91, 51 78 75 61 m 70 95
12 87 63 70 90 51 77 78 65 80 78
Total K-6 333 319 319 332 340 315 326 S50

Total 7-8 81 91 82 83 85 94 102 90 97 113
Total 9-12 323 287 289 298 268 287 283 300 316 335
District Totals 738 697 690 713 693 696 711 730 763 823

February 2019
ﬁ roget




Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Enroliment Projection Summary by School

Hamilton Unified School District
Enrollment Projection Summary by School
Current
Enroliment
|School 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25
Hamilton Elem 415 425 409 428 430 447 488
Elementary Totals 415 425 409 428 430 447 488
Hamilton High 289 259 278 274 290 306 323
High Totals 289 259 278 274 290 306 323
Ella Barkley High 9 9 9 9 10 10 12
Other Totals 9 9 9 9 10 10 12
District Totals 713 693 696 711 730 763 823
Annual Change -20 3 15 19 33 60

School Facility Utilization

The following chart shows the current and projected utilization rates for each school. It has been color coded
with blue representing schools with a utilization rate of under 70%, yellow representing a utilization rate of at
least 70% but under 80% and red for the schools that have over 100% utilization.

School Facility Utilization 2018/19  2024/25 2018/19 2024/25
Net CR Current  Projected  Current Projected
Elementary Schools Classrooms Capacity Enrollment Enrollment Utilization Utilization
Hamilton Elem 21 544 415 488 76.3% 89.7%
Sub-Totals 21 544 415 488 76.3% 89.7%
High Schools
Hamilton High i5 360 289 323 80.3% 89.7%
Sub-Totals 15 360 289 323 80.3% 89.7%

Other Schools

Ella Barkley High 2 40 9 12
Sub-Totals 2 40 9 12
District Totals 38 944 713 823 755%  87.2%

February 2019
Page 22




BOARD AGENDA ITEM — Approval of CEQA Study Contract

As a part of the School Site Permitting process required by the California Department of Education for
the expansion of Hamilton High School, an environmental study mandated by the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) must be completed. The District therefore defined the proposed
scope of the future project(s) for CEQA study purposes as follows:

e Phase 1: Within the next two to five years, construct a new 20,000SF gymnasium, 90 space
parking lot and playfields on the 40 acre site (see Attachment); and

e Phase 2: As needed, within six to ten years, construct up to sixteen new classrooms with
associated administrative space, bathrooms and storage.

The District solicited proposals from several environmental consulting firms; two (PlaceWorks Inc. and
Hauge Brueck Associates) submitted proposals. Both firms have significant experience in completing
environmental studies for private and public entities throughout Northern California, and are highly
qualified for this project. Both firms are proposing completing reports which will lead to full CEQA
clearance for both phases of the Project. Particular attention would be given to technical analyses of
traffic, air quality, noise hydrology and water quality. Both proposed reports would provide documented
environmental support to prove environmental compliance should the District apply for State School
Bond funding.

PlaceWorks proposes completing an Initial Study leading to a Mitigated Negative Declaration within a six
to eight month timeline from study initiation. Their cost proposal totals $56,327.00

Hauge Brueck & Associates proposes to complete a focused EIR, due to the significant and unavoidable
impacts associated with the floodplain, the existing Williamson Act contract on the site and the contract
requirements for future land use on the site to be consistent with agriculture and agricultural zoning.
The focused EIR process will add public scoping, comment responses, additional technical studies, and a
more robust public hearing process. A timeline was not included within the proposal, but likely would
be twelve to eighteen months in length. The proposed cost would be $79,000.00.

District staff recommend the approval of a contract for an Initial Study leading to a Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the Project with PlaceWorks, Inc.

47



1TSS WIS / Z€ AVYMHDIN

o ] ovoUEY/oTEeONTY [T
__!iggl‘ED 29 OL BOATTING DHUENG m__ul_...m._

HOILSIINGD MaN TH_ HOLLIBNODY ALKSHOHd YHOLLCAY _U

o

Lamr T3]




WORK SCOPE

This chapter describes the scope of services to be completed by the PlaceWorks team for the Hamilton High School Site
Expansion CEQA. To facilitate your review of this proposal, we have prepared a concise scope that emphasizes key

components of our approach to this project.

A summary of the work program is presented in Table 1.

TABLE1  WORK PROGRAM SUMMARY

Task 1: Project Initiation & Project Management
1.1 Kick-off Meeting * 1.3 Project Management
1.2Project Description

Task 2: Initial Study

2.1 Agricultural and Forestry
Resourpes 2.8 Hydrology and Water Quality
2.2 Aesthetics ;
2.3 Air Quality, Community Risks and g e QuaRloNing
: R 2.10 Noise and Vibration
E I 2.11 Public Services and Utilities
2.4 Biological Resources ¢ i
2.12 Traffic Analysis
2.5 Cultural Resources Lo e
X g R e ey T O s 2.13 Mitigation Monitoring and
: 9y. Reporiing Program

2.7 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Task 3: Mitigated Negative Declaration

Task 4: Notice of Intent

Task §: Public Review and Response fo Comments

Task é: Adoption
* 4.1 Findings & Resolutions * 6.2 Approval & Notice of
Determination
Task 1. Project Initiation and Project Management

This task is structured to build a framework for coordination among team members. Close communication and efficient
information sharing will facilitate preparation of a thorough, legally defensible environmental review document on an

optimized timeline.

Steve Noack will serve as the Principal-in-Charge and Greg Goodfellow will serve as the Project Manager. Greg Goodfellow
will be the day-to-day contact and will oversee the budget, schedule and team coordination throughout the duration of

our work.

PlaceWorks Scope of Work February 11, 2019 Page |1

49



50

1.1 Kick-off Meeting

Steve Noack, Principal-in-Charge, and Greg Goodfellow, Project Manager, will attend a kick-off meeting with EFPM/District
staff to discuss expectations and concerns and to review key issues, information needs, work products, the cumulative
impact analysis, potential alternatives to evaluate in the EIR, and the delivery schedule. PlaceWorks will also present
opportunities to streamline the CEQA process.

1.2 Project Description

PlaceWorks will prepare a detailed Project Description for the Initial Study, incorporating graphics and textual information
provided by the EFPM/District. The Project Description will include information on the planned phasing of construction,
and modernization, including project features designed to avoid or offset potential environmental impacts. Within two
weeks of contract approval, PlaceWorks will submit one electronic copy of the Project Description to EFPM/District staff
for review and comment. Upon approval by EFPM/District staff, the Project Description will be used by the PlaceWorks
team for reference.

Deliverable:
®  Draft Project Description (MS Word and PDF)

1.3 Project Management

PlaceWorks will coordinate with EFPM/District staff throughout the project and will manage the scope, cost, and schedule
to ensure that (CEQA review is completed efficiently and in accordance with the agreement. PlaceWorks will keep in
contact with EFPM throughout the length of the contract to ensure the District can expect project deliverables in a timely

manner.

Task 2. Initial Study

Using the District-approved Project Description, PlaceWorks will prepare an Initial Study (IS) that documents existing
conditions, project impacts (if any), and mitigation measures (if required), as well as the resulting level of significance for
potential impacts under each of the topical areas required under CEQA. The IS will be prepared using the standards in the
revised Appendix G, Environmental Checklist, of the CEQA Guidelines as amended per Assembly Bill 52 (Tribal Cultural
Resources) and the California Supreme Court in a December 2015 opinion {California Building Industry Association (CBIA)
v. Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD), 62 Cal. 4th 369 (No. S 213478)] to address environmental impacts
related to the proposed project.

CEQA permits the exclusion of environmental issues on which it can be ascertained with certainty that the project would
have no significant negative impact. Accordingly, the IS will only briefly address those issue areas that would not be
impacted by the proposed project or where it can be demonstrated that regulatory standards and standard conditions of
approval will address the checklist significance criteria. it is expected that the following environmental resources will be
briefly addressed and dismissed from detailed analysis:

#  Mineral Resources

®  Population/Housing

®  Recreation

2.1 Agricultural and Forestry Resources

PlaceWorks will address the threshold questions addressing agricultural lands, and evaluate potential impacts associated
with developing on lands previously used for agricultural purposes.
PlaceWarks Scope of Work February 11, 2019 Page [2



2.2 Aesthetics

PlaceWorks will use its expertise in urban design and visual assessment, and its familiarity with the surrounding visual
resources, to analyze potential aesthetic impacts associated with the project. The analysis will focus on the visual
compatibility of the proposed project with surrounding residential land uses.

23 Air Quality, Community Risks, and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

PlaceWorks will prepare an air quality and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions analysis to evaluate impacts of the proposed
project. Currently, the Glenn County Air Poliution Control District (GCAPCD) has not established its own set of CEQA air
quality thresholds. Based on correspondence with GCAPCD staff, the analyses will be prepared in accordance with the
Shasta County Air Quality Management District’s (SCAQMD) CEQA “Protocal for Review”.1 2 Emission modeling will use the
latest version of the California Estimator Emissions Model (CalEEMod). The analysis will be included as an appendix to the
IS/MND.

Criteria Air Pollutants and GHG Emissions — Construction Phase: The proposed project involves the construction of a new
20,000 square-foot (SF) gymnasium, new playfields, and a new parking lot (Phase 1). In addition, the project also considers
the future addition of classroom buildings (Phase 2). PlaceWorks will provide an estimate of the increase in short-term
criteria air pollutant emissions from construction of new school facilities for up to two construction phases. The
construction phase regional emissions inventory will be based on the construction schedule for the project, construction
duration, demolition debris and soil haul volumes (if applicable), and anticipated construction equipment for each
construction subphase, as provided by the District. Where information is unavailable, PlaceWorks will use CalEEMod
defaults, as appropriate, and work with District to develop the construction assumptions. Project-related construction
criteria air pollutant emissions will be compared to the SCAQMD significance thresholds. The estimated construction
emissions will be evaluated to SCAQMD’s applicable significance thresholds and mitigation measures will be identified, if
necessary, to reduce impacts. A construction health risk assessment is not proposed; it is assumed that based on the
regional analysis, construction-related risk can be described qualitatively.

Criteria Air Pollutants and GHG Emissions — Operation Phase: PlaceWorks will provide a quantified estimate of the increase
in long-term emissions from buildout of the proposed project at full buildout. The emissions estimates will be based on
the net increase project-related trip generation from an increase in students, area sources (i.e., architectural coatings and
consumer products), energy sources (i.e., natural gas consumption, electricity use), water use and wastewater generation,
and solid waste disposal. Total emissions from construction activities will be amortized into the GHG emissions inventory.
The project’s operational phase emissions will be compared to SCAQMD significance thresholds for criteria air pollutants
and the GHG thresholds identified by the California Air Pollution Control Officer’s Association (CAPCOA) in the 2008 CEQA
and Climate Change whitepaper.? Mitigation measures to reduce potential impacts will be identified, as necessary.

Air Quality Management Plan Consistency, CO Hotspots: The Sacramento Valley Area Air Basin is in nonattainment for
particulate matter. Consistency with Northern Sacramento Valley Air Basin’s Air Quality Attainment Plan to attain the
federal and state ambient air quality standards will also be evaluated. Based in the preliminary information available, it is
anticipated that the proposed project would not generate enough traffic at any one intersection to generate a CO hotspot.
Thus, analysis of potential CO hotspot impacts will be described qualitatively. Proposed land uses are not likely to generate
substantial odors; therefore, this would also be handled qualitatively.

" Glenn County Air Pollution Control District (GCAPCD), 2019. Phone conversation between lan Ledbetter, Environmental

Program Manager, GCAPCD and Steve Bush, PE, Senior Engineer, PlaceWorks on February 1, 2019.
? Shasta County Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD), 2003. Protocol for Review, Land Use Permitting Activities,

Procedures for Implementing the California Environmental Quality Act.
* CAPCOA identified a market-capture approach for establishing a bright-line GHG threshold set at capturing 90 percent of

projects and GHG emissions.

PlaceWorks Scope of Work February 11, 2019 Page |3

51



52

Project Consistency with Plans Adopted to Reduce GHG Emissions: The GHG analysis will include a consistency evaluation
with applicable goals and policies of the Califarnia Air Resources Board’s (CARB) 2017 Scoping Plan.

appiianic Qdis d cies ot i

24 Biological Resources

Environmental Collaborative will conduct the assessment directly under contract to PlaceWorks. The assessment will
entail: 1} initial review of existing information on resources occurring in the site vicinity; 2) a field reconnaissance survey of
the site; and 3) preparation of the biological assessment for the IS/MND. The following provides an outline for the scope
of the BRA.

" Collect and review existing information on biotic resources in the site vicinity Information sources will include:
records on occurrences of special-status taxa and sensitive natural communities maintained by the California Natural
Diversity Data Base of the CDFW; information on sensitive or special-status taxa available from the CDFW and USFWS;
and wetlands mapping prepared as part of the National Wetland Inventory; amang other information sources.

®  Conduct a field reconnaissance of the site. The field effort will be limited to a half-day reconnaissance, which should
be sufficient to determine existing conditions and potential for any sensitive resources. Existing conditions will be
determined as part of the reconnaissance. Although considered remote, the need for any additional field
investigation would be recommended following the field reconnaissance in the remote instance that seasonal
wetland indicators or other sensitive resources are encountered.

®  Prepare the biological assessment for the IS/MND. The BRA will summarize vegetation types, wildlife habitats, and
potential for occurrence of special-status species and jurisdictional waters. A map of CNDDB occurrences of special-
status species and designated critical habitat in the surrounding area will be prepared by PlaceWorks GIS staff,
together with a map of any sensitive resources encountered on the site. An assessment of potential impacts on
biological resources will be prepared, including impacts on special-status species such as Swainson’s hawk. Mitigation
measures will be recommended as necessary to address any significant impacts of development. However, this scope
does not include preparation of any detailed compensatory mitigation plans, habitat conservation plan, or other plans
if sensitive resources cannot be avoided or that may be required as part of resource agency review and authorization.

*  Respond to comments on the administrative section. A total of 2 hours is budgeted to respond to comments. If
additional detailed assessment or additional time is necessary to adequately respond to comments, this scope may be
expanded.

2.5 Cultural Resources

Tom Origer & Associates (TOA) will prepare the Cultural Resources and Tribal Cultural Resources sections of the Initial
Study consistent with CEQA Guidelines. The cultural resource analysis will address each of the significance criteria in the
CEQA Appendix G, Environmental Checklist Form as well as the AB 52 amendments to the CEQA Guidelines. TOA will
summarize AB 52 consultation as completed by the District, and address any impacts identified as a result. TOA will
complete the following tasks:

®  Conduct archival research at the Northeast Information Center, and at TOA's office.

" Contact the Native American Heritage Commission and local Native American tribes and individuals. The notification
does not constitute formal consultation.

*  Conduct a field study of the project area, and prepare preliminary documentation on DPR 523 FORMS, if cultural
resources are found.

" Prepare a report of findings, and a summary of the previous tasks. The report will include recommendations for
treatment of cultural resources.

PlaceWorks Scope of Work February 11, 2019 Page |4



2.6 Geology, Soils, and Seismicity

PlaceWorks will provide an overview of current geologic/soil conditions at the project site. The section will describe the
existing regulatory framework, relevant standards of significance, potential impacts, and where appropriate, mitigation
measures. A variety of data sources will be employed, including geologic and soil maps, investigations, and studies
published by the California Gealogical Survey; the U.S. Geological Survey; and the U.S. Department of Agriculture’s Natural
Resources Conservation Service. The section will provide an evaluation of the potential for the proposed project to result
in significant direct and/or indirect environmental impacts related to geology, soils and seismicity, such as seismic-related
ground shaking, ground failure, liquefaction, or landslides.

2.7 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

PlaceWorks will prepare the Hazards and Hazardous Materials section of the Initial Study to address the environmental
hazards associated construction and operation of the project and recommendations for remediation measures, as

appropriate.

28 Hydrology and Water Quality

The hydrology and water quality section of the IS/MND wil! identify and evaluate issues relating to surface and
groundwater hydrology, site drainage, storm water pollution prevention during construction and operation, and best
management practices (BMPs). The section will be prepared in accordance with Glenn County’s Development Standards
and Development Permits as specified in County Code Title 15 Division 4 and Division 2 respectively. The requirements of
the Central Valley Region general permit for discharges from municipal separate storm sewer systems, which implements
the NPDES requirements, will also be taken into account along with other Federal, State, local and regional programs and
regulations that are applicable to the project.

The section will also include the hydrologic setting, regional and local drainage conditions, and issues pertaining to
flooding and creek restoration and protection. The section will conclude with a discussion of the potential water impacts
attributable to the proposed project, based on applicable significance criteria. The section will be prepared under the
direction of a Registered Engineer in the State of California.

29 Land Use and Planning

The existing “character” of the project site and existing onsite and surrounding land use and zoning designations will be
described. The general consistency of the project with applicable plans will be described, although a detailed policy
analysis is not proposed. The Initial Study will focus on whether the project will divide an existing community or would be
inconsistent with policies adopted for the purposes of avoiding or reducing significant environmental impacts, as required

by CEQA.

2.10 Noise and Vibration Analysis

PlaceWorks will evaluate potential noise and vibration impacts for the construction and operational phases of the
proposed school improvements, including football stadium PA system. The impact assessment document will discuss
relevant criteria for noise exposure based on applicable federal, state, and local standards and ordinances; including those
in the Municipal Code and General Plan Noise Element.

Residential uses are located to the south of the site. The dominant noise source in the project area is local traffic noise.

Typical residential and noises associated with the high school also add to the existing environment in the project vicinity.
PlaceWorks proposes to assess existing conditions and identify the nearest sensitive receptors and other environmental

PlaceWorks Scope of Work February 11, 2019 Page |5



54

characteristics, based on a site visit and noise monitoring survey consisting of up to two long-term (24+ hour) locations
and up to three short-term (15 minute) locations.

Long-term operational noise impacts will be primarily related to project-generated traffic increases and on-site sports and
recreational activities. Thus, the traffic forecasts included in the project’s traffic study will be used to conduct a traffic
noise impact assessment relative to project-related vehicle operations. Sports and recreational activities associated with
the proposed project will be assessed using noise studies of similar uses and SoundPLAN computer modeling.

Project-related construction noise will temporarily elevate the ambient noise environment, above existing conditions. An
assessment of temporary noise and vibration impacts during site preparation and project canstruction activities will be
conducted using industry-standard analysis techniques and using scheduling, equipment mix, hauling, and truck trip
information {as provided by the applicant). Vibration impacts will be assessed per criteria included in the FTA's guideline
document on noise and vibration impact assessment.

The findings of the technical analyses and impact assessment will be provided in a noise and vibration section of the
IS/MND, along with mitigation measures to reduce any potentially significant noise and vibration impacts.

Data Needs:

Project Description:
e Number of expected event attendees/bleacher capacity;

e  Proposed time and day of events;
e Total number of events annually;
e  Confirm no fireworks proposed.

Sound Analysis:
e  Site plans showing field, bleachers, speaker location;

e Number of speakers, speaker location, height, and orientation;
»  Speaker manufacture specifications, if available, which would show:
o Sound power level or other sound level rating

2.11 Public Services and Utilities

PlaceWorks staff will contact fire and police service providers, and evaluate potential impacts. The analysis will focus on
issues associated with the increased needs for service, such as emergency access, security, police patrol, etc. Applicable
agencies will be contacted to determine the project’s impacts to the existing sewer, water, stormwater, and solid waste
systems.

2.12 Traffic Analysis

PlaceWorks will evaluate the transportation impacts of the proposed project against the IS checklist questions. An initial
review of the project indicates that the number of trips will be relatively small; therefore, we propose not to conduct
traffic counts, nor model intersection levels of service operations. PlaceWorks will address potential impacts to local
streets based on estimated peak-hour trips. We will also review the on-site circulation plan and the functioning of the
access driveways. PlaceWorks will also estimate the project’s daily traffic volumes to provide necessary data for the noise
and air quality/GHG analyses. PlaceWorks will document the results of the traffic analysis in the traffic/transportation
section of the IS.

In the event that the analysis indicates the need for a more detailed analysis, including intersection levels of service
operations, PlaceWorks will work with EFPM/District staff to develop a separate scope of work, with a contract
amendment.

PlaceWorks Scope of Work February 11, 2019 Page |6



2.13 Mitigation Monitoring or Reporting Program

Concurrent with the preparation of the Draft IS/MND, we will prepare a Mitigation Monitoring or Reporting Program
(MMRP) for the mitigation measures included in the IS/MND pursuant to the District’s policies and procedures. The
MMRP, shown in tabular form, will identify responsibility for implementing and monitoring each mitigation measure, along
with monitoring triggers and reporting frequencies.

Deliverables:

2 One (1) electronic copy of the Administrative Draft IS/MND and MMRP in Word and PDF format
% One (1) electronic copy of the Screencheck Draft IS/MND and MMRP in Word and PDF format

®  Seven (7) hard copies with the technical appendices on compact disc (CD) attached, and one {1) electronic copy of the
IS/MND, and MMRP in Word and PDF Format.

Task 3.  Mifigated Negative Declaration

If it is determined that potential impacts from construction or operation of the project can be avoided through changes to
the project, or mitigated to less-than-significant levels in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15070, a Mitigated
Negative Declaration (MND) will be prepared.

In the event that the IS determines the project would result in one (1) or more significant impacts that cannot be
mitigated to a less-than-significant level, an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) would be required under CEQA. A separate
scope of work would be prepared to prepare the EIR.

Task 4. Noftice of Intent

PlaceWorks will draft a Notice of Intent (NOI) of an MND pursuant to CEQA Section 15072. PlaceWorks will work together
with the District to prepare a master distribution list. PlaceWorks staff will be responsible for circulation to the State
Clearinghouse, and mailings to local, regional and State agencies. The District will be responsible for local posting and

noticing.
Deliverables:

" One (1) electronic copy of the NOI, IS/MND, and MMRP in Word and PDF Format

Task 5. Public Review and Response to Comments

Following the close of the public review period, PlaceWorks will respond to substantive comments received on the
IS/MND in a memorandum form. This scope of work includes 10 hours of staff time to respond to comments in an
Administrative Draft Response to Comments Memorandum. If an unforeseen amount of time is required to address
comments received on the IS/MND, a contract amendment will be required.

We will prepare an Administrative Draft Response to Comments Memorandum for review by the District. Based on the
District comments, we will complete revisions and deliver a Final Response to Comments Memorandum.

Deliverables:

*  One (1) electronic copy of the Administrative Draft Response to Comments Memorandum in Word
and PDF format

*  One (1) electronic copy of the Final Response to Comments Memorandum in Word and PDF format

PlaceWorks Scope of Work February 11, 2019 Page |7



56

Task 6. Adopfion

8.1 Findings and Resolutions

The PlaceWorks team will prepare the findings and resolutions on the IS/MND. The PlaceWorks team will prepare draft
and final documents, pending District staff review and comment. As directed by District staff, the PlaceWorks team will
prepare findings and resolutions to allow for certification of the IS/MND. The resolutions will summarize significant
impacts, present mitigation measures required to reduce impacts to less-than significant levels, and permit adoption of
the MMRP. PlaceWorks will provide an electronic copy of the findings and statements for District review.

Deliverables:

*  Draft and final findings.

6.2 Approval and Notice of Determination
Steve Noack of PlaceWorks will attend one (1) public hearing on the approval of the proposed project and IS/MND.

Within five days of approval of the project, PlaceWorks will prepare a Notice of Determination (NOD) for submittal to the
County Clerk. The District will be responsible for submitting the NOD to the County Clerk and paying all applicable filing
fees at the time of posting. The budget does not include payment of any filing fees.

Deliverables:
*  One (1) electronic copy of the Notice of Determination (NOD) in Word and PDF format

= One (1) electronic copy of the Final IS/MND in Word and PDF format

PlaceWorks Scope of Work February 11, 2019 Page |8



SCHEDULE, PRODUCTS & MEETINGS

SCHEDULE

As shown on Figure 1, Schedule, we anticipate that the IS/MND option can be completed and approved within
a 6-month period, however, achieving the schedule is dependent on receiving a “stable project description”
that is not changed substantially, during the course of the environmental analysis. PlaceWorks has a strong
track record in meeting project schedules and coordinating closely with its clients. Over years of managing
projects similar to the proposed project, we have developed a variety of tools and tactics to keep projects on
schedule and ensure that staff is well informed at all times. We will maintain an up-to-date schedule
throughout the project, to ensure that all team members are aware of upcoming meetings and product due

dates

4.1 PRODUCTS

The following products will be submitted to the District in fulfillment of our proposed scope of work:

m  Data Needs Memorandum
m  Administrative Draft and Final Project Description

m  Administrative, Screencheck Draft and Final NOI, IS/MND, and MMRP, including 7 hard copies of the
IS/MND, and 15 copies of the NOI with attachments

®  Administrative and Final Response to Comments Memorandum
m  Administrative and Final Findings

m  Administrative Draft and Final Notice of Determination

4.2 MEETINGS

PlaceWorks will attend the following meetings in fulfillment of our proposed scope of work:

m  Steve Noack and Greg Goodfellow will attend one (1) kick-off meeting
m  Steve Noack and Greg Goodfellow will participate in up to four (4) regularly scheduled Status Meetings.

m  Steve Noack will attend one (1) District hearing on the approval of the IS/MND

5. Cost Estimate

As shown in Table 2, the estimated cost to complete the IS/MND is $56,327. The billing rates for each team
member are included in Table 2. PlaceWorks hills for its work on a time-and-materials basis with monthly

invoices.

PlaceWorks Scope of Work February 11, 2019 Page |9

57



v&uu!.—n‘nu;—n‘uug_u‘ug *

9oy

58



T Ay

£ suadx] FIQESIAQUNDY SHOMATELY

z
- i g et Bademy g .,
PR Y. UM el Xt = v e

ATELIEIOL , URNSUO3qNS  JuEmsIOIqNS Ry fLT L SWOMIEITM | KZ FIOMAITE | SOMIIEId SEpeY  aud) arDolly it DY Aeeny  adseny e
*or Jowss . Jous  souas  axsfad  Tepossy alosd  -Uppedpupg
TNEID
Emtetty  sitieges) Suen :
watuowny s fam smlevie RS e | WU UO|||UWIBA  USSM  MO|I3PoOD;  PEON
ENTOAM i

1v§040H4 1565

ey A4S |00URS YOI UBIwOY
are

59



Proposal

Hamilton Unified
School District

Focused EIR

HAUGE BRUECK

ASSOCI ATESS

60



Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

PROPOSAL CONTENTS

Section Page

1 UNDERSTANDING OF THE PROJECT 1

2 HAUGE BRUECK ASSOCIATES 2

3 SCOPE OF WORK 6

4 BUDGET 11

5 HBA RESUMES 15

6 RECENT PROJECTS 28
HAUGE BRUECK
ASSOCI ATES Page 0

61



62

Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

1 UNDERSTANDING OF THE PROJECT

The Hamilton Unified School District requires environmental documentation of the purchase and
use of approximately 45.8 acres of land (Project) adjacent to Hamilton High School in compliance
with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the CEQA Guidelines. The District
requires the completion of the environmental documentation to allow construction of the Project to
proceed. A site plan will be developed for the property with phased development. Phase I will
consist of utility infrastructure development, playing fields, a 20,000 square foot gymnasium, and
90 parking spaces. Phase II will likely include up to 16 classrooms/teaching stations and support
facilities such as bathrooms, storage, maintenance, etc. This phase will expand high school
classroom facilities on to the newly acquired property, and convert some of the existing high school
facilities into a middle school. The District will be the CEQA Lead Agency and will be adopting a
resolution indicating the District is not subject to County land use or zoning limitations per state
regulations.

Potential environmental issues include:

e Hydrology

e Hazards;
e Agriculture; and
e Traffic.

The District prefers to process the environmental documentation as a mitigated negative declaration
of environmental impact (MND); however, a focused EIR may be preferable and/or necessary due
to the significant and unavoidable impacts associated with the floodplain, the existing Williamson
Act contract on the site and the contract requirements for future land use on the site to be consistent
with agriculture and agricultural zoning. The focused EIR process will add public scoping,
comment responses, technical studies, and a slightly more robust public hearing process. A focused
EIR: will allow the District to rely on or tier from the documentation for future projects in the
project area; provides documented environmental support should future projects qualify in size
under a Class 14 CEQA categorical exemption; and can be used to prove environmental compliance
should the District apply for state funding.

It is the responsibility of HBA, working under the direction of the District, to coordinate the
environmental review process, prepare the required environmental documents, and adhere to the
schedule agreed upon in writing by the District and HBA.

HAUGE BRUECK

ASSOCI ATES Page 1



Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

2 HAUGE BRUECK ASSOCIATES

HBA is a multidisciplinary planning and environmental firm that provides services related to
planning, environmental impact assessment, and permitting through its staff and project-specific
subcontractor teams. HBA is a limited liability company formed in 2006, and at present, includes
three full time associates and several part-time/casual hourly employees. Prior to forming HBA,
Anders Hauge and Rob Brueck developed the California/Nevada environmental practice for the
Parsons Corporation, opening the Sacramento, CA office in 1989 and managing the office through
our amicable departure from the corporation in 2006. Work for the District would be conducted
from our Sacramento office located at 2233 Watt Avenue, Suite 300 (T: (916) 283-5800 / F: (916)
273-4054) and our Lake Tahoe office located at 901 Merced Avenue, South Lake Tahoe, CA
96150.

HBA’s manager and key point of contact for the proposed work, Anders Hauge, has 45 years of
experience working with public agencies to develop and implement management policies that meet
legal mandates and preclude significant environmental impacts. Anders is adept at organizing
appropriate multidisciplinary teams, setting clear goals and standards, coordinating technical
evaluations, addressing contentious environmental issues with agency staff members and public
groups, developing feasible mitigation measures or modifications to proposed plans, and preparing
clear and concise environmental documents and other reports.

HBA specializes in the management and preparation of environmental and planning documents for
public and private clients. HBA prepares project- and program-level environmental documents in
compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA), and Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA) Rules of Procedure.

HBA manages both small and large projects, utilizing project management tools (scope, budget and
schedule), applied appropriately for each project. HBA facilitates agency and public outreach to
achieve consent among stakeholders to allow the process to reach its conclusion.

HBA addresses the range of technical and political issues encountered with a focus on:

¢ Using quantified, accurate and objective data for analysis

» Developing effective and feasible implementation strategies

» Developing monitoring programs that objectively demonstrate success or failure of strategies
o Adherence to Quality Assurance and Quality Control procedures.

HBA works with our clients to resolve issues, develop creative and workable solutions, to be
flexible in meeting the changing needs of a project. This is demonstrated through the principals
ongoing contractual relationship with key clients for over 28 years.

Anders J. Hauge, Partner

Anders Hauge, Planner, QA/QC. Anders has 48 years of experience (13 years as co-founder of
HBA) in developing, managing, and implementing environmental documents; building
partnerships and consensus; and developing general plans, design standards, and land use
regulations. He has worked in the Lake Tahoe Basin and in the Sierra for more than 40 years, both
as a public agency planner for the California Tahoe Regional Planning Agency and as a planning
consultant. Anders has successfully completed over 50 environmental documents within the Lake
Tahoe Basin. Anders received his B.S. in city and regional planning from California State
Polytechnic University, San Luis Obispo in 1971. Anders’ experience in preparing campus
environmental documents includes:

HAUGE BRUECK

ASSOCI| ATES Page 2

63



64

Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamitton Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

¢ Lake Tahoe Community College Relocation Master Plan EIR/EIS,

¢ Lake Tahoe Community College Child Care and Safety Project Environmental Assessment,
o Stanford General Management Plan EIR, and

e Ohlone College Master Plan EIR.

Mr. Hauge is experienced in public facilitation programs including the Environmental manager for
the City of Redwood City’s Saltworks Project, Mariposa County General Plan, City of San Joaquin
General Plan, City of Sutter Creek projects, South Tahoe PUD projects, Heavenly Ski Resort
projects, and Bureau of Reclamation/Southern Nevada Water Authority Facilities Expansion EIS.

Anders is the contract planner for the City of Sutter Creek, engaged in the management of the
General Plan Update and review of Use Permits and subdivisions. Anders is currently managing
the Town of Loomis Costco Project processing and the SPMUD Diversion Line Project’s permit
implementation. He is also currently the District 5 Planning Commissioner for Placer County and
is a managing partner of A&J Lund Farms in Sutter County.

Robert Brueck, Partner

Robert Brueck specializes in the management and preparation of environmental and planning
documents for public and private clients. Specific environmental documentation experience has
included documents prepared for the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA), and state and
federal permitting. Specific planning experience has included Master Plans, Annexations, Zone
Changes, and General Plan Amendments. Mr. Brueck has performed many of his assignments in
the western United States, including Lake Tahoe, and has a broad knowledge of the various rules
and regulations that govern development within this heavily regulated area. His experience in
preparing campus environmental documents includes Lake Tahoe Community College Relocation
Master Plan EIR/EIS, Child Care and Safety Project Environmental Assessment, and various other
campus expansion projects, including the current Facilities Master Plan EIR; Stanford General
Management Plan EIR, and Ohlone College Master Plan EIR.

Rob’s expertise includes coordinating interdisciplinary team efforts with client needs and
expectations; organizing and conducting public and agency dialogue; carrying out a wide variety
of natural resource analyses; refining and integrating work products from interdisciplinary team
members; assuring compliance with myriad environmental laws and regulations; and producing
highly readable, graphically effective, and legally adequate project reports and environmental
compliance documents.

Specific technical abilities include recreation and land use analysis and scenic assessment. Rob’s
recent experience includes the management of environmental documentation for the Lake Tahoe
Community College (Facilities Master Plan EIR), TRPA and Placer County (Homewood Ski Area
Master Plan EIR/EIS and Dollar Creek Shared Use Trail IS/IEC), TRPA and the USDA Forest
Service, LTBMU (Heavenly Mountain Resort Master Plan EIR/EIS/EIS), TRPA and El Dorado
County (Meyers Area Plan IS/IEC), and the TRPA and Tahoe Resource Conservation District
(Lake-Wide Aquatic Invasive Plant Control Plan IS/IEC).

Christy Consolini, Senior Planner

Christy is an environmental planner and manager with over 20 years of professional experience (11
years with HBA) involving environmental analysis, regulatory compliance, urban planning, and
project management. Christy is a project manager responsible for the preparation and oversight of
CEQA, NEPA, and TRPA environmental documents that have included initial studies, categorical
exemptions/exclusions, environmental assessments, mitigated negative declarations, and
environmental impact reports/statements prepared for residential, commercial, mixed use,

HAUGE BRUECK

ASSOCIATES Page 3



Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

industrial, transportation, solid waste, and public works projects. Her experience includes
permitting, construction specifications, environmental training workshops, scoping workshops, and
meeting presentations. She also provides on-call staff services and planning assistance. Christy’s
work focuses on land use, visual and scenic resources, recreation, population and housing,
socioeconomics, public services and utilities, project compliance, document review, analysis
criteria development and preparation of outreach materials. Christy received her B.A. in
Environmental Studies (Policy and Planning emphasis) from the University of California, Santa
Cruz in 1998. She has also received certification under the US Department of Labor OSHA 10-
hour Construction Safety and Health Certification (#001996223).

Her experience in preparing campus environmental documents includes Lake Tahoe Community
College Relocation Master Plan EIR/EIS, Child Care and Safety Project Environmental
Assessment, and various other campus expansion projects, including the current Facilities Master
Plan EIR; Stanford General Management Plan EIR, and Ohlone College Master Plan EIR and
various IS/MNDs for on-campus facilities. Recent projects include the Loomis Costco Project;
Tourist Core Area Plan Update in South Lake Tahoe; Tahoe South Event Center Project; Bollinger
Valley Project EIR; Sutter Creek General Plan Update, General Plan IS/MND, and various on-call
projects; SPMUD Loomis Diversion Pipeline IS/MND and construction-phase environmental
management and permitting; Lake Tahoe Community College EIR/EIS and other CEQA/TRPA
documentation; and the Meyers Area Plan TRPA/CEQA documentation.

Jen DeMartino, GIS/Mapping Specialist

Jennifer is a GIS specialist with over 18 years of experience (9 years collaborating with HBA
preparing high-quality cartography and map production, data analysis, and data development. She
provides GIS services for a wide variety of projects, including general plan updates, housing
availability studies, wetland delineations, environmental impact reports/statements, regional
transportation plans and circulation elements, biological surveys, feasibility studies and more.
Jennifer received her B.A. in geography from California State University Northridge in 1997 and
her M.A. in geography from California State University Northridge in 2001.

21 The HBA Subconsultant Team
HBA utilizes subcontractors to provide technical support for engineering and environmental topics
such as traffic and circulation, biological tesoutces, and cultural resources.

Peak & Associates, Inc.

Peak & Associates, Inc., a California corporation, offers archeological services and cultural
resource expertise to public agencies and private concerns. A woman-owned small business, Peak
& Associates operates with a full-time staff of two professional archeologists and a
historian/archeologist. The company also maintains an outstanding complement of expert
consultants and adjunct fieldwork and laboratory personnel ready to respond to large-scale projects.
Peak & Associates has the capability to carry out archeological and cultural resource projects of
many types, including technical field studies, Native American consultation, archeological and
historical section of environmental impact reports and statements and construction monitoring.
Since the firm's incorporation late in 1975, Peak & Associates has successfully completed over
6,000 projects in the fields of public archeology and cultural resource management.

Melinda Peak has served as the principal investigator on a wide range of prehistoric and historic
excavations throughout California. She has directed laboratory analyses of archeological materials,
including the historic period. She has also conducted a wide variety of cultural resource
assessments in California, including documentary research, field survey, Native American
consultation and report preparation. In addition, Ms. Peak has developed a second field of expertise

HAUGE BRUECK

A SSOCIATES Page 4

65



66

Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamiltan Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

in applied history, specializing in site-specific research for historic period resources. She is a
registered professional historian and has completed a number of historical research projects for a
wide variety of site types. Ms. Peak meets the Secretary of Interior Standards for historian,
architectural historian, prehistoric archeologist and historic archeologist.

Neal Neuenschwander manages the North Valley office of Peak & Associates, located in Chico,
California. His duties at Peak & Associates have included the field direction for multiple site
excavations and surveys throughout northern, central, and southern California, Nevada, Oregon
and Idaho. In this capacity, he has been responsible for the planning and implementation of every
aspect of the fieldwork, analysis, and report production phases. During his twenty-five years with
the company, he has developed a reputation for his ability to complete projects on-time and within
budget parameters, while at the same time maximizing the recovery and analysis of data for the
professional community.

Foothill Associates

Founded in 1995, Foothill Associates (www.foothill.com) is a Veteran-owned, California
Corporation with Small Business certification that provides a wide range of environmental
consulting, landscape architecture, and planning services to local governments, public agencies,
and private clients. OQur diverse staff comprises a wide range of technical specialists, including
regulatory specialists, biologists, botanists, wetland scientists, planners, landscape architects,
certified arborists, GIS specialists, and graphic designers. This unique multidisciplinary mix of
expertise allows us to integrate human uses, aesthetics, and functionality in our projects with key
environmental considerations such as treatment of stormwater runoff, habitat and special status
species preservation, greenhouse gas reduction, and water conservation. Foothill Associates
provides the full range of project cycle services from initial concept, public input facilitation, and
detail design through cost estimating, construction drawings, specifications, bid coordination,
construction oversight, CEQA/NEPA environmental documents, permitting, and monitoring.

KD Anderson & Associates, Inc.(

KD Anderson (www.kdanderson.com) is a consulting engineering practice serving Northern
California, the Central Valley, Oregon, and Nevada since 1990. We provide private clients and
government agencies with Regional Planning studies, Traffic Impact and Air Quality Studies,
Traffic Operations and Safety studies and Infrastructure Design for projects in the Metropolitan
Sacramento Area, and throughout a service area which ranges from Fresno to Redding and into
Northern Nevada and Lake Tahoe. We have been involved in the preparation of CEQA level traffic
studies for projects throughout the California region ranging from conventional residential and
commercial development proposals to Ski Resorts in the Sierra Nevada. KD Anderson has project
experience for more than 80 school districts throughout California.

Kenneth Anderson, P.E. is the firm's principal engineer and has over 35 years of experience. Since
establishing the firm, Mr. Anderson has focused on analysis of projects in the Central Valley and
Sierra Nevada Foothills. He has been responsible for our regional planning work including General,
Community and Specific Plans. This work has included the Del Webb Sun City - Roseville
Community in Placer County, the Diablo Grande, Coffee/Claratina, North Beyer, Pelandale/Snyder
Specific Plans and Eastgate Master Plan projects in Stanislaus County. In Yuba County, Mr.
Anderson was consultant on the Yuba County Motorplex and in Sacramento was responsible for
the Circulation Element of the Sacramento Army Depot Reuse Plan EIR. Prior to establishing his
own practice, Mr, Anderson spent ten years with OMNI-MEANS, Ltd., including five years as a
Principal and Head of the Transportation Department in Roseville.

HAUGE BRUECK

ASSOCIATES Page §



Proposal ta Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

3 SCOPE OF WORK

This scope of work assumes the District will provide both a short-term and long-term site plan for
the acquired land as well as potential changes to the existing high school site. This also assumes
documentation on the need for expansion will be provided to HBA by the District.

Task 1 Project Management

This task includes the routine coordination and management of the HBA Team, coordination with
the District and agencies, the implementation of HBA’s Quality Assurance/Quality Control
(QA/QC) procedures, maintenance of the Project Record and project administration including the
preparation of monthly progress reports and invoices.

1.1  Project Administration

HBA will maintain the program schedule, time records, and fiscal accounting through the contract
term. The HBA will prepare and submit monthly progress reports to the District. The progress
reports will provide a description of the work completed during the invoice period, an estimate of
the percent work completed to date, the updated program schedule, a discussion of the work
anticipated in the next billing period, and a description of potential issues with a corresponding
resolution of each issue.

Data and deliverables will be accessible to the District via BOX.com, a cloud based collaborative
site. Administrative drafts of documents will be made available to the District for review and
comment. Box.com tracks each version of a document and each individual that accesses the
document, providing the District with the ability to track the status of deliverables as they are
prepared.

1.2 Quality Assurance/Quality Control Program
The HBA will apply our QA/QC program. Budget for implementation of the QA/QC plan is
included within each task.

1.3  Project Record/Administrative Record

HBA will assemble and maintain the Project Record through the contract term. The Project Record
will contain information and documentation associated with the Project including data and
information, meeting documentation, maps and drawings, telephone conversations, analysis,
evaluation, referenced documents, analysis documentation, and relevant steps associated with
environmental analysis and documentation and other supporting documentation not covered by
copyright laws. Methodologies and processes used for inventory, analysis and impact assessment
will be included.

1.4  Project Kick-Off Meeting

A Project kick-off meeting will be held at the District offices with HBA to reach an understanding
of the Project, the process, and the data needs. The agenda will include a discussion on the work
program, schedule, Project Description, data needs, process requirements, and potential issues.

In preparation of the kick-off meeting, each participant will provide relevant documents and maps
for reference and discussion. HBA will provide the work program, schedule, and a list of data
needs. The District will provide the Project plan to be used in preparing the Project Description,
available studies and reports, and a list of mitigation measures incorporated into the Project that
avoid or reduce environmental impacts. The District will make available a copy of the relevant
plans and codes, including the goals, policies, codes, regulations, and standards to be applied to the

HAUGE BRUECK

A S SOCIATES Page 6

67



68

Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamiltan Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

Project. Each participant will be prepared to discuss potential issues and opportunities to include

i A AT At nna b tha Deninat that 1 H LS4 3
modifications to the Project that avoid ot reduce impacts (self-mitigating). At the outcome of the

kick-off meeting, HBA will prepare a list of action items with responsible parties and schedule.

1.5 Project Coordination
Project coordination includes communication with the District. The purpose of this task is to keep
critical participants informed of the process, identify issues early in the process, and reach consent
on the resolution of issues quickly.

HBA will schedule and manage Project coordination meetings budgeted by task. Project
coordination meetings participants include the HBA Project Manager, the District project manager,
and other attendees determined appropriate by the District.

Task2 CEQA Scoping

21 Project Description

Following the kick-off meeting, HBA will work with the District to draft the Project Description
to be used in the preparation of the environmental document. The District will identify Project
objectives.

I'he Project Description will include the Project history, characteristics of the Project site, the
Project objectives, standards incorporated in the Project that avoid or minimize environmental
impacts, the phasing of the Project, and the proposed improvements. The Project Description will
include components of the Project, operation plans, and design features, if available. The Project
Description will include appropriate graphics.

2.2 Notice of Preparation/Initial Study

HBA will prepare a combined Notice of Preparation and Initial Study (NOP/IS) and will submit
the NOP/IS in electronic format (MS Word) to the District for review and comment. The NOP will
include the dates of the scoping period and scoping meeting, and addresses where comments will
be received. HBA will make modifications as necessary for accuracy, and submit the final NOP
and IS in electronic format (PDF) to the District. HBA will produce and circulate the NOP/IS to
the State Clearinghouse, Responsible and Trustee Agencies, the Glenn County Clerk and. Interested
parties identified by the District. The District will prepare and maintain the Project mailing list.
HBA will work with the District to prepare and publish a legal ad for the NOP in a local newspaper.
HBA will prepare and facilitate the one-time publication of a legal advertisement per CEQA
Guidelines, Appendix I (project description, location, list of potential environmental effects,
scoping meeting dates/locations, where full copy of NOP can be found, etc.), in the local newspaper
and a one-time mailing of a postcard meeting notice to adjacent property owners.

2.3 Scoping Meeting and Report

During circulation of the NOP/IS, HBA will attend a public scoping meeting for the Project. This
scope and budget assumes the District would host a public scoping meeting and would be
responsible for making necessary public announcements for the meeting. HBA will prepare a
Powerpoint presentation and othet meeting materials to communicate relevant project and
alternatives details and project issues to the attendees. HBA will facilitate the meeting, present
Project information to the public and will take detailed meeting minutes, including a list of
comments and questions and any answers provided. These minutes will be used to prepare a
Scoping Report summarizing comments and potential impacts to be considered. One electronic
(MS Word) Draft Scoping Report will be provided for District review. HBA will revise the

HAUGE BRUECK

A SSOCIATES Page 7



Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamilton Unified Schoal District
Hamilton City, CA

document based on District comments, and will submit one electronic (PDF) copy of the Final
Scoping Report.

Based on the Scoping process and preliminary environmental analysis, HBA will revise the Project
Description.

Task 3 Technical Studies

3.1 Cultural Resources Report

The HBA Team (Peak & Associates) will prepare a cultural resources report to be used in the
Focused EIR for the project. This report can be used to demonstrate CEQA compliance for future
development of the project area and can be used to support applicability of categorical exemptions
in the future, if no resources are present. A records search for the project area will be conducted
through the Northeast Information Center (NEIC) of the California Historical Resources
Information System. This will provide all the. Information on any sites within the project area and
will identify all previous surveys of the project area. Next, a field check for any indication of the
presence of cultural resources within the project area will occur. This assumes the District will
provide access to the property for the field survey. Finally, a report will be prepared for submittal
for CEQA review containing the cultural background, results of the record search, field survey
results, site evaluation to the degree possible, conclusions and recommendations. Site records for
any resources found during the survey will be appended and an electronic copy provided.

3.2 Biological Resources Assessment

The HBA Team (Foothill & Associates) will prepare a biological resources assessment to be used
in the Focused EIR for the project. This report can be used to demonstrate CEQA compliance for
future development of the project area and can be used to support applicability of categorical
exemptions in the future, if no resources are present. Available materials regarding existing site
conditions, biological resources, and wetlands (e.g. USGS topographic maps, NRCS soils maps,
and California Natural Diversity Database) for the 45-acre will be reviewed. Following the records
search, a field survey will be conducted to identify plant communities on the site, sensitive
vegetation communities, including potential wetland features, and an evaluation of the potential for
the site to support special-status plant and wildlife species will occur. The edge of potential
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) jurisdiction within the parcel if it differs from
the edge of potential jurisdictional waters will also be mapped.

Following the field survey, a biological resources assessment will be prepared that identifies
biological resources and potential biological constraints, such as wetlands, assesses the likelihood
of special-status species or habitats to be found on the project site, and recommends further studies,
if needed, or permitting that may be required prior to development. The report will include a soil
map and map of biological communities and constraints. A draft report will be submitted
electronically, and a final report will be submitted following client review.

3.3 Traffic Study

The HBA Team (KD Anderson & Associates) will prepare a traffic study for the project. Current
traffic volume information will be assembled for the SR 32 / Canal Road intersection which is near
the school. Current traffic conditions based on operating Level of Service during the morning
period before the school day begins will be evaluated. The project trip generation will be estimated
for ultimate enrollment of both high school and relocated middle school based on approved trip
generation rates. Trips will be assigned to the local street system based on the location of residences
within the schools’ enrollment areas, and impacts resulting solely from the project will be
identified. Cumulative impacts associated with other approved / pending / planned local projects
as well as long term regional growth on SR 32 will be described. If necessary, mitigation measures

HAUGE BRUECK

ASSOCIATES Page 8

69



70

Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

needed to reduce impacts to a less than significant level will be tdentified and evaluated. Project
Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) will be estimated.

We will participate in a telephone conference to discuss school characteristics and the proposed
school layout. We will request information regarding the current and ultimate enrollment at both
schools, bell schedules, the number of students bussed and the geographic locations of student
residences within the schools’ probable attendance areas, etc. We will contact applicable Caltrans
staff to: review the project description and assumptions; review our proposed work program and to
discuss Caltrans traffic study guidelines, significance criteria, etc.; obtain available traffic volume
and pedestrian counts; and review background information, including the SR 32 TCR, and current
traffic signal timing plans. Under this study phase, current intersection traffic volumes, capacities
and operating Levels of Service (LOS) will be described. Any existing capacity traffic safety
deficiencies will be noted.

We will conduct a field review to acquaint ourselves with the site and to collect the physical data
required to complete this analysis. Ana.m. peak hour (7:00 to 9:00 a.m.) traffic/ pedestrian/bicycle
volume base will be established for the study intersection. Any available information will be
reused, but new counts will be made where required. Any new traffic counts will be made when
HUSD schools are in session. Our study area is commensurate with the project’s size and location
and includes SR 32/Canal Road.

A field review will be conducted to identify any capacity or safety deficiencies that may already
exist in the study area. Operating Levels of Service and 95% percentile queue lengths will be
calculated using methodologies that are acceptable to Caltrans, and the extent to which
improvements are already needed will be determined. Sight distance at the proposed project access
will be investigated. Current parking restrictions on local streets, if any, will be noted. Facilities
that are available or planned for school age pedestrians and bicyclists will be identified. Current
transit operations and planned roadway improvements will also be described.

The extent to which the development of the project may, by itself, impact the area street system
will be determined. The number of automobile trips that may be generated by the project will be
estimated through application of approved trip generation rates to the net ultimate enrollment
increase anticipated at the site. The distribution of project trips will then be identified based on the
relative distribution of residences within the schools’ planned attendance area (inbound trips to the
school) and the location of shopping and regional employment centers (outbound trips), as well as
current school travel patterns. Information regarding the limits of the area to be served by this
school will need to be provided by the District. Project trips will then be assigned to the area street
system based on the least travel time path between origin and destination. The trip assignment will
reflect implementation of any traffic controls at site access (i.e., stops signs, medianization, etc.),
as well as the relocation of existing middle school trips that may be using the intersection today.

Existing Plus Project traffic volumes will be identified, and traffic operations and Levels of Service
/ queue lengths will be recalculated with the proposed project. The extent to which development
of this project may contribute to the need for improvements to satisfy minimum LOS standards will
be evaluated. The effects of the project on bicycle and pedestrian activity and safety will be
described.

We will evaluate the adequacy of access to the site, internal circulation, drop-off and loading under
peak conditions to ensure that backup to the state highway does not occur. We will also consider
the amount of space used by parents in the afternoon when waiting to pick up students. We will
identify the parking / loading demand based on previous observations of after school loading
conditions at other schools to suggest demands on the campus. The extent to which demands can
be accommodated on-site will be determined and the extent of on-street loading will be discussed.

HAUGE BRUECK

ASSOCIATES Page 8



Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

The project’s contribution to regional VMT will be estimated based on available technical
resources. We anticipate calculating VMT based on a project daily trip generation estimate and
assumed average trip distance within the HUSD school boundaries. The net effect of the school
project will be estimated in comparison to the travel under the No Project condition assuming
continuing operation of existing schools.

The impacts of the project will also be evaluated within the context of cumulative traffic conditions
occurring over the foreseeable future. This evaluation will address development of other approved
projects and long term growth on SR 32. The cumulative condition will reflect occupancy of other
“approved / pending” but not yet constructed projects identified by Glenn County. We will contact
County staff to identify any projects that should be assumed. We will then superimpose the trips
generated by background projects on to the background condition. We will also identify an
applicable long term traffic volume growth rate for SR 32 in consultation with Caltrans staff.
Resulting Cumulative traffic volumes with and without the proposed project will be identified.
Traffic operations, Levels of Service, queueing and safety issues that result from future traffic
growth will be identified. Improvement projects that are identified in the SR 32 TCR, are already
funded by Caltrans or Glenn County or are required of other development will be noted. Levels of
Service will be identified for “No Project" and "With Project” conditions, and the significance of
project impacts will be evaluated with regard to Glen County GP and Caltrans significance criteria.
The need to control school access to maintain traffic flow and ensure safety in the future will be
assessed.

The extent to which mitigation measures are needed to reduce project specific or cumulative
impacts will be identified. The extent to which needed improvements are already included in
adopted fee programs will be determined. Mitigation measures required to eliminate current safety
problems, reduce project impacts to a less than significant level or to meet other Caltrans or Glenn
County standards will be identified. Improvements that would bridge gaps in the pedestrian or
bicycle networks will be identified. Mitigation Measures will be separated into the four categories:
1. Improvements that are already required to remedy existing deficiencies; 2. Mitigation
specifically required as a direct result of the project, including design recommendations; 3.
Mitigation measures needed for future traffic whether or not the project is built; and 4. Additional
Mitigation needed in the future due to the project. The extent to which identified improvements are
included in any adopted traffic impact fee program will be determined. If necessary, the project’s
fair share responsibility for cumulative mitigation will be calculated.

Task4 Focused EIR

4.1 Draft Focused EIR

HBA will prepare an administrative draft EIR for review by the District and will provide the District
with one (1) MS Word file and one (1) electronic file version (PDF) of the Administrative Draft
EIR for review. HBA assumes the District will provide one consolidated version of comments
from all District reviewers in one single draft set of comments. Upon receipt of District comments,
HBA will revise the EIR and provide a draft Notice of Availability (NOA) electronically for District
review. HBA will prepare the print-ready draft EIR and Notice of Completion (NOC). HBA will
provide the District with one (1) MS Word file and one (1) electronic file version (PDF), as well as
twenty-five (25) bound hardcopies of the Draft EIR for District distribution. HBA will submit
electronic (PDF) copies of the final Notice of Availability (NOA) and Notice of Completion
(NOC). This scope and budget assumes the District will develop and maintain the project mailing
list and distribute to local, state, and federal agencies, and other interested persons the NOA, NOC,
and Draft EIR. The following sections will be included in the EIR.

Chapter 1: Introduction

HAUGE BRUECK

A SSOCIATES Page 10

71



72

Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamiltoan Unified Schoal District
Hamilton City, CA

HBA will prepare an introduction that provides a summary of the existing conditions (setting)
and expianation of the background of ihe Project.
Chapter 2: Executive Summary

HBA will prepare an executive summary that provides an overview of the findings presented
in the EIR. The chapter will include the summary table and an alternative analysis matrix.

Chapter 3: Project Description, Objectives, and Alternatives

The Project Description will be included in this chapter as refined in response to scoping.
HBA will prepare the No Project Description and a description of up to two alternatives that
feasibly attain most of the basic objectives of the project, but will avoid or substantially lessen
any of the significant effects of the Project for evaluation in the EIR.

Chapter 4: Environmental Analysis

Each CEQA resource section will include a brief description of the affected environment
(setting), a discussion of the methodology, analytical methods used to analyze impacts, a
description of environmental evaluation criteria with points of significance (thresholds), an
analysis of direct and indirect environmental impacts, a description of cumulative effects, and
mitigation to avoid or reduce potentially significant impacts to a less than significant level.
Each section will identify and utilize references from previous environmental documentation
conducted as appropriate.

Chapter 5: Other CEQA Considerations
This section will summarize the conclusions of the EIR including significant impacts,
cumulative impacts, growth-inducing impacts, significant irreversible environmental changes,
and significant unavoidable environmental effects.

Appendices - Appendices, as appropriate, will be incorporated into the EIR. A glossary
developed early in the process will be included. The references utilized in this EIR will be
listed. Consistent with the requirements of CEQA, copies of cited references will be provided
to the District and made accessible to the public. HBA will include a list of individuals who
contributed to the preparation of each section of the EIR and a list of organizations and persons
consulted.

4.2 Public Review and Comment Meeting

The Draft EIR will circulate for 45 days for public review and comments. During the public
comment period, the District will host a public hearing on the Draft EIR. Staff from HBA will
attend the meeting to hear and take notes on the oral comments on the Draft EIR, as well as respond
to questions as needed.

4.3 Final EIR

HBA will draft responses to comments received on the draft EIR and prepare the administrative
draft final EIR. It is assumed that up to ten (10) distinct comments will be received requiring
approximately 60 minutes each for response. The approach is to incorporate final EIR sections into
the draft EIR, providing a single consolidated document for certification. This provides a consistent
and complete document for use during the implementation of the Project. The final EIR will
include a new chapter to describe the purpose of the final EIR, the public comment process, and
the structure of the final EIR. An appendix will be included that provides the comments and
response to each comment. As appropriate, the text of the EIR will be revised in response to the
input received during the comment period, including an update of the list of persons, organizations,

and public agencies commenting. Revisions to the draft EIR will be shown in legislative mode
(strikethrough and underline text). HBA will prepare a Mitigation Monitoring Plan to be included
as an appendix to the final EIR. HBA will provide one (1) MS Word file and one (1) electronic file
version (PDF) of the Final EIR in legislative mode.

HAUGE BRUECK

A SSOCI ATES Page 11



Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

Task 5 Decision and Closeout

5.1 Findings
HBA will prepare draft CEQA findings of fact to support certification of the final EIR and if
necessary, Findings of Overriding Consideration for inclusion in the District resolution. District

Staff will assist in preparing the findings.

5.2 Decision Meeting
HBA will prepare the materials for the decision meetings held by the District. HBA will attend
one meeting of the District. HBA will make a presentation on the findings of the EIR and will be

available to answer comments.

5.3 Notice of Determination

HBA will prepare the NOD after the District has made a decision on the certification of the EIR
and the approval/denial of the Project. HBA will deliver the NOD to the State Office of Planning
and Research to begin the protest period. The District will file the NOD at the County Clerk’s
office. The District is responsible for paying the California Fish and Wildlife fees that must be
submitted to the Clerk of the Board with the NOD.

5.4 Closeout

Documentation of the IS/MND analysis process will be recorded in the Project Record and
provided to the District. HBA shall submit one (1) copy of the finalized EIR will all changes
accepted. The Project Record will be delivered after the NOD has been filed, this will conclude

the obligations of this scope of work.

HAUGE BRUECK

A SSOCIATES Page 12

73



74

Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

4 BUDGET

HBA'’s proposed budget is provided on the following page.

HAUGE BRUECK

A SSOCI!I ATES Page 13



6107 'L Areruqag

Vrivizende

223nye 3anvy

a|qe|jear Jua)Xa Y3 01 Pasn aq |Iim SUIWINTOP 3jqe|ene Buisixy
3|QEISAIIP Yaea 4o 591dod Juoira(a apiacid (|IM FEH

JuaWwWo> sad unoy T @ 03 pap

ag m

I ot

sBuj(lew pue ‘SUO;IEIYIOU ‘SWO0s BurBIW JO 53503 3Y3 ISAOD |IM TAIIEK]

syIuow 7T 03 dN s) swiely aw ) 1EfoLd

060 oL

SNOILdWNSSY
000°6£$ 08028 M 076948 _ s _ 080z | 006'01S | ooz'zs | 00szS | 00TTS | ooc'es | oos'svs | ocov'ss 199png paiewns3 [g10]
] 6] 1 o1 3 i3 I3 =mon e[
SL1§ orts 0ETS 08§ S orTs 0028 saiey E:ax_
[ 0 [ [] [i] ] 2 o naasen (5
o5 [:] [] 0 -] 1] 3 [1] ueneuLsean o N | £5
L33 o o o [ ] E) )4 TR0 Y USEnG BITOE UG L
o5 0 0 o o o T T —_ o TS5
002'vS 00ES | 00G€s | ozt 00€S 0 0 0 [ 0 3 5 IN03S0|) PUB U0|S193Q S
o5 0 0 [ 0 z o T [UBWLO 0] 35ucdsay pue Y3 [euld 13
00ES o Q 0 [ o 9T 14 'y
o 0 0 o o [ 3 ¥ JON PUE "YON Y13 =g
[ o 0 o o o 5 ] urd By pur waediE g
035 ) ) 0 [ o ] [] LUAAA[0Y PONTEVTD WOLUd RRIEG0i) TTROD 1SmPa0ay
o5 ] 0 [ [ ] El T 3 YD
o5 o a [] [ ] g SSoInosay [N +
oS 0 0 0 [ 0 Tt TSN AN (CA DG ©
0% 0 o L) o o
0% [ [] [ [] [ $33)]35 2N +|
0§ o a o a a S|EUNE|A SNOPSEZEH PUE Spezey -
as ] ] [ [] [] i S0 pue ABo03D -
o5 o ] ] o T 13 AR 2P U ABSEIRAY -
0! 0 0 o L] o :] O3Sy -|
0! 0 0 o o o £ FUEN -
O ] 0 [2] [] [2] 3 28uey) ;ewID -
o 0 0 0 o a L] Ayeny ay -|
0! Q 0 0 [] o (1] dljjel] pue uoEUodsuRIY -
[ 0 0 a a o 2 uopeanay =
o5 a Q 0 0 [ 8 EIUOUIIICIOT put Hrindy ‘Lot inga -
(=3 0 a [ a [ [43 Toamoay Rl -
[ [ [] 1] 0 H 9 ERTIGE
suoIaS sisAR(BUY YOI
05 [] [] [] [:] * 34 T SBARUISYY PuE s3SI O ‘uondLssq 1alold
05 3] 0 0 [ [ i T SUOISIUTD 3 |F JO Alewrwing|
05 0 0 0 [ ¥ 3 [) ‘wonanponu| e
00Z'TvS 00ES | 006°0vS | 682 00ES [0 0 0 0 91 85 ST ¥13 pasnaog v
001§ 79 [] 0 0 [] z 0 Apras e | TE
08t5 a S5 0 [ [] T a e el T aaar]| TE
[ 1] 0 6T o 3 T [] Jaday sunossy feimna| (53
00p'z2s 0065 | 005125 | ST 0065 79 S9 61 0 T 9 0 S3IpM)§ [eanuya) 3
00€3 0 [] L] 0 [ [] )4 Uoday pur Rmasyy BRcoss €
05 0 0 ] o 0 (43 0 SI/JON; (4
& By — S T 0 ] ] 1] 0 m.m T DTS TR 1°C
000'55 O0ES | 00CSs | GE | O0ES 0 0 0 0 z [ 5 o35 Vo3 z
03 o 0 0 0 o 3 v D ) ST
082S 0 Q [ 14 £ BUn33 A 0P Palid LA
05 0 8 0 0 0 PICORY 2ARNSIUILPY/pIoazY Palold €1
0S Q Q 1] [] 0 U|d 23URINSSY Aljjeny) 71
05 0 1] E] 0 0 S UoneRsILIWpPY Palcly 1
002'55 0825 065 | 9 K ] 0 ] [ 0 3 T WowsHeuely Dajoig I
Brug
auniewor | ouneneq | mrosuoo | L0E

75



76

5 HBARESUMES

HAUGE BRUECK

ASSOCI ATES

Proposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

Page 15



HAUGE BRUECK

AS5SSOCIATES

Anders Hauge
Partner

W 916-283-3800

d 530-762- 1641

¢ 916-307-76354

ahaugen@haugebrucck.com

EDUCATION

B.S. City and Regional
Planning, 1971

Certitied Program Manager,
2006

Desert Tortoise Training
Certification #12381

AREAS OF
SPECIALIZATION

Program/Project
Management

Planning

Environmental Compliance
Resource Management
Permitting

Public Tnvolvement
Contract Staffing

Anders Hauge

Anders Hauge is a land use planner and environmental planner
responsible for managing and performing environmental, general plan,
mitigation, on-call staffing, and public outreach programs. Mr. Hauge
has successfully managed large, complex and controversial programs that
include the management of large multidisciplinary teams to address a
range of technical and political issues inherent in planning and
environmental processes.

Mr. Hauge manages environmental documents meeting the requirements
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and the Rules and Regulations of the
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA). Unique to projects within
the Lake Tahoe Basin, Mr. Hauge prepares a single document that meets
the combined requirements of CEQA, NEPA, and the TRPA.

Anders career has spanned 47 years, first as a public agency planner and
second as a planning consultant. As a public agency planner Anders has
worked in California, Maine and Colorado. As a planning consultant
Anders has worked in California, Georgia, Nevada, Arizona, Venezuela,
and the Dominican Republic.

Major projects managed by Mr. Hauge include: The Redwood City
Saltworks Project Environmental Team, Santa Rosa Long-Term
Wastewater Project EIR/EIS, Sutter Creek Gold Rush Ranch Project,
South Tahoe PUD wastewater and water projects, the Lake Tahoe
Airport Master Plan/EIR-EIS, the Heavenly Ski Resort Master Plan/EIR-
EIS, the Nevada County General Plan and EIR, the Mariposa County
General Plan and EIR, and the Arizona Military Airport Land Use
Compatibility Program.

Anders is the contract planner for the City of Sutter Creek, engaged in
the management of the General Plan Update and review of Use Permits
and subdivisions. Anders is currently managing the Town of Loomis
Costco Project processing and the SPMUD Diversion Line Project’s
permit implementation.

EMPLOYMENT SUMMARY

2006- Date: ~ Hauge Brueck Associates, LLC. Partner

2018-Date Placer County Planning Commissioner, District 5
2015- Date: ~ A&J Lund Farms, Co-Trustee and Managing Partner
1989-2006: Parsons (Harland Bartholomew & Associates), Manager
1979-1989: Quad Consultants, Vice President

1979: Wickersham, Hauge and Associates, Inc., President
1976-1979: Town of Breckenridge, Colorado, Community

Development Director

2233 Watt Avenue. Suite 300 + Sacramento, CA 9582516

717



78

Anders Hauge

1974-1976:  California Tahoe Regional Planning Agency, Senior Planner/Acting Executive
1973-1974:  City of Woodland, California. Associate Planner

1973-1974:  City of Winters, California. Planning Director

1971-1973:  City of Bangor, Maine. Planner I

1969-1971:  Cal Poly City and Regional Planning Library, Librarian

1967-1968:  PMT Engineers, Computer Operator & Staff Assistant

1963-1967:  Auburn Boulevard Veterinary Hospital, Staff

EMPLOYMENT

2006-Date: Hauge Brueck Associates, LLC. Partner. Mr. Hauge manages planning and
environmental projects. Anders has managed the Town of Loomis SPMUD Diversion Line IS/MND,
City of Susanville Riverside Trail Project ISSMND, City of San Joaquin General Plan update and EIR,
Mariposa County General Plan and EIR, Sutter Creek Gold Rush Ranch Project Processing, SNWA
South Valley Facilities Expansion EIS, multiple South Tahoe PUD projects, and the Redwood City
Saltworks Project Environmental Scoping. Anders currently manages task order projects under the South
Tahoe PUD On-Call contract, Town of Loomis Costco Processing, is the on-call staff planner for the City
of Sutter Creek and manages applicant reimbursable projects for the City of Sutter Creek. Mr. Hauge is
the Placer County Planning Commissioner for Supervisorial District 5.

2015-Date: A&J Lund Farms, Managing Partner. Mr. Hauge is a Co-Trustee and Managing Partner
of A&J Lund Farms, a family owned farm. The farm includes approximately 400 acres in three fields
located in Sutter County, California. Various crops are grown on the farm including rice, comn, melons,
sunflower, tomatoes, and cucumbers. The farm is leased to Hoppin Family Farms.

1989-2006: Parsons/Harland Bartholomew & Associates. Program Director. Mr. Hauge managed
Parsons’ environmental team supporting the Southern Nevada Water Authority’s In-State Water Resource
Development Projects. Mr. Hauge managed the Santa Rosa Long-Term Wastewater Project EIR/EIS for
the City of Santa Rosa implementing the Geysers Recharge Project. Mr. Hauge was the co-author of the
Parsons Environmental Planning Toolkit (PEPT) an on-line interactive CEQA/NEPA analysis tool.

Mr. Hauge opened Parsons’/Harland Bartholomew & Associates Sacramento office in 1989 focusing on
environmental documentation, land use planning and public outreach. The Sacramento operation
expanded to include offices in Santa Rosa and Lake Tahoe. As Parsons’ organizational structure evolved,
Mr. Hauge managed Parsons’ Western Region Planning Group and managed Parsons’ State and
Municipal Planning Sector.

1979-1989: Quad Consultants. Vice President. Mr. Hauge was responsible for managing Quad’s
Northern California programs. Mr. Hauge managed general plans, site plans, master plans, design
guidelines, environmental documents, recreation plans, public outreach programs, consent building
programs, and policy plans.

1979: Wickersham, Hauge and Associates, Inc. President. Mr. Hauge provided services to municipal
clients in establishing performance regulations and site planning to private clients.

1976-1979: Town of Breckenridge, Colorado. Community Development Director. Mr. Hauge
managed the Town’s advanced planning, current planning, economic development and building
inspection services. Mr. Hauge received the American Institute of Planners Meritorious Planning Award
for the Breckenridge Performance Regulatory System he co-developed and implemented.

2233 Watt Avenue, Suite 300 + Sacramento, CA 9582517



Anders Hauge

1974-1976: California Tahoe Regional Planning Agency. Senior Planner/Acting Executive Officer.
Mr. Hauge prepared the EIR on the California Tahoe Regional Plan and was a staff planner on the team
that wrote the Regional Plan and Code of Ordinances. Mr. Hauge, as Acting Executive Officer, was
responsible for implementation of the Regional Plan and Code of Ordinance upon adoption in 1976.

1973-1974: City of Woodland, California. Associate Planner. Mr. Hauge was responsible for multiple
assignments including, developing the City’s first CEQA guidelines, writing the City’s first landscape
ordinance, updating the sign ordinance, designing the City logo, managing the General Plan update,
designing neighborhood parks, conducting project reviews, and code enforcement responsibility.

1973-1974: City of Winters, California. Planning Director. Mr. Hauge provided general planning and
project review services for the City of Winters while working for the City of Woodland.

1971-1973: City of Bangor, Maine. Planner I. Mr. Hauge worked under the supervision of the
planning director and was the planning staff to the Bangor Redevelopment Agency.

MEMBERSHIPS, REGISTRATIONS, AND
CERTIFICATES
SNWA Desert Tortoise Training Certification #12381, 2007
Parsons Program Manager Certification, 2006

HONORARY AFFILIATIONS

Placer County Planning Commission, 2018-date.
Placer County Meadow Vista Municipal Advisory Council, 2013-2018.
Vice President, State and Local Affairs, California Chapter APA, 1983-1984.

Northern Legislative Director, California Chapter APA, 1979-1982.

Director, Sacramento Valley Section/California Chapter APA, 1975-1976, 1982-1983, 1988-1989, and
1998-2000.

Past Director, Sacramento Valley Section APA, 1989-1991 and 2000-2004.

Secretary/Treasurer, Sacramento Valley Section, American Institute of Planners, 1974-1975.

PUBLICATIONS

“Practicing Planner,” National Planning Awards, Breckenridge Development Code, December 1978.
Water Environment Federation, 1998 National Conference Session, Co-author, “Turning Reclaimed
Water into Energy,” Orlando, Florida.

Parsons Environmental Planning Toolkit (PEPT), Parsons web site and selected client web sites, 2004

PRESENTATIONS

Sacramento Valley Section, California Chapter American Planning Association, Getting to Yes, 2017
City of Placerville Chamber of Commerce, Performance Regulatory Systems, 2011

Kiwanis Club of Sacramento Surban, Water in the Desert, 2010

2233 Watt Avenue, Suite 300 » Sacramento, CA 958258

79



80

Anders Hauge

Parsons Corporate Meeting and multiple regional presentations, Demonstration of Parsons Environmental

Planning Toolkit (PEPT), 2004

California Chapter APA, 2002 State Conference Session speaker, “Mariposa County General Plan:
Building Backwards,” San Diego, October 2002.

University of California Hasting College of the Law, Hasting West-Northwest Journal of Environmental
Law and Policy Sixth Annual Environmental Law Symposium “Smart Growth: How Smart Is 1t?”
“Lessons Learned Implementing Smart Growth Strategies”, San Francisco, CA, March 2001.

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California Workshop on Watershed Management, Session
Leader, October 2000.

National University, Management 635, lecturer: Selling in a consulting firm, Dick Milbrodt professot,
July 1998.

Water Environment Federation, 1997 National Conference Speaker, “Not in My Back Forty; Santa Rosa’s
Water Reuse Program,” Chicago, Illinois.

Association of Environmental Professionals, 1997 Statewide Conference Speaker, "Environmental
Planning in the information Age: The Internet and other New Technologies,” San Francisco, CA.

Nevada Water Pollution Federation, 1997 Statewide Conference Speaker, “Reuse Opportunities of the
Santa Rosa Long-Term Wastewater Project,” Las Vegas.

California State Polylechnic Universily San Luis Obispo, Planning 102, guest lecturer, 1997.
CalTrans Land Planning Workshops, 1996
California Chapter APA Conference, speaker, “Permit Regulatory System,” Santa Cruz, CA, 1979.

National Association of Home Builders, 1979 National Conference Speaker, “Breckenridge Development
Code,” Las Vegas.

Workshops, “T.and Use Development Guidelines”: Breckenridge, CO; Boulder, CO; Bozeman, Montana;
Las Vegas, NV; Placerville, CA; Redding, CA, New Orleans, LA: 1978 — 1979.

American Institute of Planners, National Conference Speaker, “Breckenridge Development Code,” New
Orleans, 1978.

AWARDS

American Planning Association, Arizona Chapter, Multi-Agency Plan State Award, Davis-Monthan
AFB-City of Tucson-Pima County-Arizona Department of Commerce, Joint Land Use Study, 2004.

American Planning Association, California Chapter, Northern Section, Award of Merit for Innovative
Use of Technology, “Santa Rosa Subregional Long-Term Wastewater Project,” 1998.

Association of Environmental Professionals Outstanding Environmental Analysis Document, “Santa Rosa
Subregional Long-Term Wastewater Project Draft EIR/EIS,” May 1997.

American Planning Association, California Chapter, Sacramento Valley Section, Award for Outstanding
Comprehensive Planning Program, City of Folsom General Plan, 1989.

American Planning Association, California Chapter, Sacramento Valley Section, Award for Outstanding
Comprehensive Planning Program, South Tahoe Public Utility District Mitigation Program 1983-1987,
1988.

American Institute of Planners Meritorious Program Award for the Breckenridge Colorado Development
Code, 1978.

2233 Watt Avenue, Suite 300 - Sacramento, CA 9582519



Anders Hauge

PROJECTS

Environmental Documentation

City of Auburn, CA
Auburn Airport Master Plan EIR
California Tahoe Regional Planning Agency
California Tahoe Regional Plan EIR, 1976
City of Ceres, CA
North Central Annexation EIR, 1990
City of Davis, CA
Mace Ranch Park EIR, 2002
City of Dixon, CA
Southwest Dixon Specific Plan EIR, 1994
East Incline Improvement District
Water Quality Improvements, 2016
City of Gustine, CA
Valley Vista Apartments MND, 2012
SR Solis Solar PV MND, 2012
Incline Village, NV
East Incline Village Water Quality
Improvement Project NEPA, 2015
City of Lodi, CA
Pro-Style Sports Complex, 2001
Town of Loomis, CA
SPMUD Diversion Line IS/MND, 2015
County of Marin, CA
Marin County Airport (Gnoss Field) EIR
Mariposa County, CA
General Plan EIR, 2006
Catheys Valley Community Plan Negative
Declaration, 2007
Road Standards Negative Declaration, 2007
Catheys Valley Supplemental EIR, 2010
Mount Shasta Ski Park, CA
Mount Shasta Ski Park Master Plan
EIR/EIS/Scoping
New Life Christian Center
New Life Christian Center Project MND,2012
Ohlone College
Ohlone College Master Plan EIR
Plumas-Eureka Community Services District
Arsenic Mitigation Permitting 2016-2018
Redwood City, CA
Saltworks Project Environmental
Documentation, 2010-2012
City of Rocklin, CA
Rocklin Civic Center Specific Plan EIR
City of Rohnert Park, CA
Stadium Area Master Plan EIR, 2006-2008

2233 Watt Avenue, Suite 300 » Sacramento, CA 95825 20

City of Sacramento, CA
Sacramento River Marina EIR
City of San Joaquin
Rose Solar EIR Review, 2012
San Joaquin General Plan EIR, 2012-2014
Santa Clara County, CA
Stanford University General Plan, 2000
Santa Rosa, City of, CA and US Corps of
Engineers
Santa Rosa Sub-regional Long-Term
Wastewater Project EIR/EIS, 2000-2005
Siskiyou County, CA
Siskiyou County Airports (5) EIRs
Siskiyou Lake Highlands EIR
Southern Nevada Water Authority, NV
In-State Water Resource Development
Projects
Clark Lincoln and White Pine Counties
Groundwater Development Project
Virgin and Muddy Rivers
Surface Water Development Project
Three Lakes Groundwater Project
Coyote Springs to Moapa Pipeline
South Placer Municipal Utility District
Diversion Pipeline Permitting, 2015-2016
South Tahoe Public Utility District, CA
Bayview Well EA, 2007
Indian Creek Reservoir TMDL EA, 2007
Recycled Water Facilities Master Plan
City of Susanville
Sierra Community Park MND, 2013
Riverside Trail IS/MND, 2015
Sutter County, CA
Fountainville EIR
City of Sutter Creek, CA
Housing Element Negative Declaration,
2007
Housing Element Negative Declaration,
2015
Gold Rush Ranch and Golf Resort EIR
editor, 2007-2009
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA), CA
and NV
Kings Run EIS
Tahoe Queen EIR/EIS
TRPA & PG&E
Echo Lake Dam Replacement EA

81



82

TRPA & El Dorado County
El Dcrado Coun‘t_" Toil ot T olen Tnl‘-ne
)’ Jatl L LAne 1 aliyv
EIR/EIS

Golden Bear Park Draft EIR/EIS
TRPA & South Tahoe Public Utility District
Wastewater Treatment Facility Expansion
Final EIR/EIS/EIS, 1989
Mitigation Program Development, 1980
Mitigation Program Monitoring, 1979 -
1988
Wastewater Holding Pond EIR
Fallen Leaf Lake Sewer Collection
Modification EA
Luther Pass Pump Station EA
Tahoe Keys Water Well EA
Alpine County Alternatives EIS, 2001
TRPA & Lake Tahoe Community College
College Master Plan Relocation EIR/EIS
Child Care and Safety Project EA
TRPA & City of South Lake Tahoe
Lake Tahoe Airport Interim Service
Agreement EA
Air Cal Operations EIR
Loop Road EIS/EIR
Westates Air Service EIR/EIS
TRPA, FAA & City of South Lake Tahoe

Anders Hauge

Lake Tahoe Airport Master Plan
EIR/EIS/EIS
TRPA, USFS, & Heavenly Ski Resort
Heavenly Ski Resort Master Plan
EIR/EIS/EIS, 1996
Gondola EA, 1998
Tulare County
Bosman Dairy EIR and Use permit
Decision Documents, 2010
Tule River Tribe Wastewater EIR review,
2010
Tule River Tribe Housing EIR review, 2010
SolarGen Solar Projects Processing, 2010
Stone Corral Solar PV EIR, 2012-2013
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation & SNWA
South Valley Facilities Expansion EIS,
2007-2008
City of Ventura, CA
Ventura Keys/Arrundell Baranca
Settlement, 2000
City of West Sacramento, CA
UNOCAL EIR, 1991
Sacramento River Water Filtration Plant EIR
City of Woodland, CA
Wastewater Treatment Plant EIR

Public Outreach and Consent Building

Arizona, State of
Arizona Military Regional Compatibility Plan,
2002

West Valley/Luke AFB
Davis Monthan AFB

City of Auburn, CA
General Plan Growth Policy, 1992
City of Bangor, ME

Kenduskeag Stream Regional Park consensus
group, 1972-73

Chevron Environmental Management Company
Communications Task Force, 2001
eBusiness Task Force, 2001

El Dorado County, CA

Open Space and Conservation Steering
Committee, 1986-87

Missouri Flat Specific Plan Committee,
1988-89
South Tahoe Recreation Master Plan, 1998.

2233 Watt Avenue, Suite 300 +« Sacramento, CA 9582521

City of Folsom, CA

Folsom General Plan Committee (15),
1988-89

Folsom Recreation Plan outreach, 1988

Humbug/Willow Creek Plan, 1989

Folsom Historic District, 1990
Heavenly Ski Resort and TRPA, CA & NV

Ski Resort Master Plan Community
Workshops, 1996

Mariposa County, CA
Planning Fairs (6), 2001
Agritourism Workshop, 2007

Catheys Valley Community Plan
Workshops, 2007

Mono County, CA
MonoPlan, 1982
Nevada County, CA
General Plan Committee of 500, 1994



Redwood City, CA

Saltworks Project “Understanding the
Environmental Review Process”, 2010

Saltworks Project “Land Use and Housing
Open House Scoping Meeting”, 2010

Saltworks Project “Water Supply,
Wastewater, Flooding, and Sea Level Rise
Open House Scoping Meeting”, 2010

Saltworks Project “Natural Resources Open
House Scoping Meeting”, 2011

Saltworks Project “Transportation, Air
Quality, Noise, Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Open House Scoping Meeting”, 2011

City of Santa Rosa, CA

Alternative Development Workshops,
1995-96

Project Screening Workshops, 1996-97

Preliminary Environmental Analysis
Workshops 1997

City of South Lake Tahoe & TRPA

Lake Tahoe Airport Community Education
Workshop

Lake Tahoe Airport Town Meeting

Anders Hauge

South Tahoe Public Utility District, CA
Mitigation Task Force, 1980-1985

Alpine County Alternatives Planning
Fairs, 2001

Recycled Water Facilities Master Plan
and EIR public meetings, 2007

City of Sutter Creek, CA

Gold Rush Ranch and Golf Resort
Workshops, 2007-2009

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency/US Forest
Service/Heavenly Ski Resort

Master Plan committees, 1990’s
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation & SNWA
South Valley Facilities Expansion EIS
scoping meetings, 2007-2008
City of Ventura, CA
Ventura Keys/Arrundel Barranca
Settlement public meetings, 2000
Woodland, CA

Woodland Area General Plan Committee,
1974 - 1975

Community & Regional Planning

City of Auburn, CA
Auburn General Plan, 1992
Arizona, State of
Arizona Military Regional Compatibility Plan
West Valley/Luke AFB area, 2002
Davis-Monthan AFB area, 2002
City of Bangor, ME
Bangor General Plan, 1972
Open Space Plan, 1972
Town of Breckenridge, CO
Comprehensive Plan, 1978
Historic District Designation, 1977
Directional Sign Plan, 1977

Blue River Commercial Corridor Specific
Plan, 1978

California Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Lake Tahoe Regional Plan for
California, 1976

2233 Watt Avenue, Suite 300 + Sacramento, CA 9582522

CTRPA Housing Plan, 1976
Community of Delhi (Merced County), CA

Delhi Community Plan, 1979
Dominican Republic

National Strategic Plan, 2000
El Dorado County, CA

El Dorado County Airport Location Study,
1988

Meyers Area Community Plan, 2013
Missouri Flat Specific Plan, 1989
Open Space and Conservation Element, 1987
South Tahoe Recreation Plan, 1998
City of Folsom, CA
Folsom General Plan, 1988
Folsom Recreation Plan, 1988
Folsom Historic District Specific Plan, 1988

Humbug/Willow Creek Specific Plan,
1989

83



84

Jewett Square Developers, Bakersfield, CA
Jewett Square Specific Plan, 1981
Town of Loomis, CA
Costco Project Processing, 2018
City of Malibu, CA
Malibu General Plan, 1992
Mariposa County, CA
General Plan Update, 2000-2006

Catheys Valley Community Plan,
2007-2012

Road Standards, 2007
Mono County, CA

Community Plan for Mammoth Lakes,
1982

Nevada County, CA

Nevada County General Plan,
1992-1994

City of Oakdale, CA
QOakdale General Plan, 1992
PDVSA (National Oil Company), Venezuela

Desarrollo Armonico de Oriente (DAO),
1998

Anders Hauge

City of Ripon, CA

Rinon Snecific Plan

Ol SpPeiiie T

City of Rocklin, CA
Civic Center Specific Plan, 1993
City of San Joaquin
General Plan Update, 2014
City of Sutter Creek
Gold Rush Ranch Specific Plan rewrite, 2010
General Plan and Zoning Amendment, 2010
General Plan Update, 2012
General Plan Annual Review, 2013
City Planner, 2012-date
City of Taft, CA
Downtown Redevelopment Plan
South Tahoe Public Utility District
Export Pipeline Location Study
City of Woodland, CA
Woodland General Plan 1975
Woodland General Plan Update 1986
Woodland Level of Service Study

Regulation Development

Town of Breckenridge, CO
Development Code, 1978
Design Guidelines, 1977

California Tahoe Regional Planning Agency
Code of Ordinances, 1976

Shorezone Ordinance, 1975
City of Ceres, CA

Ceres Downtown Design Guidelines,
1992

Kern County, CA
Zoning Ordinance Update
City of Selma, CA
Downtown Redevelopment Design Standards

2233 Watt Avenue, Suite 300 - Sacramento, CA 9582523

City of Sutter Creek, CA
Oak Woodland Guidelines
Zoning Code Update, 2010
City Design Standards, 2015
City of Taft, CA
Downtown Design Guidelines
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency, NV & CA
Ordinance Update
City of Woodland, CA
Level of Service Plan, 1988
Landscape Ordinance, 1973
Sign Ordinance, 1973



Anders Hauge

Site Planning

Auburn Boulevard Veterinary Hospital
Site Master Plan, Sacramento, CA,
1979

City of Bakersfield, CA

Stockdale Estates Subdivision Plan
(Sections 8 and 9), 1981

City of Bangor, ME

Kenduskeag Stream Regional Park,
1972

Downtown Pedestrian Park, 1972

Neighborhood Redevelopment Street
Improvements, 1972

Town of Breckenridge, CO

Blue River Commercial Corridor
Specific Plan, 1978

Chevron Richmond CA Refinery
Castro Site Strategic Plan, 2001

Contract

City of Sutter Creek, CA
Contract Planner for the Gold Rush
Ranch Project Approval, 2007-2010
Contract Planner for Development
Review, 2010-2018
City Planning Staff, 2010-2018
City of Ridgecrest, CA
Planning Director
Leavell Ranch
On-Call services, 2013
Town of Loomis, CA

On-Call Staff 2018

El Dorado County, CA
Missouri Flat Specific Plan
Kern County, CA
Zoning Ordinance Update
City of Paso Robles, CA
Airport Industrial Park
City of Selma, CA
Downtown Selma Revitalization Plan
Industrial Park Plan
Siskiyou County, CA
Siskiyou Airport Industrial Park Plan
Sutter Bay Company
Sutter Bay Specific Plan, Sutter County
City of Wasco, CA
Wasco Industrial Park Plan

Staff
Southern Nevada Water Authority

Safety Manager for the in-state water
resource projects 2004-2006

Contract staff human resource manager
for the in-state water resource projects
2003-2006

Environmental and planning staff for the
in-state water resource projects

County of Tulare, CA

On-Call staff, 2009-2017
City of Winters, CA

Planning Director, 1973-1975

Expert Witness

City of Truckee, CA
Zoning Challenge

2233 Watt Avenue, Suite 300 « Sacramento, CA 95825

Lake Tahoe Basin, NV
Litigation Settlement (confidential)

85



86

HAUGE BRUECK

ASSOCLIATES

Robert Brueck

Partner
p 775-267-7202

tbrueck@@haugebrueck.com

EDUCATION

B.S. in Design with
emphasis in Urban
Planning, 1989

Certified Program -
Manager, 2006

AREAS OF
SPECIALIZATION

Program/Project
Management

Planning

Environmental Compliance
Resource Management
Permitting

Public Involvement
Contract Staffing

Robert Brueck

Robert Brueck specializes in the management and preparation of
environmental and planning documents for public and private
clients. Specific environmental documentation experience has
included documents prepared for the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA), National Environmental Policy Act
(NEPA), Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA), and state
and federal permitting. Specific planning experience has
included Master Plans, Annexations, Zone Changes, and General
Plan Amendments. Mr. Brueck has performed many of his
assignments in the western United States, including Lake Tahoe,
and has a broad knowledge of the various rules and regulations
that govern development within this heavily regulated area.

Rob’s expertise includes coordinating interdisciplinary team
efforts with client needs and expectations; organizing and
conducting public and agency dialogue; carrying out a wide
variety of natural resource analyses; refining and integrating
work products from interdisciplinary team members; assuring
compliance with myriad environmental laws and regulations;
and producing highly readable, graphically effective, and legally
adequate project reports and environmental compliance
documents.

Specific technical abilities include recreation and land use
analysis and scenic assessment. Rob’s recent experience
includes the management of environmental documentation for
the Lake Tahoe Community College (Facilities Master Plan
EIR), TRPA and Placer County (Homewood Ski Area Master
Plan EIR/EIS and Dollar Creek Shared Use Trail IS/IEC), TRPA
and the USDA Forest Service, LTBMU (Heavenly Mountain
Resort Master Plan EIR/EIS/EIS), TRPA and El Dorado County
(Meyers Area Plan IS/IEC), and the TRPA and Tahoe Resource
Conservation District (Lake-Wide Aquatic Invasive Plant
Control Plan IS/IEC).

EMPLOYMENT SUMMARY
2006-DATE: Hauge Brueck Associates, LLC. Partner

1989-2006: Parsons/Harland Bartholomew & Associates.
Principal Planner

2233 Watt Avenue, Saite 300 - Sacramento, CA 95825



Robert Brueck

REPRESENTATIVE TAHOE PROJECTS
Environmental Documentation

South Tahoe Public Utility District, CA TRPA & El Dorado County
A-Line Phase I Export Pipeline Replacement Meyers Area Plan IS/IEC
ir(g?“ E;R/EII?/SIS Piveline Repl San Bemardino Bike Trail IS/IEC (awarded)
-Line Phase xport Pipeline Replacement
Project IS/EA TRPA & Placer County

. a3 m Homewood Mountain Resort Ski Area Master
A-Line Phase I Export Pipeline Plan EIR/EIS

Replacement Project IS/EA Dollar Creck Shared-Use Trail IS/TEC
B-Line Phase II Export Pipeline Replacement otiarfrecik shared-Lse .ral
TRPA & Lake Tahoe Community College

Project IS/EA

B-Line Phase III Export Pipeline Fine Arts Center IS/IEC

Replacement Project EIR/EIS/EIS New Gymnasium and Cafeteria IS/IEC

Angora Water Tank Replacement Project Child Development Center and Safety

IS/EA Lighting Project IS/IEC

Grizzly Mountain Pump Station IS/IEC Facilities Master Plan EIR/EIS

Luther Pass Pump Station Emergency Power TRPA, USFS, & Heavenly Ski Resort

Project IS/EA Heavenly Ski Resort Master Plan (and
State of California Amendment) EIR/EIS/EIS

CTC South Tahoe Greenway Shared- Gondola EA

Use Trail Project [S/IEC/EA Ski Lift and Ski Run EA

CTC Tahoe Pines Bio and Cultural Studies Heavenly Mountain Resort Epic Discovery
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA), CA Project EIR/EIS/EIS
and NV Tahoe Resource Conservation District

Boulder Bay Community Enhancement Lake-Wide Aquatic Invasive Plant Control

Program Project EIS Plan IS/IEC

Domus Affordable Housing Project Regional University of California, Davis

a0 AmERAMmEntS Tahoe Environmental Research Center

Environmental Thresholds Update and EIR/EIS

Interim Allocations EAs

2233 Watt Avenue, Suite 300 « Sacramento, CA 9582526



88

HAUGE BRUECK

A SSOCIATES

Christy Consolini
Senior Environmental

Planner
p 916-283-5800x 103

cconsolini@haugebrueck.com

EDUCATION

B.A. with Honors in
Environmental Studies with
an emphasis in Policy and
Planning, 1998, UC Santa
Cruz

AREAS OF
SPECIALIZATIOM

Progran/Project
Management
Environmental Compliance
Resource Managament
Planning

Permitting

Public Involvement
Contract Staffing

2233 Watt Avenue, Suite 300 =

Christy Consolini

Christy Consolini has over 20 years of experience in environmental
planning, and project and program management with an emphasis on
CEQA/NEPA/TRPA, policy, and multidisciplinary problem solving.
Her experience includes various types of document preparation, general
research, and achieving multiagency consensus on projects. Ms.
Consolini is experienced in the management and preparation of EIRs,
EISs, addenda, Initial Studies, EAs, Negative Declarations, CEs,
construction specifications, permits, Housing Elements, biological
survey reports, and General Plans, as well as planning staff services.

Ms. Consolini provides environmental analysis and review and ensures
environmental compliance with CEQA, NEPA, and TRPA, which
currently includes the Bollinger Valley EIR, On-call staff services for
the City of Sutter Creek, including General Plan updates, staff services
to process the Loomis Costco Project, Loomis Diversion Pipeline
IS/MND/permitting/ environmental monitoring, Douglas County Water
Systems Project, Tourist Core Area Plan Amendment IS/IEC in South
Lake Tahoe, and the Tahoe South Events Center Project. Other recent
experience includes the Meyers Area Plan TRPA/CEQA compliance,
Plumas Eureka Community Services District Water Treatment Plant
Project, City of Loyalton Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project, the
East Incline Village WQIP NEPA/CEQA compliance, Heavenly Epic
and run-widening projects, Homewood Resort Master Plan EIR/EIS,
Boulder Bay EIS, Dollar Creek Shared-Use Trail, and South Tahoe
Greenway Trail. Her work focuses on land use, visual and scenic
resources, recreation, population, housing, socioeconomics, public
services and utilities, project compliance, document review, public
outreach, project management, analysis criteria development, safety
planning, quality control, and other project-specific manuals.

Ms. Consolini served as the Environmental Manager for the Freeport
Regional Water Authority, where she oversaw the environmental
compliance work on a $900-million regional water supply program.
Her responsibilities included the EIR/EIS and addenda, ROD, BAs,
USFWS and NOAA BOs, permits, environmental training and
monitoring, and was highly involved in public outreach and
interagency consensus building, review of plans and specifications,
RFPs, safety training documentation, property acquisition.

EMPLOYMENT SUMMARY

2008-DATE: Hauge Brueck Associates, LLC. Senior
Environmental Planner
1997-2008: Parsons. Senior Environmental Planner

Sacramento, CA 95825



Praposal to Prepare CEQA Environmental Documentation

6 RECENT PROJECTS

HAUGE BRUECK

ASSOCIATES

Hamilten Unified Schoal District
Hamilton City, CA

Page 28

89



90

HAUGE BRUECK

ARSI Cla CRl TR [t BRS

- Lake Tahoe Community
College University Center IEC
and Facilities Master Plan

EIR/EIS

HBA is currently managing the
environmental documentation for
the Lake Tahoe Community
College Facilities Master Plan. The
Master Plan includes expansion of
classroom facilities, onsite student
living, parking improvements, and
pedestrian/bike connections to
adjacent transportation networks.
HBA is also managing the
preparation of the University
Center and North Parking Lot
TRPA IEC, which adds classrooms
for a 4-year degree program. While
at the Parsons Corporation, HBA
staff prepared environmental
documentation for implementation
of LTCC Master Plan projects,
including:

Services completed:
2016 - ongoing

Project Manager;
Rob Brueck

South Lake Tahoe, California

Lake Tahoe ( ‘ommunity C ollege
One College Drive

South Iake Tahoe, CA 96150
(916) 300-7449
Contact: Al F rangione

« TRPA EA and LTCC Neg Dec
for the Child Development Center
* EA/Neg Dec for Phase II North
(Fine Arts Addition)

*IEC/Neg Dec for the LTCC

Relocatable Classroom/Parking Lot

project.

« IEC/Neg Dec for Tahoe Parents

Nursery School

- EA/Neg Dec for Phase II South
(PE and Cafeteria)

Services Provided

« Program management

» Project development and
initiation

« Environmental documentation -

CEQA and TRPA

« Regulatory compliance and
permitting

« Timber Harvest Plan
management

Issues Addressed

Land use compatibility and
Community Plan amendment

Parking and circulation

Biological resources including
wetlands and stream environment
zones

Clultural and historic resources

« Air and noise emissions

Land coverage

Facilities layout and design

Meeting the Challenge

Coordinating with multiple
agencies (LTCC, TRPA, Gity of
South Lake Tahoe, and
California Tahoe Conservancy)
on the Master Plan, proposed
land swap, and facilities layout.

Preparing a separate IEC for the
UC Building and North Parking
Lot due to existing funding for
those components.



"Susanville Riverside Drive
Trail Project

HAUGE BRUECK

ARESAST Cim GOR I ASS TS ESES

Susanville, California

City of Susanville

720 South; § treet

Susanville, C4 961 30

(530) 257-1045
Contact: Dan Newton and Jared
Hancock j

The City of Susanville proposed to
construct 1,920 linear feet of Class I
pedestrian and bike trail along
Riverside Drive from Riverside

| Park to the Susan River, with a

bicycle/pedestrian bridge crossing
over the Susan River. The trail

' includes a 10-foot wide paved travel |

way with two-foot wide shoulders
on cither side of the trail. Although
four bridge designs were developed
and assessed, it was determined that
impacts to sensitive resources north
of Riverside Drive could be avoided
by locating the trail on the
abandoned mill levee maintenance

road on the south side of Riverside

Services completed:
IS/MIND certified
June 17, 2015

1

Project Manager: I
Anders Hauge i

Drive. Two bridge designs were
developed to avoid impacts to
riparian habitat and wetlands, as
well as the floodway. The purpose
of the project is to address an
existing safety hazard occurring on
Riverside Drive due to a lack of
pedestrian and bicycle facilities in
the area, which links residential and
recreation uses with commercial
centers in the City.

Services Provided

« Alternative development and
evaluation of four alignments

 Cultural excavation
* Wetland delineation
« Biological Surveys
« Hazardous materials study

« Hydrology and Floodplain
analysis

« Preparation of an Initial Study/
Mitigated Negative Declaration

« Preparation of NEPA CatEx

Issues Addressed

« Protected species and habitat
« Wetland avoidance

o Cultural resources

+ Water quality and hydrology
protection

« Potential hazardous materials

Meeting the Challenge
¢ Completion within short schedule

« Coordination with Caltrans

*» No challenges to the document

91



92

HAUGE BRUECK

At Ol G| IR e TR s

ACLUNGER VALLIY
TOWN OF MORAGA GALFDRMA

Bollinger Valley Project
EIR

The Bollinger Valley Project
proposes to establish land use
designations and zoning on two
parcels covering 186.33 acres in
Bollinger Valley within the Town of
Moraga in Contra Costa County.
The Project area is designated as
“Study” in the Town’s General Plan
due to the locadon of the parcels
on an area hillside/canyon. The
Project would amend the General
Plan land use designation on 92
acres from Study to Residential-2
dwelling units per acre, and would
adopt zoning as Single Family

Services com pleted:
EIR 2018

Project Manager:
Rob Brueck

Moraga. California

- Town of Moraga
i 329 Rheem Boulevard

¢ Moraga, C4 94554 1; l
. (925) 888-7041 |

Contact: Derek F, armer

Residential Planned Development
with Density Transfer to provide
entitlements for up to 126 detached
single-family homes. The
remaining 94.33 acres would
The EIR
analyzed five alternatives including
No Project, two substantially
reduced developments, and two
moderately reduced developments.

become Open Space.

Services Provided

Alternatives Development

Scoping

Visual stmulations
Traffic studies

« Geotechnical studies

« Hydrology analysis

o Cultural surveys

Wetland delineation

« Biological surveys |
« Noise assessment

o Preparation of an Environmental
Impact Report

« Preparation of Staff Reports and
Presentations !

Issues Addressed

« Development density

« Protected species and habitat
» Wetland avoidance

« Geological constraints

o Traffic

« Emergency Access

Meeting the Challenge

» Coordination with Town,
applicant, and applicant’s
representatives

+ Controversial Project



BOARD AGENDA ITEM-Approval of Contract Proposal for Title 5 Risk Assessments for Hamilton High
School Expansion

This Agenda ltem requests the approval of a contract with PlaceWorks, Inc. for specified studies

required by the California Department of Education (CDE) as a part of the Site Approval process for the
Hamilton High School Expansion. Title 5 requirements obligate the District to certify that there is no or
minimal risk to staff or students from specified site hazards. CDE approval of the use of the proposed
expansion site as a school site will require a Pipeline Safety Hazard Assessment (PSHA), Rail Safety Study
(RSS), and Dam Inundation Study as a part of the approval process. This is a separate set of
requirements from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and Department of Toxic Substances
Control review and approval processes.

PlaceWorks is a highly qualified environmental engineering firm, with extensive experience in public
school site study and permitting processes throughout Northern California. The total cost of the
proposed required studies is $15,333.00

District staff recommends approval.

93



©3 PLACEWORKS

January 21, 2019

Diane Holliman

Chief Business Official

Hamilton Unified School District
620 Canal Street

Hamilton City, CA 95951

Transmitted via e-mail: DHolliman@husdschools.org Diane Holliman, Hamilton
Unified School District; MSCannon_efpm@msn.com Mike Cannon, SchoolWorks, Inc.

Subject: Proposal: Title 5§ Risk Assessments for Hamilton High School Expansion, Hamilton City,
Glenn County, California [P2019-0113N]

Dear Ms. Holliman:

Thank you for inviting PlaceWorks to submit this Pipeline Safety Hazard Assessment (PSHA), Rail Safety
Study (RSS), and Dam Inundation Study scope of work and cost estimate for the Hamilton High School
Expansion project. It is our understanding that the Hamilton Unified Schoo! District (District) proposes
to acquire an approximately 45-acre parcel and expand the existing school facilities at 620 Canal
Street in Hamilton City, Glenn County, California.

The California Department of Education (CDE) requires a PSHA to be completed for all hazardous
liguid pipelines, natural gas pipelines, and large volume (>12 inches in diameter) water pipelines that
are located within 1,500 feet of a new school site. Based on preliminary information from the National
Pipeline Mapping System {(NPMS) and the Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) gas pipeline interactive
maps, there are two PG&E natural gas transmission pipelines approximately 500 feet northeast of the
site. The high pressure natural gas lines could potentially impact the school site. The Glenn-Colusa
Irrigation District and local water purveyors will also be contacted to determine the location and
operating parameters of all large volume water pipelines.

In addition, CDE requires a RSS to be conducted for all active rail lines within 1,500 feet of the school
site. There is a railroad easement owned by California Northern Railroad Company approximately 500
feet northeast the school site. Based on a review of dam inundation maps and studies from the
California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (CalOES), the school site is located within the dam
inundation zones of Black Butte Dam, approximately 17 miles to the east, and Shasta Dam,
approximately 69 miles to the north of the site. The CCR regulation states that a schoal site shall not
be within an area of flood or dam flood inundation unless the cost of mitigating the flood or
inundation impact is reasonable. A comprehensive dam inundation study, with flood evacuation
procedures included within the study, will be prepared to satisfy the CDE requirements.

[ e |

1625 Shatiuck Avernue, Suite 3C0 | Berkeley, California 94709 | 510.848.3815 | Place'Works.com



3 PLACEWORKS

Task 1 - Pipeline Safety Hazard Assessment

There are two PG&E natural gas transmission pipelines and no other hazardous liquid pipelines within
1,500 feet of the school site. A Stage 2 analysis will be conducted, as per the CDE protocol. The
analysis will be performed in accordance with the latest CDE protocol, Guidance Protocol for School
Site Pipeline Risk Analysis {2007). In addition, the Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District and local water
purveyors will be contacted to determine if there are any large-volume water pipelines within 1,500
feet of the school site. All large-volume (>12-inches in diameter) water pipelines, including the Glenn-
Colusa Canal, within the 1,500-foot radius will be evaluated to determine the potential for flooding at
the school site.

The analysis will consist of the following tasks:

Determine Pipeline Characteristics. The following agencies will be contacted to obtain information
regarding the pipelines:

» Pacific Gas and Electric Company — pipeline maps, information on pipeline operating pressures,
dates of installation, recent repairs, and location of isolation valves.

» Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District - map and operating characteristics for Delta Mendata Canal.

» Local water purveyors — operating pressure, flow rate, and pipeline maps for water pipelines.

Determine Land Use and Local Terrain Data. Adjacent land uses, terrain, structures, street grade,
storm drains, and utility easements will be identified, with emphasis on the following:

» Structural features, such as retaining walls, buildings, open storm drains, etc. that could block a jet
flame or flammable vapor cloud

» Potential combustion sources, both stationary and mobile, between the pipeline and the school
site, such as motor vehicles, residential home water heaters, commercial/industrial facilities with
external combustion sources (i.e., boilers).

Conduct Consequence Analysis. Given a release from the natural gas pipeline and petroleum pipeline,
the following hazards are considered:

» Radiant heat from a jet flame
» Flammable vapor cloud

The discharge rates and durations for both pipeline ruptures and leaks will be determined. Two types
of release scenarios will be assumed: 1) a complete line break along the pipeline route that would
occur 20% of the time, and 2) a leak through a one-inch hole that would occur 80% of the time. The
distance at which no adverse impact is expected to occur to human health will be determined, which
is defined as follows:

» Distance to direct contact with a jet flame
» Distance to a radiant heat level of 5,000 BTU/hr-ft*
» Distance to a flammable vapor cloud’s lower flammability limit (LFL)

January 21, 2019 | Page 2



PLACEWORKS

Estimate Potential Risk. Based on the results, the probability of a hazard footprint reaching the school
will be calculated, as well as the fatality risk to students or staff attending the school. If the calculated
fatality risk is less than one in a million (i.e., 1 x 10®), the risk is not considered significant and no
further risk analysis is required. If the calculated risk is greater than one in a million, potential
mitigation measures will be evaluated. In addition, population risk estimates will be calculated, as per
the latest CDE protocol.

Estimate Potential Flooding from Water Pipelines. For the identified large diameter (= 12 inches)
water pipelines identified within 1,500 feet of the school site, the potential for flooding will be
evaluated in accordance with CDE guidelines. Although no specific criteria have been established by
CDE as a threshold of significance for flooding at a school site, a water depth of 12 inches or greater is
a trigger that warrants further evaluation. The results of modeling efforts will be documented in a
draft report that is signed and stamped by a California Registered Engineer.

Task 2 - Rail Saofety Study

The scope of work for the RSS is designed ta identify rail fines located within a 1,500-foot radius of the
school site and to determine the actual or potential endangerment to school occupants from an
incident (derailment or other accident) that could occur along the rail line. Based on a review of
Google Earth maps, there is one railroad easement operated by California Northern Railroad (CFNR)
approximately 500 feet northeast of the school site, and there is one at-grade crossing within 1,500
feet of the proposed school site. The RSS will include the following:

Collection of Existing Information. Based on interviews with regulatory agencies (Federal Railroad
Administration and California Public Utilities Commission, Rail Safety and Carriers Division) and
railroad owners and operators, PlaceWorks will determine the following:

» lLocation and distance of rail lines to the school
» Track configuration (number, elevation, curvature, track conditions, switching equipment, signage
and warning systems)

In addition, PlaceWorks will conduct a site reconnaissance during typical school hours to determine
the following:

» Type of rail traffic on the lines

» Average number of freight trains per day

» Number of engines and number of rail cars per train
» Type of track (bolted or welded)}

» Average speed of trains

» Number of at-grade crossings (requires horn blow)

» Condition of track, crossings, and evidence of trespass along the tracks
» Other potential safety issues

January 21,2019 | Page 3



e% PLACEWORKS

Documentation of the condition of the track and other relevant information will be provided in a
photographic essay attached to the report.

Incident Analysis. Based on information collected previously, PlaceWorks will conduct an incident
analysis to determine the probability that a student or faculty at the school could suffer an injury or
fatality resulting from an incident or accident along the rail line within a 1,500-foot radius of the
school. Statistics on accident data from the Federal Railroad Administration will be used to determine
the probability of an incident or derailment per million train miles. Information obtained from the
railroad owner/operator, site reconnaissance, and other sources will be used to develop site-specific
probabilities of injury or fatality, given characteristics of the track, train speed, etc. Safety issues that
drive the risk will be identified.

Additional Issues. In addition, PlaceWorks will identify all highway-rail crossings within a 1,500-foot
radius of the school site, evaluate the adequacy of safety devices, determine past accident history at
the crossings, and determine whether students would have to use these crossings to reach the school
site, based on the school attendance area. The potential for noise and vibration related impacts from
operation of the trains and the sounding of warning horns while approaching highway-rail crossings
also will be evaluated with respect to the impact on outdoor and indoor noise levels at the school site.

Task 3 - Dam Inundation Study

Based on a review of dam inundation maps and studies from the California Governor’s Office of
Emergency Services (CalOES), the school site is located within the dam inundation zones of Black
Butte Dam, approximately 17 miles to the east. Additionally, the site is 69 miles south of Shasta Dam
and is located within the Shasta Dam inundation zone. This is not necessarily a constraint that would
prevent occupancy of the school site. However, the potential risk to the safety of students and staff at
the school site needs to be evaluated. The inundation analysis will be performed in accordance with
the California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 5, Section 14010 (g) requirements. The dam inundation
study would include the following tasks:

» Determine the structural integrity and safety of the dams,

» Evaluate the likely severity of dam failure,

» Determine the potential flood levels at the school site and warning time for evacuation (based on
the flood inundation maps and flood travel times),

» Determine the impact of dam failure on student and staff safety, and
» Develop emergency notification and evacuation procedures for the school site, if needed.

If information obtained from the Division of Safety of Dams and modeling efforts indicate that
potential flood levels will be above a level of concern (i.e., 12 inches according to CDE guidelines) ar
there is not adequate warning time for evacuation, potential design criteria and emergency
notification and evacuation procedures will be proposed. A draft copy of the report will be provided
for your review prior to final submittal.

January 21, 2019 | Page 4



Proposed Schedule

&8

PLACEWORKS

It will take approximately four to six weeks to complete the draft reports. We will work to expedite the
process but it is dependent on receiving information from the pipeline agencies in a timely manner.
The PSHA and RSS reports will be signed and stamped by a registered engineer.

Cost Estimate

PlaceWorks will provide the services described herein in accordance with our standard fee schedule,
The estimated cost is $15,333.00 (see tables below).

Task 1 - Pipeline Safety Hazard Assessment

TASK ELEMENT ] UNIT | UNIT COST NO. UNITS COosT
BURDENED LABOR COST
Principal Engineer Hour $230 2 $460
Senior Engineer Hour $165 20 $3,300
Project Scientist Hour $115 6 $690
Graphic Artist | Hour S90 2 $180
Clerical Hour $75 1 $75
LABQOR COST SUBTOTAL $4,705
OTHER DIRECT COSTS
Copies, Postage, Etc. Each $50 1 $50
OTHER DIRECT COSTS SUBTOTAL S50
TOTAL ESTIMATED BUDGET $4,755.00
Task 2 - Rail Safety Study
TASK ELEMENT UNIT UNIT COST NO. UNITS | COoST
BURDENED LABOR COST
Principal Engineer Hour $230 4 $920
Senior Engineer Hour $165 24 $3,960
Graphic Artist | Hour $90 1 $90
Clerical Hour $75 il $75
LABQOR COST SUBTOTAL $5,045
OTHER DIRECT COSTS
Mileage Each $0.54/mi 312 $168
OTHER DIRECT COSTS SUBTOTAL 5168
TOTAL ESTIMATED BUDGET $5,213.00

January 21, 2019 | Page 5



Task 3 - Dam Inundation Study

£3 PLACEWORKS

TASK ELEMENT I UNIT UNIT COST NO. UNITS COST
BURDENED LABOR COST
Principal Engineer Hour $230 4 $920
Senior Engineer Hour $165 24 $3,960
Graphic Artist | Hour $S90 4 $360
Clerical Hour 575 1 $75
LABOR COST SUBTOTAL $5,315
OTHER DIRECT COSTS
Copies, Postage, Etc. Each I S50 1 S50
OTHER DIRECT COSTS SUBTOTAL $50
TOTAL ESTIMATED BUDGET $5,365.00
Acknowledgement

This proposal shall remain valid for a period of 90 days from the time of submittal. The attached
Service Authorization, which includes our General Terms of Consulting Agreement, is a part of this
proposal. If the contents of this Proposal and Agreement are satisfactory, please indicate your
approval by signing the Service Authorization and sending it to our corporate office. As Principal, | am
authorized to bind PlaceWorks and the project team to the contents of this proposal.

We are excited about the opportunity to assist SchoolWorks, inc. and the Hamilton Unified School
District and will work with you to expedite the analysis. If you have any questions regarding the
contents of this proposal, please feel free to contact Steve Bush at 510.848.3815 or by e-mail at

sbush@placeworks.com.

Respectfully submitted,
PlaceWorks

Steve Noack, AICP
Principal

( > /
) —_ ¥ .r'rlIr 4
*'é-/éf =/ 4’/ L/

Steve Bush, PE
Senior Engineer

-
f/uh-—-‘ b

January 21, 2019 | Page 6

99



100

£3] PLACEWORKS

SERVICE AUTHORIZATION

PROJECT NO. P2019-0113N DATE January 21, 2019
PROJECT NAME Title 5 Risk Assessments for Hamilton High School Expansion, Hamilton City, Glenn County, California
TYPE OF AUTHORIZATION: O Fixed Price Project Time and Materials Project

I Contract Extension [0 Meetings Extra to Contract

Reimbursables: [0 No Charge [J Extra to Contract 10% Markup on Subconsultants
RETAINER: S O Yes* No

*All retainers are either applied to the final invoice or refunded at the close of the project.

BUDGET AMOUNT: $ 15,333 Not to Exceed [0 Estimated

AGREEMENT BETWEEN:

CLIENT Hamilton Unified School District CONSULTANT PlaceWorks

STREET ADDRESS 620 Canal Street STREET ADDRESS 3 MacArthur Place, Suite 1100
CITY STATE AND ZIP Hamilton City, CA 95951 CITY STATE AND ZIP Santa Ana, CA 92707
CONTACT Diane Holliman CONTACT Kara L Kosel for Steve Bush
Hereinafter referred to as “Client.” Hereinafter referred to as “Consultant.”

This document authorizes the Consultant to execute the following services for the Client as indicated below:

SCOPE AND DURATION OF SERVICES:

See the attached signed scope of work for the Title 5 Risk Assessments for Hamilton High School Expansion, Hamilton City, Glenn
County, CA dated January 21, 2019.

SCHEDULE:
Billing will be monthly based upon our standard hourly rates of $45 to $250, depending upon the professional’s level of expertise.
GENERAL TERMS OF CONSULTING AGREEMENT:

These General Terms are a part of this contract. All of the services to be provided are referred to collectively as the “Work.” This
Proposal expires if the Agreement is not signed within 90 days from the date that the proposal was issued.

(1) Acceptance and Authorization to Proceed. When Client signs and returns to Consultant a copy of this Proposal or Service
Authorization, an Agreement will be formed authorizing Consultant to proceed with the Work as described.

PlaceWworks com




£ PLACEWORKS

(2) Performance by Consultant. Consultant will use all reasonable efforts to cause the Work to be performed by qualified persons
under the supervision of Consultant. Except as provided below, the Work will proceed in accordance with the schedule included in
this Agreement.

(3) Scope of Work. The scape of services set forth in this Agreement is based on facts known to Consultant at the time Consultant
signed the Proposal or Service Authorization, including, if applicable, information supplied by Client. For some projects involving
conceptual or process development services, scope may not be fully definable during initial phases. As the project progresses, facts
discovered may indicate that scope must be redefined. Consultant will promptly provide Client with an amendment to this
Agreement to recognize the additional information learned and changes in defining the scope and pricing for the Work. Client will
have fifteen (15) days after receiving the proposed amendment to sign and return the amendment. If Client fails to sign and return
the amendment within that time, Consultant may suspend work until satisfactory arrangements are agreed to in writing by
Consultant and Client.

(4) Coordination with Client. Consultant and Client shall cooperate in proceeding with the Work under the direction and approval
of the Client's Authorized Representative identified above, which representative or an alternate shall be available for Consultant at
all reasonable times. Consultant and Client, recognizing that time is of the essence, agree that oral communications and instructions
may be necessary. Consultant will, in the interest of the project, comply with such oral instructions. However, Consultant will
promptly confirm its receipt of the oral instructions by sending Client a written memorandum by electronic or regular mail. The
instructions will be deemed confirmed by the Client if the Consultant does not receive written withdrawal of or changes to the
instructions within five (5) days after Consultant sent the confirmation to Client. If the instructions require changes in scope and
pricing for the Work, Consuitant will provide Client with an amendment for signature. Client will provide Consultant with access to
the property which is the subject of the Work, along with all reports and other information which Client has concerning the Work.

(5) Charges for Work. Client will be charged for, and Client shall pay for without deduction or offset, the Work performed, in
accordance with Consultant's current schedule of charges, billing rates, and expense reimbursement policies. Work will be limited by
the amount included in the total of estimated costs stated in the proposal unless an increase is authorized in writing by Client.
Although Consultant's schedule of charges and billing rates is subject to periodic review and revision, the current schedule will
remain in effect for six months from the date a Proposal or Service Authorization is submitted by Consultant. Changes in the scope
of the Work must be made in writing and will be charged for in accordance with this Agreement.

(6) Unanticipated Delays. Consultant shall not be liable for time delays or damages resulting from the actions or inactions of
government agencies, including but not limited to, permit processings, environmental impact reports, general plans and
amendments, and zoning matters. If the Work has not been completed in accordance with the schedule included in this Agreement,
through no fault of Consultant, and the parties agree to an extension of the schedule, the fee schedule will be adjusted
automatically to Consultant’s current posted billing rates. Changes in a Client's Project Manager or changes in government plans,
policies, programs, or ordinances may be a basis for Consultant to submit an Amendment to this Agreement addressing the impact

of the change.

(7) Reimbursable Expenses. All of Consultant's expenses for document copying, FAX, delivery, travel, services, equipment and
facilities are charged to Client at Consultant’s cost.

(8) Billing and Payment. Time is of the essence in payment of invoices. Consultant invoices for Work performed will be issued at
the close of each calendar month and upon completion of the Work. Any comments or questions which Client has concerning the
contents of an invoice or the Work represented by an invoice must be submitted to Consultant in writing within fifteen (15) days
after Client receives the invoice. If no such comments or questions are received by Consultant, the Work represented and the
invoice shall be considered correct and accepted by Client. If payment for an invoice is not received by Consultant within forty-five
(45) days after the date of the invoice, a reasonable late charge will be applied to all amounts outstanding, commencing thirty (30)
days after the date of the invaice and continuing monthly until all amounts have been paid in full.

(9) Suspension or Termination. Either party may suspend or terminate the Work at any time upon seven (7) days' written notice to
the other party. Client shall pay all amounts due for the Work to the effective date of suspension or termination, plus all costs
incurred by Consultant as a result of the termination or suspension.

(10) Client Files. When the Work is completed or this Agreement is terminated and Consultant has been paid in full, Consultant will,
upon written request of Client, provide Client with all files reports and exhibits prepared by Consultant in performing the Work,
except computer programs or data prepared by or for Consultant in connection with the Work. Reuse of any documents or other

Service Authorization | January 21, 2019 | Page 2

101



102

[3) PLACEWORKS

deliverables, including electronic media, pertaining to the project by Client for any purpose other than that for which such
documents or deliverables were originally prepared, or alteration of such documents or deliverables Consultant’s written consent,
shall be at Client's risk. Client shall indemnify and defend against, and hold harmless from, all claims, losses, liabilities, and expenses
asserted against or incurred by Consultant arising out of or connected with any such unauthorized reuse or alteration. Unless
instructed otherwise in writing it is Consultant's policy to destroy Clients' files five (5) years after the date of final billing for the
Work.

(11) Limitation of Liability. Consultant shall be liable to Client only for losses incurred by Client which are directly caused by {(a) the
acts or omissions of Consultant, in violation of this Agreement, and (b) willful misconduct or gross negligence of Consultant.
Consultant shall not be liable to Client for (a) delays caused by factors beyond the reasonable control of Consultant, or (b)
consequential damages. Consultant's liability to Client shall be further limited to the amount available from Consultant's insurance,
if any. Except for claims for indemnification, the time period for bringing claims under this agreement expires one year after
Consultant issues its final invoice for the Work.

(12) Insurance Cooperation. Client may, at Client's expense, obtain insurance to protect it against any risk resulting from this
Agreement or the Work, and Consultant will cooperate with Client in obtaining such insurance.

(13) Indemnity to Consuiltant. Client shall indemnify and defend against, and hold Consultant harmless from all claims, losses,
liabilities and expenses asserted against Consultant by third parties or incurred by Consultant as a result of such third party
assertions.

(14) Confidentiality. Consultant will take reasonable steps to protect the confidentiality of information obtained by Consultant in
performing the Work, when Client advises Consultant in writing of the confidential nature of such information. Consultant may use
Client's name in general descriptions of the Work and services performed by Consultant.

(15) Employee Salicitation. Neither Client nor Consultant shall offer to employ or employ any employee of the other during, and for
a period of six (6) months after termination of this Agreement.

(16) Settlement of Disputes. The parties will attempt in good faith to resolve any controversy or dispute arising out of or relating to
this Agreement promptly by negotiations. If any party reaches the conclusion that the controversy or dispute cannot be resolved by
unassisted negotiations, such party may notify the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service ("JAMS"), 500 North State College
Boulevard, Suite 600, Orange, California 92668, (714) 939-1300. JAMS will promptly designate a mediator who is independent and
impartial, and JAMS' decision about the identity of the mediator will be final and binding. The parties agree to conduct at least eight
{8) consecutive hours of mediated negotiations within thirty (30) days after the notice is sent. If the dispute is not resolved by
negotiation or mediation within thirty (30) days after the first notice to JAMS is sent, then, upon notice by any party to the other
affected parties and to JAMS, the controversy or dispute shall be submitted to a sole arbitrator who is independent and impartial,
selected by JAMS, for binding arbitration in accordance with JAMS' Rules for Non-Administered Arbitration of Business Disputes. The
parties agree that they will faithfully observe the terms of this paragraph and will abide by and perform any award rendered by the
arbitrator. The award or judgment of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on all parties. No litigation or other proceeding may be
instituted in any court for the purpose of adjudicating, interpreting or enforcing any of the rights or obligations relating to the
subject matter of this Agreement or for the purpose of appealing any decision of an arbitrator, except a proceeding instituted for
the sole purpose of having the award of judgment of an arbitrator entered and enforced.

(17) Miscellaneous Provisions.
(3) Amendment. This Agreement may be changed only by a written amendment signed by Client and Consultant.

{b) Interpretation of Agreement. This Agreement shall be interpreted to give effect to its fair meaning and shall be construed as
though it was prepared by both parties. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of Client and Consultant, and all prior
negotiations, documents, and discussions are superseded by this Agreement. The parties acknowledge there are no applicable
representations, warranties, or terms which are not stated in this Agreement. The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall
not affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement. Section headings are for convenience and shall not be used in
interpreting this Agreement.

Service Authorization | January 21, 2019 | Page 3



€3 PLACEWORKS

(c) References. All references to this Agreement include reference to all amendments to this Agreement. All references to the
Work include references to all or a part of the Work. References to Client or Consultant include, bind, and inure to the benefit of,
their officers, agents, employees, successors in interest and assignees.

(d) Time and Excusable Delays. Reference to days in this Agreement means consecutive calendar days including weekends and
holidays. The time for performance of an obligation, other than the payment of money, shall be extended for the period during
which a party is prevented from performing by the act or omission of the other party, acts of God, government or other force or
event beyond the reasonable control of such party.

(e) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts all of which shall be one and the same Agreement.

(f) Attorneys' Fees. If any action is commenced to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be
entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, in addition to other relief as the court may award.

(g) Prohibition of Assignment. No right or remedy under this Agreement may be assigned by any party. Any attempted assignment
shall be void.

(h) Notices. All notices required or allowed shall be in writing and shall be sent to the addresses shown at the beginning of this
Agreement. A party may change its address for notices and consents by giving notice to the other party. Notice may be delivered by

personal delivery, facsimile transmission during normal business hours of the recipient, an overnight delivery service, or U.S. Mail
sent certified with return receipt requested. Notices and consents are effective on the earlier of the date received, the date of the

delivery receipt, or the date delivery is refused, as applicable.

CONSULTANT:

CONSULTANT PlaceWorks, a California Corporation

STREET ADDRESS 3 MacArthur Place, Suite 1100

CITY STATE AND 2IP Santa Ana, CA 92707

AUTHORIZED L
REPRESENTATIVE Steve Noack TITLE Principal

PlaceWorks’ Authorized Representative Date

CLIENT:

CUIENT Hamilton Unified School District

PROJECT NO. P2019-0113N

STREET ADDRESS 620 Canal Street

CITY STATE AND ZIP Hamilton City, CA 95951

AUTHORIZED . R . . i

REPRESENTATIVE Diane Holliman TITLE Chief Business Official
Date

Client’s Authorized Representative

Service Authorization | January 21, 2019 | Page 4

103



Second Interim
Hamilton Unified DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT 11 76562 0000000
Glenn County For the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Form ClI

NOTICE OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW. This interim report was based upon and reviewed using the
state-adopted Criteria and Standards. (Pursuant to Education Code (EC) sections 33129 and 42130)

Date:

Signed:

District Superintendent or Designee

NOTICE OF INTERIM REVIEW. All action shall be taken on this report during a reguiar or authorized special
meeting of the governing board.

To the County Superintendent of Schools:
This interim report and certification of financial condition are hereby filed by the governing board

of the school district. (Pursuant to EC Section 42131)

Signed:

Meeting Date: March 27, 20189

President of the Governing Board

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

X POSITIVE CERTIFICATION
As President of the Governing Board of this school district, | certify that based upon current projections this

district will meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years.

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION
As President of the Governing Board of this schoot district, | certify that based upon current projections this

district may not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION
As President of the Governing Board of this school district, 1 certify that based upon current projections this

district will be unable to meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or for the
subsequent fiscal year.

Contact person for additional information on the interim report:

Telephone: 530-826-3261

Name: Diane Holliman

Title: Chief Business Official E-mail: dholliman@husdschoois.org |

Criteria and Standards Review Summary

The following summary is automatically completed based on data provided in the Criteria and Standards Review
form (Form 01CSl). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met," and supplemental information and additional fiscal
indicators that are "Yes," may indicate areas of potential concern, which could affect the interim repart certification,

and should be carefully reviewed.

[ Not
CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met Met
Funded ADA for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years has
not changed by more than two percent since first interim. X

1 ‘ Average Daily Attendance

California Dept of Education

SACS Ile rp:gal Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
File. ci { rpv 5/08/2018) Page 1 of 3

Printed: 3/20/2019 11:08 AM



Hamilton Unified
Glenn County

Second Interim
DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT
For the Fiscal Year 2018-19

11 76562 0000000

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS (continued)

2

Enroliment

Projected enrollment for any of the current or fwo subsequent fiscal
years has not changed by more than two percent since first interim.

ADA to Enrollment

Projected second period (P-2) ADA to enroliment ratio for the current
and two subsequent fiscal years is consistent with historical ratios.

Locai Control Funding
Formula (LCFF) Revenue

Projected LCFF revenue for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years has not changed by more than two percent since first

interim.

Salaries and Benefits

Projected ratio of total unrestricted salaries and benefits to total
unrestricted general fund expenditures has not changed by more
than the standard for the current and two subsequent fiscal years.

Other Revenues

Projected operating revenues {federal, other state, other local) for the
current and two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more
than five percent since first interim.

6b

Other Expenditures

Projected operating expenditures (books and supplies, services and
other expenditures) for the current and two subsequent fiscal years
have not changed by more than five percent since first interim.

Ongoing and Major
Maintenance Account

If applicable, changes occurring since first interim meet the required
contribution to the ongoing and major maintenance account (i.e.,
restricted maintenance account).

Deficit Spending

Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard
in any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years.

9a

Fund Balance

Projected general fund balance will be positive at the end of the
current and two subsequent fiscal years.

9b

Cash Balance

Projected general fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the
current fiscal year.

10

Reserves

Available reserves (e.g., reserve for economic uncertainties,
unassigned/unappropriated amounts) meet minimum requirements
for the current and two subsequent fiscal years.

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

S1

Contingent Liabilities

Have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program
audits, litigation, state compliance reviews) occurred since first
interim that may impact the budget?

S2

Using One-time Revenues
to Fund Ongoing
Expenditures

Are there ongoing general fund expenditures funded with one-time
revenues that have changed since first interim by more than five

percent?

83

Temporary Interfund
Borrowings

Are there projected temporary borrowings between funds?

52

Contingent Revenues

Are any projected revenues for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government,
special legislation, or other definitive act (e.g., parcel taxes, forest
reserves)?

S5

Contributions

Have contributions from unrestricted to restricted resources, or
transfers to or from the general fund to cover operating deficits,
changed since first interim by more than $20,000 and more than 5%
for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years?

Form CI
Mot
Met Met
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
No Yes
X
X
X
X
X

Zalifornia Dept of Education
3ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
sile: ci (Rev 05/08/2018)

Page 20f 3

Printed: 3/20/2019 11%69@4



Second Interim
DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

11 76562 0000000

Hamilton Unified
Glenn County For the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Form ClI
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) No Yes
S6 Long-term Commitments Does the district have long-term (multiyear) commitments or debt
agreements? X
if yes, have annual payments for the current or twao subsequent
fiscal years increased over prior year's (2017-18) annuat X
payment?
+  If yes, will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments R
decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or X
are they one-time sources?
S7a Postemployment Benefits Does the district provide postemployment benefits other than
Other than Pensions pensions (OPEB)? X
= If yes, have there been changes since first interim in OPEB
liabilities? X
S7b Other Self-insurance Does the district operate any self-insurance programs (e.g., workers'
Benefits compensation)? X
= Ifyes, have there been changes since first interim in seif-
insurance liabilities? nia
S8 Status of Labor Agreements| As of second interim projections, are salary and benefit negotiations
still unsettled for:
= Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 1b) X
» Classified? (Section S8B, Line 1b) X
» Management/supervisor/confidential? (Section S8C, Line 1b} X
S8 Labor Agreement Budget For negotiations settled since first interim, per Government Code
Revisions Section 3547.5(c), are budget revisions still needed to meet the costs
of the collective bargaining agreement(s) for:
= Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 3) n/a
» Classified? (Section S8B, Line 3) nla
S9 Status of Other Funds Are any funds other than the general fund projected to have a
negative fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year? X
ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS No Yes
A1 Negative Cash Flow Do cash flow projections show that the district will end the current
fiscal year with a negative cash balance in the general fund? X
A2 Independent Position Is personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
Control X
A3 Declining Enrollment Is enrollment decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal years? X
A4 New Charter Schools Are any new charter schools operating in district boundaries that are
Impacting District impacting the district's enrollment, either in the prior or current fiscal X
Enroliment year?
A5 Salary Increases Exceed Has the district entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the
COLA current or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would resuit in
salary increases that are expected to exceed the projected state X
funded cost-of-living adjustment?
AB Uncapped Health Benefits Does the district provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health X
benefits for current or retired employees?
A7 Independent Financial Is the district’s financial system independent from the county office X
System system?
A8 Fiscal Distress Reports Does the district have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? If yes, X
provide copies to the COE, pursuant to EC 42127.6(a).
AS Change of CBO or Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief X
Superintendent business official (CBO) positions within the last 12 months?

alifornia Dept of Education
3ACS Fli‘\la@ﬁl Reporting Software - 2018.2.0

e ci (

/08/2018)

Page 30of 3

Printed: 3/20/2019 11:08 AM



Hamilton Unified

2018-19 Second Interim

Adult Education Fund

11 76562 0000000

=ite: fundi-b (Rev 05/17/2018)

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 111
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (Col B & D) B&D
Description Resource Codes Object Codes| [2:3] (B} {C) [(»)] {E) {F)
H =NUES
'
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 19.230.00 0.00 19.230.00 0.00 0.0%|
3) Qther State Revenue 8300-8599 194,226.00 202.600.00 151,641.00 202.600.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Lacal Revenue 8600-8799 200.00 200.00 1,396.73 200.00 0.00 0.0%.
§} TQTAL, REUENUES 194,425.00 222 030.00 153,037.73 222,030.00
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 40.426.99 54,361.99 24,355.58 54,361.99 Q.00
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2989 47,132.80 49,632.80 26,430,068 49,632.80 Q.00
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 45.641.84 51,853.84 2537517 51,853.84 0.00
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 18,963.37 23,421.37 3,376.86 23,421.37 0.00
§5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5899 14,288.00 14,788.00 2.655.93 14,788.00 0.00
8) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 000
7) Other Outgo {(excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Caosts) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 7,800.00 0.00 7,800.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 166,453.00 201,858.00 | 84,193.60 201,858.00 |
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES |
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER |
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 27,972.00 20.172.00 88,844.13 20,172.00
D, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
sfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
asfers Out 7600-7629 27,972.00 27,972.00 0.00 27.972.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 89680-8999 | 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER F! il (27, 972.00).’ {27,972.00) 0.00 {27,972.00 :
J
California Dept of Education ]. 0 7
3ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018 2.0 X
Page 1 Printed: 3/20/2019 10:59 AM



Hamilton Unified

2018-19 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

11 76562 0000000

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 111
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals {ColB&D) B&D
lDescr‘ﬂtion Resaurce Cades _ Object Cades| (A) B {C) (D) {F)
|
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 0,00 {7,800,00)) 68,844.13 (7,800.00)
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES '
1) Baginning Fund Balance
&} As of July 1 - Unaudited are1 95,975.40 95,875.40 95,975.40 0.00 0.0%
b} Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 G.GL! 0.00 0.00 0,0%1
¢) As of July 1 - Awdited (F1a + F16) 95.975.40 95.975.40 | 95,975.40 .l
d) Qthar Restatemanis 9795 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 l 0.0‘}’gi
| |
@) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Fic+ Fid) 95,975.40 95,975.40 95,975.40
2) Ending Balance, Junae 30 (E + Fle) 95.975.40 88.175.40 | 88,175.40
i |
Components of Ending Fund Balance | |
a) Nanspendable : |
Ravolving Cash a1 0.00 0.00 ) 0.00 |
| |
Stores 9712 0.00 000 0.00 |
Prepaid ltems 9713 0.00 0.00 | 0.00
All Othars 8719 0.00 0.00 a0a
b) Restricted araa 93.891.54 86,091.54 i 86,091.54
¢} Committed |
|
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 | 0.00 0.00 Q.90
Othar Committments 9780 0.00 0.00 | 0.00
o) Assignad |
Other Assignments 9780 2,083.86 2,083.98 2,083.86
&) Unassigned/Unappropristad |
Reserve for Ecanomic Uncertaintins vk B .00 0.00 0.00
| Unsssignad/Unappropriated Amount oo | 2,00 000, 000,
alifornia Deptli thlion
ACS Financiat Reparting Software - 2018 2.0 R Printed: 312002019 10:59 AM

fle: fundi-b {Rev 05/17/2018)



Hamilton Unified

2018-19 Second Interim
Child Development Fund

11 76562 0000000

Form 12}

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description {A) (B) (D) (E) {F)
A NUES {
|
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%:
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 132.828.87 138.869.87 93,064.48 138,9689.87 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 .00 0.00 64.72 0.00 0.00 0.0%:
TOTAL, REVENUES 132,828 87 138,969.87 93,129,20 138,969,87
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 25.961.40 29,471.40 16,075.14 29.471.40 0.00 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 59.841.32 59.841.32 34.152.75 59,841.32 0.00 0.0%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 44,026.15 45,026.15 24,6524.25 45,026.15 0.00 0.0%
4) Baoks and Supplies 4000-49299 1,000.00 1,000.00 537.73 1,000.00 0.00 0.0%
§) Services and Other Operaling Expenditures 5000-5999 2,000.00 3.631.00 1,882.59 3,631.00 0.00 0.0%
6) Capital Qutlay 6000-6899 0.00 0.00 0.00 ' 0.00 Q.00 0.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 4.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 Q.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of lndirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 132,828.87 138,969.87 77,182 46 138,969.87 |
|
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES | ‘!
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER II i
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS - B9) 0.00 0.00 16,946.74 0.00
0. OTHER FINANGCING SOURCES/USES
1} Interfund Transfers
sfers in 80800-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b, unsfers Out 7600-7629 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.00 0.0%
!
3) Contributions 8980-8999 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 a.00 Q.00 0.0%:
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SQURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
_Zali[ornig De[_alofEduc_atiun 1 0 9
ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0 Page 1 Printed: 3/20/2019 10;59 AM

ile: fundi-b (Rev 05/17/2018)



SV IU= 1D QTG et

11 76562 0000000

Hamilton Unified Child Deveiopment Fund
Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 121
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description (A} (8 (€) (D} fE) A
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 15,946,74 0.00
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES |
|
1) Beginning Fund Balance |
a) As af July 1 - Unaudited 9791 2,392.30 2,392.30 2,392.30 0.00 0.
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 Q.q0 0.00 0.00 Q.00 | 0.0%:
¢) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 2,392.30 2,382,230 | 2.392.30
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 .00 f 0.00 0.0a0 U.O"/gl
1
&) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1id) 2,392.30 2,392.30 | 2,392.30
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 2,392.30 2,392 30 2,392.30
Companents of Ending Fund Balance F [
a) Nonspendable | 1
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 | 000, )
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 | 0.00
|
Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00
— S
All Others 9719 0.00 o.ugl 2.00 |
b} Restricted 9740 233.33 233.33 23333
c) Committed |
|
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 | 0,00 0.00 | 0.00
Other Committments 9760 0,00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned | |
! ]
1
Other Assignments 9780 2,158.97 2.188.97 | 2,158.97
€) Unassigned/Unappropriated | |
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 | Q.00 .00 | 0.00
Unassignad/Unagpropriatad Amaunt 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00 |
ahtnia Dapt tian
it F'"'mm:’ﬂ° SR Prinled: 3/20/2019 10:59 AM

le fundi-b (Rev 05/17/2018) Page 2



Hamilton Unified

2018-19 Second interim
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

11 76562 0000000

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 13i
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) B&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes {A) B] (C) (D} (£) (F]
A }(UES ! .I
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.60 0.0%#
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 320.000,00 370,000.00 159,422.79 370,000.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 25,000.00 265,000.00 10,534.51 25,000.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 28,200.00 29,200.00 13,827.94 29,200.00 0.00 0.0"/5_1]
|_5) TOTAL, REVENUES 374,200.00 424,200.00 183,885.24 424,200.00 |
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 Q.00 a.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%j
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 163,611.12 193.611.12 96,214.48 193,611.12 Q.00 0.0%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 92,757.34 99,757.34 50,289.92 99.757.34 0.00 0.0%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 109,831.54 190,831.54 122,765.32 190.831.54 Q.00 0.0%
|
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 8.000.00 5,000.00 2,676.21 5,000.00 .00 0.0%
6) Capital Qutiay 6000-6999 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7) Olher Outgo (exciuding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0_0"/%
9 TOT&- EXPENDITURES 374.200.00 489,200.00 271,945,93 489,200.00 1
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES i
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER | |
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS - B9) 0.00 (65,000.00)! (88,060.69) (65,000.00
. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) =" ~und Transfers
\>sfers in 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
b) 1ransfers OQut 7600-7629 Q.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.q0 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 G.00 0.00 0.0%:
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%;
IL_4) TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 | 1
|
Sallfornia Dept of Education l 1 l
3ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
Page 1 Printed: 3/20/2019 11:00 AM

sile; fundi-b (Rev 05/17/2018)



Hamilton Unified

2018-19 Second Interim
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

11 76562 0000000

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 13l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Calumn
Original Budget Qperating Budget Actuals To Date Totals {CoiB&D) B&D
Dascriptio Resource Codes _ Objsct Codes| (8) {c) (D) E] {F)
|E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND i
BALANGE (C + D4) 000 m (88,060,60)] (85,000.00)
F. FUND BALANCE, RESE! i
1} Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 162,024.37 162,024.37 | 162,024.37 0.00 0.0%
|
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 0.0ﬂj
|
|
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 162,024.37 162,024.37 | 182.024.37
|
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 l 0.0%)
i |
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 162,024.37 162,024.37 1@,-024,37
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fle} 162,024.37 97,024.37 | 9702437 |
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 | 0.00
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 Q.00
i
Prepaid Items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00
Al Others 9719 0.00 .00 | 0.00
b) Restricted 9740 13348263 8848263 6848263 |
c) Committed
Stabilization Arangements 9750 0.00 0.00 | 000
Other Committments 9760 0.00 0.00 ! 0.00
d) Assigned |
Other Assignments 9780 28,541.74 28541.74 28,541.74
8) Unassigned/Unappropriated i
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 | 0.00 0.00 | 10,00 |
. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9730 0.00 0.00 | 0,00 |
alifornia Degtll le:inn
ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018 2.0 Page 2 Prinled: 3/20/2019 11:00 AM

ite: fundi-b (Rev 05/17/2018)




2018-19 Second Interim
11 76562 0000000

Hamilton Unified Deferred Maintenance Fund
Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 141
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget QOperating Budget Actuals Ta Date Totals {ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes {B) (D) (E} {F)
A NUES
1} LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 100.00 100.00 {18.66)| 100.00 0,00 0.0%
|
5). 10T, EVE 100.00 100,00 {18.86) 100,00
1
B. EXPENDITURES |
|
|
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.0%:
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%j
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0,00 Q.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Baoks and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5) Services and Other Operaling Expenditures 5000-5999 53,100.00 53,100.00 49.056.87 53,100.00 0.00
6) Capital Qutlay 6000-6999 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7} Gther Outgo (excluding Transfers of indirect 7100-7299,
Casts) 7400-7499 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%;
|
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 .00 0.00 0.00 .00 .00 0.0%
9 EXPEN ES 53,100.00 53,100.00 49,056,87 53,100.00
. } |
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES |
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9} 000.0 {53.000, DQ).' {49|075.5§n {53.000.00
0. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) ln'm‘ﬂ{nd Transfers
"sfers in 8900-8929 53.,000.00 53,000.00 0.00 53,000.00 0.00 0.0%
b, ,.ansfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 Q.00 0.0%:
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.0%
3) Contributians 8980-8998 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 ! 0.00 0.0%
| |
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 53,000.00 §3,000.00 0.00 53,000.00 ;

alifornia Dept of Education 1 l 3
CS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0 )
“ile: {undi-b (Rev 05/17/2018) Page 1 Printed: 3/20/2019 11:00 AM




Hamilton Unified

2018-19 Second Interim
Deferred Maintenance Fund

11 76562 0000000

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 141
% Diff
Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Totals {ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes __Object Codes| {A) (D} (F)
E. NET INCREASE {DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 4|
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1- Unaudited 9791 33,524.08 33,524.08 0.00 0.0%
b) Audit Adjustments a733 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
<) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a+F1b) 33,524.08 33,524.08
d} Other Restatements 795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
a} Adjusted Beginping Balance (Fic+ Fid) 33,524.08 33.524.08
2) Ending Balancs, June 30 (€ + F1la) 33,524.08 33,524.08 |
Camponents of Ending Fund Balance
a) Monspendable
Revolving Cash 711 0.00 0.00
Stores 8712 000 0,00
Prapaid ltems 713 0.00 0.00 'E'
All Others 79 0.00 8,00 |
|
b} Restricted 9740 000 0.00
c) Committed
‘Stabilization Arrangements 4750 0.00 0.00
Other Commitiments 4780 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned
Other Assignments a780 33,524.08 33,524.08
&) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Resarve for u 9789 0.00 0.00
w 0.00 0.00
'alilurni_a De)?tli ;dLAlion
ACS Financial RpH i Noliians 201550 Page 2 Printed: 3/20/2019 11:00 AM

ile: fundi-b (Rev J8M72015)



Hamilton Unified

2018-19 Second Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Qutlay Projects

11 76562 0000000

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 171
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals {Col B & D} B&D
Description Resource Codes __ Object Code: B) (B} (D} {E) (F)
a NUES i
|
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8089 !. Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
{
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 J 0.00 0.90 a.0D 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other LLocal Revenue 8600-8799 200.00 200,00 2,688.81 200.00 0.00 0.0%!
|
S TOTAL, REVENUES 200, 200.00 2,686.81 200.00
HH. EXPENDITURES |
|
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 ,I 400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 &01/3?
1
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | 0.00 0.60 0.00 0.00 .00 0.0%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.0%,
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | Q.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 |I Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 a.00 0.0%
6) Capital Qullay 6000-6999 'L 0.00 0.09 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.0%
!
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of indirect 7100-7298, |
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00- 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.00 0.0%;
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of indirect Costs 7300-73¢9 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES .00 0.00 0.00 0.00
| 1
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES | |
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER | I
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 200.00 200.00 2,688,81 200.00
. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/IUSES
)" *™ind Transfers
'sfers In 8900-8929 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%]
b) fransfers Out T600-7829 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Othar SourcesilUses
a) Sources B88530-8079 0.00 g.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%i
b} Usas 7630-Te98 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980.8998 | 0.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 ; 0.00 0.0%
i {
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/IUSES 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
)
Salifornia Dept of Education 11 5
5ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
Page 1 Printed: 3/20/2019 11:01 AM

“ile: fundi-b (Rev 05/17/2018)



Hamilton Unified

2018-19 Second Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

11 76562 0000000

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 171
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Cotumn
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals {Col B & D} B&D
Deseription @ Codes _ Object Cade: B] D) IE} {E}
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE} IN FUND |
BALANCE (C + D4) 50,200.00 20000 2,688.81 200,00
F. FUND BALANCE. RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance |
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 8791 420,019.15 420,019.15 420,019,158 0.00 0.0%:
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 0.0%:
| |
<€) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 420.019.158 420,018.15 420,019.15
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%}
€) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 420.019.15 42001915 | 420,019.15 |
| |
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fle) 470,219.15 420,219.15 | 420,219.15
|
Components of Ending Fund Balance .
a) Nonspendable |
Revolving Cash 9711 | 0.00 0.00 0.00
{
1
Stares o712 | 0,00 | 0.0 | 0,00
’ |
Prepaid tems 9713 | 6.00 a.00 | 0,00
[ !
Ali Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00
|
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 000 | 0.60
. e |
¢) Committed H-‘
|
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0,00 0.00 0.00
Other Committments 9760 0.00 0.00 Q.00
d) Assigned |
Other Assignments 9780 470,219.15 420.219.15 | 420,219.15
e) Unassigned/Unapprapriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00
I
U ned/Una 9780 0.00 O,ET.I_ 0.00
alifornia Diept E:hl?”n
boit F'"'m’;é“” g Software - 20162, page 2 Printed: 3/20/2019 11:01 AM

Ia: fundi-b (Rev 05/17/2018)



2018-19 Second Interim

Hamiiton Unified Special Reserve Fund for Postemnployment Benefits 11 76562 0000000
Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 20t
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes___Object Codes' (A} {B} [C) ({8)] {E} (F)
A ‘NUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 ﬂ_% 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue §100-8299 0,00 | 0.00 0.00 a.00 0.00 0.0‘V_a]
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 I 0.00 0.00 8.00 0.00 0.0%;
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 200.00 200.00 1,329.85 200.00 0,00 0.0%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 200,00 200,00 1,329.85 200.00
B. EXPENDITURES
| 1
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | a.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
13
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | Q.00 0.00 0,00 6.00 0.00
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0,00 Q.00 0.00
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0,00 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00
I T
1
5) Services and Other Operating Expendilures 5000-5999 : 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00
|
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
i
7) Other Qutgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299, |
Costs) 7400-7499 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Qutgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 | 0.@ Q.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.0C 000 ! 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER !

|
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 200,00 200,00 1,329.85 200.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers
‘sfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 0.00 O.D‘ZQL
b, .. ansfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b} Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%,
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 5.00 a.00 : 0.00 . 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 | |
117

salifornia Depl of Education
JACS Financial Reporting Software - 201820 i
We: fundi-b (Rev 05/17/2018) Page 1 Prinled: 3/20/2019 11:01 AM



Hamilton Unified

Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits

2018-19 Second Interim

11 76562 0000000

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 201
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (CaiB & D) B&D
Description {8) 8) (C) {D) [E) (F)
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND } ||
BALANCE (C + D4) 200.00 .200.00 1,328.85 200,00 3
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES :
! i
1) Beginning Fund Balance |
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 207,735.35 207,735.35 | 207,735.35 000 0.0%
b) Audil Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 207,735.35 207 735.35 207,735.35
d} Other Restatements 9795 0.00 n.ug4' 0.00 0.00 0.0‘V:I
) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 207,735.35 207.735.35 i 207,735.35 |
| |
2) Ending Baiance, June 30 (E + F1e) 207,935.35 207.935.35 | | 207,935.35 |
| 5
Components of Ending Fund Balance ! I 'i
a) Nonspendabile | ||
Revolving Cash 9711 | 0.00 .00 0.00
Stores 712 | 0.00 0.00 ‘ 0.00
| |
Prepaid Itams 9713 L a.00 0.00 | 0.00
! |
All Others 9719 200! 2,00 | 0.00
| 1
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00
¢} Commilted |
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Committments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned |
1 |
Other Assignments 9780 207,936.35 20783535 207,935.35
|
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated l }
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 i 0.00 | oi“_d o.0¢
j Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9730 | 0.00 u.ag_' 1 0,00
aliforni_a De;_ztlf ;L&lion
ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018 2.0 page 2 Brinted: 32012019 11:01 AM

Je: fundi-b (Rev 05/17/2018)



Hamilton Unified

2018-19 Second interim
Capital Facilities Fund

11 76562 0000000
Form 25|

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Bajance
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals {Col B & D} B&D
Descriptian {A) (8) (C) {D} (E) (F)
"INUES |
j |
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.0%
1
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 I 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0,00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 25.00 25.00 13,540.87 25.00 0.00 0.0%
|
TQ REVEN 25.00 25.00 13,540.67 25.00
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.0“IJ
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3998 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.0%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7) Olher Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 9,00 | 9.00 | 0.00 Q.00 O.Q_z.j
A TOTAL EXPENOITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES {AS - B9} 25.00 25.00 13,640.67 25.00
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1 =tarfund Transfers
\]rlsl‘ers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%:
] .
vy iransfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%;
|
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 ! 0.00 0.00 0.0%
L4 TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00
/
Salifornia Dept of Educalian 11 9
SACS Financlal Reparting Software - 2018 2.0 i
Page 1 Printed: 3/20/2019 11:02 AM

Ale: fundi-d (Rev 04/30/2018)



Hamilton Unified

2018-19 Second Interim
Capital Facilities Fund

11 76562 0000000
Form 251

Te: fundi-d (Rev 04/30/2018)

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget QOperating Budget Actuals To Date Totals {CoiB&D) B&D
(A} =} (D) [E) (F)
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4} A5.00 2500 13 540 B7 25 00
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES |
i
1) Beginning Fund Balance I
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 103,435.88 10343588 103.435.88 0.09 0.0%
|
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 Q% 0.00 0.00 0.0%
¢) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 103,435.68 103.435.68 103,435.68
d) Olher Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 0.0%
) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Fic + F1d) 103,435.88 103.435.88 I’ 103.435.88
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fle) 103,460.88 103,460.88 | 103.460.88 |
|
Components of Ending Fund Balance !
a) Nonspendable ]
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00
13
Stores 712 0.00 4.0 0.00
1
Prepaid items 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00 |
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 | 0.00
b) Legally Restricted Balance 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00
¢) Committed .-1
Stabitization Arrangements 9750 0.00 G.Q__! a.00
Other Commilments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned I |
Other Assignments 9780 103.460.98 103,460.88 103,480.88
€} Unassigned/Unappropriated !
Reserve for Ecenomic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 ! 0.00 ‘ 0.00
Unassigned/Unappronriated Amount 9780 0.00 0.00 ! 0.00 ]
alifornia Deptl’ quatian
ACS Financial Reporling Software - 2018.2.0 S Printed: 3/2012019 11:02 AM



Hamilton Unified

2018-19 Second interim
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund

11 76562 0000000

Tle' fundi-d (Rev 04/30/2018)

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 51
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column |
Original Budgst Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals {ColB&D) B&D
Description (a) (B) (D) (E) {F)
“NUES | I
|
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90 0.00 0.0%.
2) Federal Revenue 8100-6299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8598 0.00 0.00 (692.08)| 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Olher Locat Revenue 8600-8799 75.00 75.00 40,832.06 75.00 0.00 O'Oﬂ/!i
TOTAL, REVENI 75.00 75.00 40,140.00 75,00
|&. ExPENDITURES
|
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 J 0.00 0.00 0.90 0,00 0.00 0.0%
!
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 | g@ 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8.0%
3
3) Employee Benefils 3000-3899 | : g.m 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%,;
[ -
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | g.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 9.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
|
6) Capital Outiay 60006999 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7) Other Qutgo (excluding Transfers of indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0,00 0.00 91,929.45 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Qutgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7398 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 91,929,458 0.00
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER |
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 75.00 75.00 (51,789.45) 7500
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
W Afund Transfers
nsfars In 8900-5929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) rransfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.0%)
2} Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.0%:
b) Uses 7630-7692 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 6980-8989 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTA| HER FINANCI 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 |
:alifarnia Dept of Educatian 12 1
iACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018 2.0 page orinted: 3/20/2019 11:06 AN



Hamilton Unified

2018-19 Second Interim
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund

11 76562 0000000
Form 51l

Glenn County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (Cal B & D} B&D
Description Resource Codes __Object Codes| {A) (B) D) (E)
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND |
BALANCE (C + D4) 7500 75.00 {51,789 45) 75.00
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Baginning Fund Balance \
a)As of July 1- Unaudited are 155.986.36 155.988.38 155,988.36 0.00 0.0%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 l 0.00 0.00 OAO;I
|
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a+ Fib) 155,988.36 155,986.38 | 155,988.36 |
d) Other Restatamants 4795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0,0%,
) Adjusted Baginning Balance (Fic + Fid) 155,988.36 155 968 36 ! 155,988.36
2} Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 158.063.38 166,063.38 | 156,063.36
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nenspendable
Revolving Cash a1 0.00 0.00 2.00
Storés 712 | 0.00 0.00 | 0.00
Prapaid ltems 713 9,60 0.00 ! 0.90
All Others: a718 .00 0.00 0.00
]
b) Legally Restricted Balance 9740 a.00 0.00 0.00 |
¢) Commitiad |
I
Stabilizalion Arangemants 9750 000 0.00 0.00
Othver Commilments 9730 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned i
Olthar Assignmeants 9780 156.063.36 158,083.36 156,063.38
o) UnassignediUnappiopriated
R far L I 4789 0.00 0.00 0.00
551 ropriated Uit 9730 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 Jl
salifornia Degl]d'v ;L%l‘iﬂn
iACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0 Page2 Printed: 32012019 11:06 AM

We: fundl-d (Rev 04/30/2018)



Hamilton Unified
Glenn County

2018-19 Second Interim
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

11 76562 0000000
Form Al

Description

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA
Original
Budget
(A)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA
Board
Approved
Operating
Budget
(B)

ESTIMATED
P-2 REPORT
ADA
Projected Year
Totals
(C)

ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA
Projected
Year Totals
(D)

DIFFERENGE
(Col.D - B)
(E)

PERCENTAGE
DIFFERENCE
(Col.E1B)
(F)

A. DISTRICT

1. Total District Regular ADA
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LC!
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (includes Necessary Small School
ADA)

2. Total Basic Aid Choice/Court Ordered
Voluntary Pupil Transfer Regular ADA
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &

Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI

and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (ADA not included in Line A1 above)

Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &

Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation

Education, Special Education NPS/LCI

and Extended Year, and Community Day

School (ADA not included in Line A1 above)

4. Total, District Regular ADA

(Sum of Lines A1 through A3)

5. District Funded County Program ADA

a. County Community Schools

b. Special Education-Special Day Class

c. Special Education-NPS/LCI

d. Special Education Extended Year

e. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day

Schools
f. County School Tuition Fund

{Sum of Lines A5a through A5f)
6. TOTAL DISTRICT ADA

{Sum of Line A4 and Line A5g)

7. Adults in Correctional Facilities

8. Charter School ADA

(Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Charter School ADA)

672.21

672.00

691.53

691.53

19.53

3%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

3. Total Basic Aid Open Enrollment Reguiar ADA

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

672.21

672.00

691.53

691.53

19.53

3%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

5.03

5.03

5.46

5.46

0.43

9%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380]
g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA

5.03

5.03

5.46

5.46

0.43

9%

677.24

677.03

896.99

696.99

19.96

3%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2018.2.0
File: adai (Rev 02/05/2018)

Page 1 of 1

Printed: 3/20/2019 11:07 AVQ 3



NV 80:1 L 81.02/0¢

Ul

zoLe (¥102/21190 380 13)14
0'2'810¢ - 8Jemyos Bunioday |ew .14 §OVS
uojeonp3 Jo 1deq eiwiopen
e o v 7 3 A TN mkzmﬂkw:_d/w. ANV STVNEDD
; ; ] i ox ) HSVYO SMNd ‘HSVYD ONIONT '©
G0ESEIrS 0658 00°186'2EL 00 152 849 00°698'985 00709°'820' 009/6'€18 00€re0es {3+ V) HSVD ONIONT 4
(00900 LGE) 008/ %51 0002’6 0028 11 (00GEL 16%) 00'829'¥9¢ (00°Z€2 ¢L) (00'€/8'2G/) [RIELLLE (@ + 92 - 9) 3SVY3YO3IWASYIUONI 13N '3
00688 Fie {00 Z6¢ 89) 00zeg 6c 00909°Se ) {00°cal'62) 00'85v'1€ TO9B60Er |00 €8¢ 0L 000 SN 133HS 3DONVIVE TVLOL
o0L66 Bupee|) asuadsng
TSUOUON |
00688 112) 00°/62'89 (00°'695°€€) {00"909'cEL) 002869 {00'857"1€) 00'9Z1"18) 00'€99'128 000 wiolans
0696 S30UN0SBY JO SMOPU) pallsjeq
0596 S$8NUDATY pauseaun
0v96 SueoT JuUaLIND
0L96 spund 1oYlO 04 enQq
(0o'6eE’LLZ) 00°62°89 (00695 €€) 00909'GE L} 00°€28'69 (00'85¥'LE) (00921718} 00'¢€99°1.28 6666-0056 sjqehed sjunoooy
naen
000 000 00°€S6'S 000 00 0v9°0V 000 00'0L8'6% 00082611 000 IVL01dns
06v6 $30IN0SAY JO SMOIINO pasaleq
0o¥e6 SI9SSY JUaung JsYio
0E€6 sainypuadx3 predsid
02e6 $810)15
0le6 SpUn4 Jau1Q wol4 ang
00'€S6'G 00°0v9°0% 00°0.8'6% 00082611 6626-0026 3qBAIBI3Y SIUNCooY
6616-LLL6 Ainsesl1] u| JO0N use)
SWO[RQD PaiialaQ pue sjassy,
SW3Ll 133HS IONYIvE 'Q
00020550 00°£E6 76 00°/S0°/vL°L 00'PPL0L0 0008576 00717692 00BLL 6V8 00'/¥9'808 SININISHNGSIa TVL0L |
6694-0€9L sasf) Buueulg J2YI0 |1
00'000°€0} E 629.-009L INQ SJ9JSUBI) punuoL|
00°992'62 00°808°¢8¢ 66¥.-0001 ofno Jsyio
00°GvL'8LL 00°896°081 00%9e e 00'698'92 6659-0009 Aejino jenden
00'Z1E6E 00'1L8L7%8 00°09£'68 00'8/2'6S 00'089'26 00°625'6L 00'H-8%8 00°¥2S'vElL 6665-0005 S30ISG
00°086'Ch 00081 LI 00%E9C) 0060911 00'¥E9TE 00'69E7201 00'668Cet 00046 6661-000F saddng pue syoog
00'92.'291 00'GL5'191 00°F¥Z 2ol 00°6¥5'G91 00°/98°6G} 00°CyS 191 00%11'902 00%10°/G 666€-000€ Syeuayg sskoldwg
00'%2¥ 601 00'1L2% 56 0098170 00220711 0011966 00'955 70t 0012096 00'808°0L 6662-0002 Salejes psuIssel)
00822 V1€ 00'69.91E 00°058°Lee 00'98Z ¥z€ 0072r'GLE 00'22F'SLE 00'886°21E 00'L6E'6E 666 +-000} Saleleg pajeoyipa)
5 SININISHNESIO 'O
00°6LL°6L 00°801'8¥1L'} 00'69¢'Zp1L’1L 00025 979 00'820°¢LF 00'¥8S 200} 00°6¥5'9 00°/G1'e5¢C S1dIF03Y V101
6.68-0€68 $20.1n0g Buipueurd LY v
6268-0168 u| sJajsuel) punusiu)
00'v28'e 00'BER'S 00'89%'0} 00'IPY'9 008017 00°858°L1 00'6¥S'L 66.8-0098 anuanay [eo0T Jouin
_868 [£] 00°LP0'8LL 00°€L6'GE 00°006'29 00'%L2'S 00'000°S 6658-00€8 BNUIABY 9JelIS Jauyl0
00'825'9 00'526°001 00'PE0'C 0062095 0012294 6629-0018 snuanay [elspay
S 6608-0808 Spun 4 SNOSUESOSIA
00'8ZL'E 00 FPLZL 00'5eg'eze 00'€26'69 {00°Zgo's) 00'vzL'e 00'85 6.08-0208 sexe| Auedoig
000 R HAT 00'G2E6le 00°L.5°S5Y 00°LZG°SEY 00200786 00'660°£5¢ 61L08-0108 awuooddy fediouug
$80IN0S NWIIT SNUSASY/J4D
|00 698 988 S1di303y " 1
Sdomm_mmm_ > {00186 2oL 109 00’ mo.voo.ws. w _ J@@.B.ME HSYD wz_zz_wwm w

HSVJ ulog
0000000 2959/ L1

(1) 1204 12Bpng - 198usHIOM MOPySED
LHOdIY WIYTLNI 61-8L02
Luusiuf puoosg

40 HLNOW JH1 HONOYHL STVYNLOY

Auno) uusio
pauun uoyiwey

124



